BENTLEY CRICKET CLUB



Yearbook 2016/17

This year the clubs AGM will be held on Wednesday 17th May 2016

Canning Sports Club

7:00PM start

Centuries	Christopher Pritchard	106	Curtin Victoria Park	12/11/16
	Shane Saxon	150	Ocean Ridge	26/11/16
	Matthew Lockyer	109*	Ocean Ridge	03/12/16
	Steven Paice	101	Doubleview Carine	03/12/16
	Tim Horan	132*	Applecross	14/01/17
	Kieran Smith	106	South Perth	21/01/17
7 Wickets	Brendan Daye	7/32	Tuart Hill	18/03/17

David Berry Clubman	Ron Fernandez
Life Members	Geoff Dart Chris Lockyer
Hayward Medal	Brendan Daye
Junior Player	Matthew Robson

Table of Contents

Ladders	2
Presidents Report	3
Coaches Report	4
Cricket Managers Report	5
1st Side Report	6
1st Side Batting	8
1st Side Bowling	9
Glenn Davies - 250 Games	9
Grade Awards	10
2nd Side Report	11
2nd Side Batting	12
2nd Side Bowling	13
Steven Paice - 200 Games	14
3rd Side Report	15
3rd Side Batting	18
3rd Side Bowling	19
Club Roles	20
4th Side Report	21
4th Side Batting	22
4th Side Bowling	23
Ken Dawson - 200 Games	24
Jamie George - 200 Games	24
One Day Side Report	25
One Day Side Batting	26
One Day Side Bowling	27
Season Batting	28
Season Bowling	30
Ralph Dungey Points	32
Consistency Award Points	33
Career Batting	34
Career Bowling	36
Chuck Berry Match Report	38
10 Years of Chuck Berry Games	39
Milestones Achieved	40
Milestones Achievable 2017/18	41
Half Century Partnership lists	42
Ralph Dungey and Consistency Award Winners	48
Top Performers	49
Office Bearers	56
Hayward Medal, Clubperson and Junior Player Winners	57

Ladders

2nd Grade	Team	Ρ	W2	W1	D	L1	L2	Points	NRR
	Applecross	13	0	9	0	4	0	132	0.098
	Bentley	13	0	8	1	4	0	128	0.563
	Tuart Hill	13	0	7	0	6	0	116	0.591
	Bassendean	13	1	5	1	6	0	116	-0.113
	Curtin Victoria Park	13	0	7	0	6	0	116	-0.291
	Fremantle Mosman Park	13	0	5	0	8	0	100	-0.449
	Doubleview-Carine	13	0	5	0	8	0	100	-0.513
	Ocean Ridge	13	0	4	0	8	1	88	0.182
5th Grade	Team	Р	W2	W1	D	L1	L2	Points	NRR
	Ocean Ridge	13	0	9	4	0	0	148	1.052
	Bentley	13	0	8	2	3	0	132	0.102
	Murdoch University Melville	13	0	7	2	4	0	124	0.794
	Western Suburbs	13	0	7	1	5	0	120	0.353
	Subiaco Marist	13	0	6	2	5	0	116	0.443
	Fremantle Mosman Park	13	0	6	1	6	0	112	-0.431
	Curtin Victoria Park	13	0	1	2	10	0	76	-0.688
	Swan Valley	13	0	0	2	11	0	68	-1.438
8th Grade	Team	Р	W2	W1	D	L1	L2	Points	NRR
	Applecross	13	0	12	1	0	0	160	1.438
	High Wycombe	13	0	9	1	3	0	136	0.359
	Murdoch University Melville	13	0	8	0	5	0	124	0.383
	Bentley	13	0	6	2	5	0	116	-0.155
	Subiaco Marist	13	0	5	2	6	0	108	0.398
	Balcatta	13	0	5	1	7	0	104	-0.164
	Tuart Hill	13	0	2	0	11	0	76	-1.004
	Doubleview-Carine	13	0	1	1	11	0	72	-1.271
9th Grade	Team	Р	W2	W1	D	L1	L2	Points	NRR
	Western Suburbs	13	0	9	1	3	0	136	0.617
	Swan Athletic Caversham	13	0	9	1	3	0	136	0.366
	Bassendean	13	1	6	1	5	0	124	0.311
	Curtin Victoria Park	13	0	7	1	5	0	120	0.156
	Bentley	13	0	5	1	7	0	104	-0.388
	Whitfords	13	0	5	1	7	0	104	-0.447
	South Perth	13	0	4	1	7	1	92	-0.129
	Murdoch University Melville	13	0	2	1	10	0	80	-0.514
One Day 1	Team	Р		w	D	L		Points	NRR
	Wembley Districts	17		14	0	3		188	0.966
	Murdoch University Melville	17		12	0	5		172	1.618
	Swanbourne	17		10	0	7		156	0.182
	Western Suburbs Blue	17		8	1	8		144	0.489
	Western Suburbs Gold	17		8	0	9		140	0.235
	Tuart Hill	17		6	2	9		132	-0.356
	Balcatta	17		4	1	12		112	-1.208
	Bentley	17		4	Ó	13		108	-1.682
				-	v			100	

PRESIDENTS REPORT

To Our Sponsors, Patrons, Players, Partners & Families, Life Members and Supporters.

I hope you have all enjoyed the ride that the 2016-17 Season has brought us as much as I have. This season has been a big journey for me, in more ways than one, but one that I have thoroughly enjoyed. I hope I have completed the President's role to a satisfactory level as far as all of you are concerned.

First thing I have to do is thank the 2016-17 Committee for their hard work over the season and more importantly, personally for their support. I was initially hesitant with some new processes I wanted to implement, but it was great to see everyone jump on board and work to make sure they were successful. We lost a couple of Committee Members throughout the season and certainly had some challenges and hic-ups along the way, but it was great to see others step up to bat when needed. Thank you all. Thank you to the playing group as well for taking on the changes. All changes have been designed to help move the club forward and we appreciate your support.

When we started the season we worked on injecting youth into the club and to me after just this one season the benefits have already started to come through. It wasn't just about the 1st 11 or our A Squad but all through the grades and with some off season recruiting and additional junior players coming in through Ken Dawson and his Gosnells connection we feel we have started the journey. It wasn't looking great initially when a couple of our injections missed the mark with a broken foot and work commitments affecting two of our 1st 11 recruits, but the players rallied together and it was great to see our top three teams making the finals. While we didn't get to hold up the Holy Grail this season we can certainly build on what we have started and I am really excited just thinking about what we can achieve next season as we head back to 1st Grade and 4th Grade.

I hope all new Bentley Blue's have enjoyed your season at the club and continue to call Bentley home for years to come. Once a Blue, Always a Blue!

To our Cricket Department, congratulations on a successful on field season. Three teams in the finals with two going onto Grand Finals is a great achievement and I know the efforts you have all put in and I thank you for a job well done.

On behalf of the club I'd like to thank all our Sponsors. The work of the committee could not continue and therefore the club could not continue without your ongoing support and we hope to continue with whatever support you can offer next season. I also hope we have supported you as much as you have us and I welcome any feedback in how we can improve next season if need be.

To everyone who assisted over the season without taking on a specific role I sincerely thank you. I would like to thank you individually but I would certainly miss someone. It has helped lessen the load of the committee and I hope others can join in next season to lessen the load even further. There are a lot of 1%'rs that need to be done and the more members we can have assisting each season the better.

I'd like to finish by thanking our Executive Committee and Bar Manager. As I said earlier, it's been a big season for me as a first time President and I can't imagine how much bigger it would have been without your support and efforts across the season. Your professionalism and commitment in the jobs you have done has been invaluable to me and I hope you continue on next season.

Thanks again to the club for this opportunity and I look forward to finishing the season tonight and getting things going for the 2017-18 Season at the AGM next month.

Sincerely Justin "Hollywood 419" Warren President of the Bentley Cricket Club 0431 063 580 419hwood@gmail.com

Coach's Report

Dear Bentley players, committee, patrons and family members.

This year the Blues set out to build on the performances from last year both on and off the field. Since taking on the Coach's role, one of my main goals has been to lift the intensity and standards at our training sessions and this year I feel we have taken a positive step towards this. Our attendance and training format has helped to keep our skills sharp and players developing their games.

On the field, we had some challenges this year in the new format of the competition for all grades being a combination of 7 x 2 day and one day games during the year. New captains across the top 3 grades and some new faces down at the club helped to bring new energy in to the teams and get us going in the right direction.

Reviewing the year across the teams and as a club, some of the positives that we had include the introduction of some younger/junior players in M Lockyer, J Kenna, D Sheppard, M Robson, T Horan, L Henderson (just to name a few) and others who have fitted in well and played a great role in building up our teams. Another goal for this year was for our A grade to return to 1st grade and I am proud to say that we have achieved this goal so congratulations to all involved in contributing to this aspiration.

In general, our teams finished the season in a better position on the ladder than last year with our first 3 teams finishing in the top 4 and participating in finals, whilst our 9th grade narrowly missed out on finals finishing in 5th place. Our one day side was affected the most with player movements and retirements, and this coupled with staying in the first division of this grade made it hard for them to get many wins on the board.

To have 3 teams play in finals (including the one day flag earlier in the year) is great from a club perspective and for players it is what we ultimately play for! Unfortunately this year, whilst our top 2 teams made the grand final we were unable to convert these to a premiership with no one more disappointed than the players themselves. Playing in finals is a great experience and working with the captains, hopefully we can go one better next year, learn from our mistakes in those games and perform to our best on the big day.

Hopefully I will have the opportunity to go around again next year and as a club we continue to improve and strive for more premierships. As I will unfortunately miss the wind up this year, there are some thank you(s) I would like to make:

To the committee, you all do a fantastic job and the club would simply not survive without all your effort and time. From a Coach's perspective, you have supported me and the players to play at our best whilst having some of the best facilities available. I know that Turf training nets are on the agenda which I think will seriously help our club go to the next level and I believe the players will back you in this regard.

The captains in Tim H, Tim D, Steve P, Jay S, and Steve S, thank you for taking on the responsibility of guiding our teams during the year and helping to drive our standards at training and around the club. I look forward to working with you guys next year where possible and implementing more improvement across the grades as well as at our social events.

To the Cricket department in Geoff Dart, Pete Smith and Brian Hayward thank you for all your support during the year, leading up to the start of the season we spent some time looking for new players and opportunities and the committee and I couldn't do this without your help Geoff. Brian and PC, each week with the challenges of selections/discussions with captains you have made my job easier and helped put competitive teams out on the track.

Cairnsy who is my right hand man down at training, being the Nets captain is no easy feat and you did a great job during the year in allowing me to get around and speak to players, organise training drills and also work on my own game when I could! Thank you once again, I couldn't have done it without you (or your "straight-forward" manner in dealing with players ;))

Finally, but not least, thank you to my amazing wife Vikki for supporting me to continue playing cricket and taking on the coach's role! It's not easy with the little guy and time away on the weekends but you always say yes with a smile!

To the next year and more premierships!

Fab Fanayan

Coach

Cricket Managers Report

Season 2016/17 commenced with Geoff Dart as Cricket Manager. Geoff had filled this role as well as Chairman of Selectors for several years. I thank Geoff for his efforts in the pre-season including training, recruitment of players and organising player contracts before work commitments took their toll and I attempted to fill his big shoes in the role.

One job I did not have this season was looking after any visiting English cricketers. I think the decision by committee to not pursue an overseas player was a good one. BCC should continue a policy of recruiting players from within the Perth region if top-up or specialist players are required for our newly promoted first grade team. This will be a more cost effective and reliable way to improve any perceived inadequacies.

Coaching staff and most Captains were in place when I commenced this position. I thank Steve Paice (8th grade) and Steve Shearing (1 dayers) for stepping up to fill those vital roles when requested, so close to season start.

Fab has done well in his second year as Club Coach and I thank him for that. Steve Cairns does much work for the club, but his role as Net Captain is very significant. Going forward I would suggest an Assistant Coach could help both Net Captain and Coach in further strengthening the structure of our training program.

Ron and Ned should be congratulated on the wicket preparations this season. To be granted the right to host a grand final by the Association is testament to how well the wicket played.

On the field, to get two sides (top two) into grand finals and 8th Grade into a semi, was an improvement on the previous season. The big improvement came from 9th Grade. Under Jay Smith's leadership they just missed the one day final and won their first two day game in three years and in the process won back the Chuck Berry trophy from South Perth. One major reason for the overall improvement came through having sufficient players to choose teams from each fixture. To this end, thanks should be extended to Brian Hayward as Chairman of Selectors.

Off the field the club has been well led by Holly and his committee who supported me well throughout the season. Looking forward to 2017/18, Captains should be appointed early, recruits approached early and all players encouraged to strive for premierships - that's what it is all about.

PC Smith

1st Side Report

After being relegated back to 2nd grade and not investing in any overseas players and with an ageing list it was going to be interesting to see how the team would perform this season.

In saying that the club signed 3 young players, Matt Lockyer, Jarryd Kenna and Damon Sheppard all with plenty of talent.

Unfortunately Damon sustained a broken leg playing Ariel ping pong and was ruled out for the season. With Laurence Paice standing down as skipper I was looking forward to the challenge of captaining this very successful and proud club.

With a lot of rain early in the season the first game v Bassendean was a wash out.

Rd 2 v Tuart Hill was also rain affected to 27 overs each (Or so we thought) Tuart Hill won the toss and batted first hitting 9-140 of their 27 overs. Leading wicket takers were B Daye (3/34) and A Ghani (3-15). After leaving the field I was informed that we would only face 25 overs for a slow over rate with no warning during the innings. An absolute disgraceful decision.

After losing early wickets Paicey and Boon put on an 87 run partnership to get us to a winning position but unfortunately we just fell short and ran out of overs!!

Rd 3 v Fremantle away saw us bowl them out for 145 B. Daye 5/72 and H Shah 2/22 were the standouts with the ball. With some brilliant catching from Omo, Paicey and Boon. Once again we struggled with the bat late on day 1 being 4/18 overnight.

When Matt Lockyer was bowled out first ball the following Saturday the writing was on the wall and subsequently we were all out 74. Top score of 28 was B Daye.

Desperate for our first win we had a 1 day game at home against Doubleview Carine. Batting first in very hot conditions we lost two early wickets only to consolidate with Horan and Omo putting on a 113 run partnership and we ended 6/179 of our 40 overs. Horan 84 not out Omo 43.

Our bowlers then did the job dismissing DCCC for 143, Daye 3/25, Patel 2/18, Bart 2/14.

The next three games were Jekyl and Hyde performances. We bowled Vic Park out for 127, E Britton 5/16 outstanding and were skittled for 103. We then bowled Ocean Ridge out for 239 dropping 7 catches and chased it down 2/256 M Lockyer 109 not out, Omo 69 not out and (Horan the night watchman) 47.

Then a one day fixture against Applecross where we batted first and were all out 103. Applecross 4/107 cruised to victory.

So I am scratching my head trying to work us out.

Needing a win desperately we made a pack to beat the teams who had defeated us in the first fixture and we started against Fremantle round 8 in a 1 day game at Wyong. Batting first we hit 7/176, Horan 58 Lockyer a patient 29, Paicey a solid 31 and C Daw 25 not out.

Our bowlers were patient and fielding was very good with two run outs and a stumping. We eventually bowled them out for 153. Pick of the bowlers was Richie (H Shah) with 4/20.

First game after Christmas was a 1 day fixture against Curtain Vic Park away. With a sick daughter I could not play and the team was led brilliantly by Laurence Paice. We had the arrival of Ish Khan who was a breath of fresh air and has a brilliant and positive attitude towards his cricket.

Batting first Fab and Locks put on a 47 run opening stand and JK chipped in with a quick fire 21 at number 3. After losing a couple of quick wickets in the middle order Boon batted patiently for 43 taking the score to 7/188. H Shah 3/29 and the plan (Solanki 4/11) were outstanding. CVP all out 82.

Next on the revenge list was Applecross in a 2 day fixture. In hot conditions once again we batted first at home and put on 8/263 Horan 132 not out but more importantly Paicey with a very patient 50 when we were in trouble at 3-49 and Kenna with a solid 21 in even time. On a flat deck 263 was par so we needed to bowl and field well. Applecross started well and were 3/146 but some brilliant partnership bowling from Hiten 4/48 and Paice 3/18 saw us bowl them out for 185. Our fielding was outstanding and probably the difference.

Round 11 was a home game against a very good one day team Ocean Ridge. We batted first on a tricky deck. Locks with a solid 35, Paicey once again when needed 42 in the middle order and Tilbury with 21 valuable runs at the death steering us to 8/151 from 40 overs. With the best bat in the comp and an aggressive opener we needed early wickets and that we got. Ish Khan with the catch of the season to dismiss their Captain and opener started the rot and we skittled them for 97. The bowling was led by Ish Khan 4/20, S Patel 2/13, Locks 2/25 and Hiten 1/6.

Rd 12 was away to Bassendean and once again on a tough deck doing plenty we were once again in trouble at 2/21. Omo and Locks put on 59. Omo 33 and Locks 57 then we had good contributions from the middle order. Paicey 27, Boon 32, Kenna 47 giving us a total of 9/242 from our 80 overs.

Unfortunately Bassendean decided that 242 was too many to chase and didn't bother following the WASTCA rules or by laws and the game was the only fixture called off due to rain. We were once again cheated of an opportunity for victory.

Rd 13 was the grudge match against Tuart Hill after the heated Rd 2 fixture. Bowling first they got off to a good start and were 1/80 but once we got 1 wicket we applied the Bentley squeeze on them and a devastating spell from Ish Khan and master class left arm in swing bowling from Boon and controlled length bowling from Richie saw them all out for 141. Khan 5/21, Daye 3/56 and Shah 2/47.

141 was going to be a tricky total to chase especially against a quality bowling attack. After losing 2 for 1 Leigh Martin night watchman and Omo settled and we ended 2/13 overnight. We lost Leigh early week two and were 4/67 at one stage then 6/109 before Kenna 39 and Omo 62 saw us pass the score 7 down eventually all out 189. Another revenge scalp to the Blues.

Looking for an outright victory to try and secure top spot on the home and away ladder we decided to bowl first against DCCC. A long slow day we bowled them out for 144 on a good batting wicket and very slow outfield. Pick of the bowlers were Daye 5/57 and Shah 2/27.

After being in trouble early losing 5/27, JK and Boon batted patiently, Kenna 38 and Daye 58 not out with a lower order contribution from Leigh Martin with 12. We needed 11 to win with 1 wicket in hand. Hiten and Ish at the crease. DCCC needing 1 wicket to save relegation to 3 grade the boys got us over the line ending 9/146. Brendan saves the Daye!!

We finished 2nd on the table after the home and away season which was a good effort especially after our slow start. Our semifinal was against Tuart Hill who we had just beaten in Rd 13 and were seeking revenge. After a wet week and overcast conditions we won the toss and bowled first. Ish got an early caught and bowled then it was the Mr March show who else then Brendan Daye. In a spell that had to be seen to be believed Boon ripped through the Tuart Hill top and middle order claiming 7/32. Shah 1/23 and Ish 2/38 also bowled well. Tuart Hill all out 98.

Excellent fielding and catches from Omo, Leigh Martin and Fab Fanayan.

Fab and Locks got us off to a positive start 0/31 before locks was run out at the non-strikers end. Fab hit a solid 39 then contributions from Paicey 17, Lethal 18, JK 17, Tilbury 16 and Khan 14 saw us end up on 162.

Tuart Hill batted for 21 overs hitting 131 a lead of 65. We had 24 nervous overs to face and got the job done.

This took us into the GF against Applecross the minor premiers. After winning the toss and batting first we unfortunately left our worst performance for the big day and were all out 112. Simply not enough even with our bowling attack. Early on Sunday they passed the total, game over. A disappointing way to end the season especially after not dropping a game after Christmas but a very good effort to make the Grand final and achieve promotion back up to first grade.

It was a pleasure to Captain the side for the first time and a big thank you must go out to the coach Fab and the senior players, Paicey, Boon and Omo. Your help and support was greatly appreciated.

A big thank you to Cairnsy for running the nets.

To Justin Hollywood Warren and the committee thank you for your support throughout the season. You do a fantastic job.

To Karen and Gards for their work on game day doing the scoring. You both do a fantastic job and it is also greatly appreciated.

To Karen and Chris for doing the afternoon tea's brilliant work and great food. To Lesley for the hard work in the kitchen thank you and well done.

To the player's wives or girlfriends thank you for your support, I know it takes up a lot of time during the season. To the Curator Ned great work and thank you.

To the bar staff and helpers around the club thank you and hopefully we see you all back next season. Hopefully I have not forgotten anybody but if I did thank you.

Enjoy the winter everyone and Go Souths and the Carlton Blues

Horbags

1st Side Batting

Player	М	I	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O	FV
Horan, Tim	14	15	3	132*	398	33.17	2	1	40	8	2	0	1.5	27
Fanayan, Omid	14.5	16	2	69*	329	23.50	2	0	32	3	11	0	0	82
Lockyer, Matthew	15	16	1	109*	326	21.73	1	1	28	0	8	0	2	57
Daye, Brendan	15	14	2	58*	299	24.92	2	0	23	2	8	0	1.5	72
Paice, Laurence	15	15	0	50	268	17.87	1	0	29	0	12	0	1.5	89
Kenna, Jarryd	13	12	0	47	227	18.92	0	0	31	1	7	0	0	33
Fanayan, Fab	15	15	0	71	163	10.87	1	0	20	0	21	3	3	79
Tilbury, Rhys	10	10	2	21*	92	11.50	0	0	9	1	3	0	0	11
Khan, Ishfaq	8	7	3	14	49	12.25	0	0	7	0	3	0	0	10
Martin, Leigh	4	4	0	18	46	11.50	0	0	1	1	2	0	0	5
Daw, Cameron	4	3	1	25*	39	19.50	0	0	5	0	0	0	0	0
Shah, Hiten	12.5	7	5	12*	32	16.00	0	0	4	1	3	0	0	30
Dawson, Michael	5	4	2	7	19	9.50	0	0	1	1	2	0	0	10
Solanki, Mauneek	5	4	1	6	15	5.00	0	0	1	0	2	0	0.5	9
Bartholomew, Adam	3	2	0	12	12	6.00	0	0	2	0	2	0	0	13
Britton, Evan R	4	3	1	7	10	5.00	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	2
Patel, Smit	3	2	2	2*	3	N/A	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	6
Solanki, Lilesh	1	1	0	3	3	3.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	5
Cheeseman, Daniel	3	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0
Ghani, Asim	1	0	0	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Leng, Darren	2	0	0	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Partnerships

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Round	Opponent
1	47	Matthew Lockyer - Fab Fanayan*	9	Curtin Victoria Park
2	90	Matthew Lockyer* - Tim Horan	6	Ocean Ridge
3	134*	Matthew Lockyer* - Omid Fanayan*	6	Ocean Ridge
4	126	Tim Horan* - Laurence Paice	10	Applecross
5	81	Laurence Paice - Brendan Daye*	2	Tuart Hill
6	69	Brendan Daye* - Jarryd Kenna	12	Bassendean
7	44	Tim Horan* - Rhys Tilbury	10	Applecross
8	28	Jarryd Kenna - Rhys Tilbury*	SF	Tuart Hill
9	24	Brendan Daye* - Michael Dawson	5	Curtin Victoria Park
10	22	Brendan Daye* - Evan Britton	5	Curtin Victoria Park

Record Partnerships (1st Side)

Wkt	Runs	Dismissed	Not Out	Opponent	Season	Ground
1	142	L.Paice	Aiden Thomas	Melville	2009/10	Wyong
2	129*	L.Dungey	B.Hayward	Whitfords	1979/80	Robin
3	186	P.Coverdale	A.Wittensleger	Ocean Ridge	2007/08	Flinders
4	156	S.Shearing	D.Berry	Melville	1995/96	Tompkins
5	154*	D.Berry	M.Reilly	Wembley Downs	1999/00	Flinders
6	198	K.Hocking	G.Verco	Mosman Park	1977/78	Davis
7	148	M.Knowles	L.Dungey	Marist/Newman O.B.	1985/86	College
8	127	L.Dungey	A.Hayward	Maccabi	1981/82	Maccabean Memorial
9	97	R.Gangell	R.Ritchie	Pickering Brook	1956/57	
10	81	S.O'Shea	S.Shearing	Whitfords	2004/05	McDonald

1st Side Bowling

Player	Balls	Μ	W	Runs	Ave	BB	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Daye, Brendan	1625	85	38	740	19.47	7/32	2	1	42.76	2.73
Shah, Hiten	1127	57	33	460	13.94	6/69	1	0	34.15	2.45
Khan, Ishfaq	485	16	16	190	11.88	5/21	1	0	30.31	2.35
Britton, Evan R	255	15	10	124	12.40	5/16	1	0	25.50	2.92
Paice, Laurence	484	17	10	227	22.70	3/18	0	0	48.40	2.81
Patel, Smit	72	0	5	45	9.00	2/13	0	0	14.40	3.75
Bartholomew, Adam	174	9	5	83	16.60	2/14	0	0	34.80	2.86
Solanki, Mauneek	88	1	4	53	13.25	4/11	0	0	22.00	3.61
Lockyer, Matthew	208	5	4	107	26.75	2/25	0	0	52.00	3.09
Ghani, Asim	24	0	3	15	5.00	3/15	0	0	8.00	3.75
Daw, Cameron	48	0	2	37	18.50	2/37	0	0	24.00	4.63
Cheeseman, Daniel	108	2	2	66	33.00	1/15	0	0	54.00	3.67
Kenna, Jarryd	24	1	0	11	N/A	0/11	0	0	N/A	2.75

* H Shah won the association bowling average this season

Glenn Davies – 250 Games Milestone

Side	All	1	2	3	4	5	6/OD
Debut Season	1989/90	1989/90	1989/90	1989/90	2004/05	2006/07	2009/10
Matches	255.5	38	131	26	32	3	25.5
Runs	3439	395	1650	494	622	14	264
High Score	70*	52	70	70*	70*	10	36*
Innings	250	43	127	25	29	3	23
Not Outs	54	4	24	5	11	0	10
Bat Average	17.55	10.13	16.02	24.70	34.56	4.67	20.31
4's	287	23	132	49	55	1	27
6's	9	0	6	3	0	0	0
Boundary %	34.95	23.30	34.20	43.30	35.40	28.60	40.91
Ducks	28	7	13	2	4	0	2
50's	11	1	5	1	4	0	0
100's	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
50 Partnerships	25	3	7	4	8	0	3
100 Partnerships	2	0	0	0	1	0	1
Catches	293	37	167	32	39	1	17
Stumpings	24	2	12	4	4	0	2
Run Outs	16.5	4	5	2.5	3	0	2
Balls Bowled	438	102	108	168	54	6	0
Maidens	9	1	1	7	0	0	0
Wickets	10	2	4	2	2	0	0
Runs	339	111	85	75	54	14	0
Bowling Average	33.90	55.50	21.25	37.50	27.00	NA	NA
Best Bowling	2/8	2/67	2/8	1/7	2/29	0/14	NA
5WI	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
7WI	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
10WM	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
S/R	43.80	51.00	27.00	84.00	27.00	NA	NA
E/R	4.64	6.53	4.72	2.68	6.00	14.00	NA

Grade Awards

2nd Grade	Batting average	Tim Horan	38.40 ave
	Batting aggregate	Tim Horan	384 runs
	Fielding	Laurence Paice	89 votes
	Bowling average	Hiten Shah	12.50 ave
	Bowling aggregate	Brendan Daye	29 wickets
5th Grade	Batting average	Cameron Daw	41.43 ave
	Batting aggregate	Shane Saxon	404 runs
	Fielding	Chrisopher Pritchard	60 votes
	Bowling average Bowling aggregate	Matthew Robson Matthew Robson Tim D'Souza	9.95 ave 19 wickets 19 wickets
8th Grade	Batting average	Steven Paice	32.09 ave
	Batting aggregate	Steven Paice	353 runs
	Fielding	Jamey Riches Steven Paice	47 votes 47 votes
	Bowling average	Thomas Horan	13.88 ave
	Bowling aggregate	Thomas Horan	16 wickets
9th Grade	Batting average	Mobin Mathew	25.44 ave
	Batting aggregate	Joshua Ericson	304 runs
	Fielding	Joshua Ericson	83 votes
	Bowling average	Christopher Lockyer	15.73 ave
	Bowling aggregate	Andrew Stace	19 wickets
One Day Grade	Batting average	Steven Shearing	28.00 ave
	Batting aggregate	Steven Shearing	392 runs
	Fielding	Jos Welsh	58 votes
	Bowling average	Rod Duncan	28.00 ave
	Bowling aggregate	Rod Duncan	17 wickets

2nd Side Report

Firstly, congrats to all the other captains and sides on great seasons especially Tim Horan and the 1st XI on getting us back into A grade for Season 17/18. To have your top 3 sides play finals is a fantastic achievement for the club and here's hoping we can increase that number and bring home a couple of flags for the wall in 17/18!

Well, it was a tough ending to a great season.....

To make a Grand Final you have to have many great team performances which of course we had throughout the season, but as a captain that tells his players to "be greedy" it was great to see we had guys come through the side that understood exactly what I was meaning by that and it didn't take long until we had our 1st 100 club participant with Chris Pritchard scoring 106 vs Curtin Vic Park in round 5. That was followed by a massive 150 runs scored by Vice-Captain Shane Saxon in round 6 vs Ocean Ridge!

While the hundreds stopped there we had many bat raises to clap with Cam Daw (79, 77, 79), Jai Thomas (54, 51, 74), Shane Saxon (66), Chris Pritchard (57) & Tony Magill (55) but the one I remember the most was Stevie Daye's 72 vs Swan Valley. After getting dropped due to form he had to come back in due to unavailability's and to see him come out and make that score was just sensational!!

The wickets this year were shared around so we only saw 1 5fa which was taken by young Smit Patel vs Fremantle Mosman Park in round 3 but while we only had that 1 we also had 9 x 4 wicket hauls and 13 x 3 wicket hauls! Stand out spells would have to be very young Matty Robson who took career best figures of 4/27 vs a rampaging Western Suburbs in round 13 and also a fiery spell from another youngster Daniel Cheeseman who took 4/33 vs Murdoch Melville which still had them talking a week later in the Semi Final!!

I'd like to take this opportunity to thank ALL of the players that played in the 2nd XI (5th grade) for me this year and gave me 100% every time they walked across the white line! I'd also like to thank all the senior players that helped me be the best captain that I could have been especially during the tough times on field, it was very much appreciated! I also need to thank the Chairman of Selectors, Brian Hayward, who had to put up with me for a whole season which I'm sure wasn't easy at times! Thanks for the chats, advice and understanding that it was all to improve the club as a whole while getting the best out of every side.

On behalf of all the 2nd XI players I'd like to thank Chris Lockyer who provided us with sensational tea breaks week in week out!!! Mrs Robson who allowed us all to talk a bit more crap while she kept the scorebook up to date and extremely neat AND provide us with an endless supply of lollies. Special thanks to my wife Michelle who helps me week in week out and doesn't miss a game and also all the supporters that came down to cheers us on at various times this season, the 2nd XI very much appreciates everything and we hope to see you all in season 17/18!!

Lastly I have a massive thankyou to my mate and Vice-Captain Shane Saxon. You took over and led the side when I was injured, called me back every time I needed to discuss something and helped me every step of the way while also leading with the bat! Thanks for all the help, it certainly made things much easier for a 1st time Captain!!

So it took us a couple of seasons to get to the big dance, let's ensure that we are not waiting that long to get back there for another crack!!

Tim D'Souza 2nd XI (5th Grade) Captain 2017

2nd Side Batting

Player	М	Т	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O	FV
Saxon, Shane	12.5	13	0	150	489	37.62	1	1	66	0	8	0	0	37
Thomas, Jai P	13.5	13	1	74	350	29.17	3	0	50	0	2	0	0	30
Pritchard, Christopher P	13	13	2	106	344	31.27	1	1	43	0	20	1	1	60
Daw, Cameron	11	9	0	79	343	38.11	3	0	50	4	3	0	0	25
Daye, Steven M	11	12	0	72	239	19.92	1	0	25	0	2	0	0.5	54
Magill, Anthony J	15	14	5	55	237	26.33	1	0	26	6	5	0	1	35
D'Souza, Timothy	13	11	4	31	144	20.57	0	0	11	5	5	0	0	48
Martin, Leigh	6	7	1	45	122	20.33	0	0	15	0	2	0	0	19
Hewitt, Damien P	6	6	0	36	116	19.33	0	0	17	0	0	0	0	15
Tilbury, Rhys	3	3	0	29	49	16.33	0	0	6	0	1	0	0	7
Sibson, Jarrad	7	6	0	22	49	8.17	0	0	7	0	6	0	0.5	46
Solanki, Lilesh	3	4	0	29	42	10.50	0	0	6	0	3	0	0.5	19
Patel, Smit	10	8	4	14	37	9.25	0	0	5	0	5	0	2.5	43
Solanki, Mauneek	3	2	0	26	29	14.50	0	0	2	1	4	0	0	3
Walley, Yagan	3.5	4	0	20	27	6.75	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	2
Bartholomew, Adam	2	2	2	16*	24	N/A	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	4
Cheeseman, Daniel	8	4	1	14	16	5.33	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	20
Riches, Jamey S	2	2	0	8	14	7.00	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	24
Dawson, Michael	1.5	1	1	6*	6	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robson, Matthew	10	5	3	2*	6	3.00	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	36
Britton, Evan R	2	2	1	5	5	5.00	0	0	1	0	2	0	0	15
Duncan, Mitchell J	3	1	1	4*	4	N/A	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	7
McMulkin, Calum J	1	1	0	3	3	3.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0.5	15
Bhan, Ujjwal	1	0	0	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.5	3
Ghani, Asim	1	0	0	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Henderson, Liam	1	0	0	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6
McNab, Cameron R	2	0	0	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Warren, Justin A	1	0	0	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	12
Horan, Thomas	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sumanasinghe, Shaminda	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Partnerships

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Round	Opponent
1	67	Shane Saxon - Steven Daye*	14	Murdoch University Melville
2	78	Steven Daye* - Christopher Pritchard	12	Swan Valley
3	99	Christopher Pritchard* - Jai Thomas	SF	Murdoch University Melville
4	102	Shane Saxon* - Damien Hewitt	6	Ocean Ridge
5	124	Christopher Pritchard - Cameron Daw*	5	Curtin Victoria Park
6	54*	Leigh Martin* - Anthony Magill*	2	Western Suburbs
7	112	Anthony Magill - Cameron Daw*	3	Fremantle Mosman Park
8	33	Timothy D'Souza - Yagan Walley*	7	Subiaco Marist
	33	Cameron Daw* - Smit Patel	3	Fremantle Mosman Park
9	26	Anthony Magill* - Timothy D'Souza	4	Murdoch University Melville
10	20	Adam Bartholomew* - Matthew Robson	10	Subiaco Marist

2nd Side Bowling

Player	Balls	М	W	Runs	Ave	BB	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
D'Souza, Timothy	861	27	26	482	18.54	4/52	0	0	33.12	3.36
Robson, Matthew	460	18	22	221	10.05	4/27	0	0	20.91	2.88
Patel, Smit	594	28	17	300	17.65	5/20	1	0	34.94	3.03
Daw, Cameron	581	15	15	345	23.00	4/35	0	0	38.73	3.56
Cheeseman, Daniel	420	10	12	240	20.00	4/33	0	0	35.00	3.43
Thomas, Jai P	354	5	11	246	22.36	3/30	0	0	32.18	4.17
Solanki, Mauneek	204	6	9	100	11.11	4/39	0	0	22.67	2.94
Magill, Anthony J	264	3	6	174	29.00	3/17	0	0	44.00	3.95
McMulkin, Calum J	42	1	4	21	5.25	4/21	0	0	10.50	3.00
Britton, Evan R	114	8	3	43	14.33	3/17	0	0	38.00	2.26
Duncan, Mitchell J	156	2	3	116	38.67	2/55	0	0	52.00	4.46
Walley, Yagan	144	2	2	84	42.00	1/22	0	0	72.00	3.50
Ghani, Asim	36	1	1	15	15.00	1/15	0	0	36.00	2.50
Sumanasinghe, Shaminda	24	0	1	22	22.00	1/22	0	0	24.00	5.50
Horan, Thomas	6	0	0	2	N/A	0/2	0	0	N/A	2.00
Saxon, Shane	6	0	0	4	N/A	0/4	0	0	N/A	4.00
Bartholomew, Adam	24	2	0	14	N/A	0/0	0	0	N/A	3.50
Hewitt, Damien P	18	0	0	18	N/A	0/7	0	0	N/A	6.00
Dawson, Michael	12	0	0	26	N/A	0/26	0	0	N/A	13.00
Bhan, Ujjwal	18	0	0	27	N/A	0/27	0	0	N/A	9.00
Henderson, Liam	48	1	0	27	N/A	0/27	0	0	N/A	3.38

Record Partnerships (2nd Side)

Wkt	Runs	Dismissed	Not Out	Opponent	Season	Ground
1	229	G.Sheppard	S.Magill	Girrawheen	1994/95	Wyong
2	100*	William Harmer	C.Reynolds	S.T.C.	1978/79	Swanbourne HS
3	165	F.Fanayan	T.Woodruff	Wembley Districts	2006/07	Jones Paskin
4	142	K.Dawson	J.Chandler	Kalamunda	1998/99	Fleming
5	138	S.Paice	L.Martin	Frem./Mosman Park	2009/10	Wyong
6	135*	Jai Thomas	R.Walley	South Perth	2014/15	Wyong
7	126	G.Nairn	J.Kozak	Tuart Hill	1986/87	Coolbinia
8	124*	B.Daye	A.Magill	Subiaco/Marist	2005/06	Wyong
9	66	G.Corey	P.Roach (Snr)	Tuart Hill	1977/78	Robertsbridge
10	113	M.Solanki	M.Duncan	Frem./Mosman Park	2014/15	Gil Fraser

Steven Paice – 200 Games Milestone

Side	All	1	2	3	4	5	6/OD
Debut Season	1998/99	1998/99	1999/00	1999/00	1998/99	1998/99	
Matches	212.5	26	96	70.5	10	10	
Runs	3876	261	1613	1581	248	173	
High Score	144	42	74	144	64	85	
Innings	234	29	107	77	11	10	
Not Outs	22	6	12	4	0	0	
Bat Average	18.28	11.35	16.98	21.66	22.55	17.30	
4's	430	25	191	175	25	14	
6's	9	0	2	5	1	1	
Boundary %	45.77	38.31	48.11	46.17	42.74	35.84	
Ducks	25	3	13	8	0	1	
50's	13	0	5	5	2	1	
100's	2	0	0	2	0	0	
50 Partnerships	33	0	13	17	2	1	
100 Partnerships	6	0	3	3	0	0	
Catches	126	15	45	51	7	8	
Stumpings	1	0	0	1	0	0	
Run Outs	14	2.5	5	5	0	1.5	
Balls Bowled	2038	30	1025	812	51	120	
Maidens	65	2	33	24	5	1	
Wickets	60	0	30	25	4	1	
Runs	1151	8	541	531	7	64	
Bowling Average	19.18	N/A	18.03	21.24	1.75	64.00	
Best Bowling	4/14	0/4	4/14	3/30	3/6	1/20	
5WI	0	0	0	0	0	0	
7WI	0	0	0	0	0	0	
10WM	0	0	0	0	0	0	
S/R	33.97	N/A	34.17	32.48	12.75	120.00	
E/R	3.39	1.60	3.17	3.92	0.82	3.20	

3rd Side Report

Doing a pre-season is something that becomes harder and harder as the years' pass, so I had expected the phone call from P.C.Smith a few weeks before the season started was to remind me that training had started! Instead, it ended with me accepting the 8th grade captaincy – it is a job I have enjoyed immensely when I have done it previously so I was rapt to get the job. Due to me having to miss a few games, Geoff Dart become my loyal vice-captain and a guy on whom the side relied during the season. Darty, it was a pleasure having you by my side mate and it would have been great to get you that elusive flag!

Round 1 saw a washout against High Wycombe, and in Round 2 we tackled the competition trend-setters Applecross at Shirley Strickland, the first of three games we would play there during the season. We bowled and fielded very well, with young quick Matt Robson a standout and Cal McMulkin taking three wickets. 130 was very gettable, but we blew the chase, falling 10 runs short despite the best efforts of Glen Hewitt and Matt Harmer. 'Freighter' could have been a pillar of the top order, but injury caused this to be his only game for the season – this was a cruel blow to the side.

Weather played a part again in Round 3, as we posted a competitive 6/203 against Subi-Marist with Jamey Riches and Blair Chapman putting on 96 for the first wicket, the first of many strong contributions for these two reliable players. A team effort followed, but rain ruined the second week which left us with two draws from the first three games.

Round 4 was a must-win game against Murdoch-Melville, and they posted a very competitive 7/171 from their 40 overs. Youngster Tom Horan has a big future ahead of him, playing with poise that defies his youth – he took 3/44 in this game and showed an ability to vary his line and length and tie down and end with his off-spin. Jamey Riches and Leigh Martin anchored an even response, and we chased the runs with five wickets in hand, winning in the last over. In Round 5 we travelled to Tuart Hill and batted first, making 216. Tom Horan batted at 10, which in retrospect was a shocking call by the skipper as Tom made a composed, and sometimes classy 44 not out, putting on a tenth wicket stand of 45 with the ever-reliable Darren Leng. The side lost its way after a strong second wicket stand between Chappy and Darty, getting bogged down against what was really a weak opposition. Tuart Hill batted with patience in the chase, and despite us not doing much wrong they passed our score with four overs and three wickets in hand. Youngsters Robson and Horan performed well, but the side was at the crossroads with just one win from the first five rounds.

Round 6 saw our strongest performance for the year, as a very even bowling effort restricted Doubleview-Carine to 131. McMulkin, Leng, Ujay Bhan and Horan contributed well, and a dominant batting performance saw us pass the opponent score just two wickets down and bat for more than 80 overs in making 257. Chappy yet again did the job as an opener, and was fast becoming the most reliable bat in the team while Leigh Martin proved to be a class above the opposition as he made 62. It was going to be important to ensure this win wasn't a one-off, and a massive game against Balcatta followed the next week.

We batted first and amassed 7/248 from 40 overs, with a strong batting performance highlighted by 48 from Mike Vlismas, 44* from Tommy Horan and a whirlwind 28 from Jamie George. We lost two wickets in the first over of the innings, but the positivity in the batting ensured we were never really on the back foot. With the ball, Daniel Cheeseman and young Lachie Henderson were as quick as I have seen at this level, and despite some issues controlling the two-piece ball both performed very strongly and moved up the grades before too long. Both have a future as top grade players at the club, and should continue to go from strength to strength. Horan took four wickets and despite not bowling the opposition out, we were never challenged in a dominant performance.

A three-game stretch at Maniana followed, with Shelley Reserve undergoing a well-overdue facelift. We faced Subi-Marist in a one-dayer, and bowled and fielded poorly as they made 7/214. Aside from Ujay and Jamie George, this was a poor effort and we were soon 4/51, 6/74 and 8/129 in reply. Cometh the hour, cometh the man – Cal McMulkin is as consistent a cricketer as I have played with recently, but what he did with the bat in this game was something special. Despite a rising run-rate and virtually no hope, he hit the ball in the middle of the bat time after time and with Ujay, put on 88 runs off 61 balls to win us the game in amazing circumstances. This ranked to be as good a win as I have been involved in during my 19 years at the club – we were down and almost out before Cal and Ujay took over. Winning this game gave the side a massive confidence and we headed to Xmas in style, smashing Tuart Hill by 8 wickets behind class bowling from Tom Horan and a swashbuckling 81* from Jamey Riches, who put on 114 unbeaten runs with Blair Chapman, the highest partnership in the grade for the season.

The first game after the break was a bad sign of things to come, as the batting crumbled under pressure. We restricted the opposition to 151, led by the universally underrated bowling of Stevie Daye who took four wickets before succumbing to cramp after a marathon spell. Mitch Duncan, Bhan and Cheeseman bowled well without luck as they proved to be too good to find the edge of the bat. This should have been a simple chase against a poor side, but the batting wilted with just one player tallying double figures as we made just 70. The sooner we left the ground, the better on this occasion.

The next week saw a one-dayer against Doubleview, with a win crucial to solidify our spot in the finals. We were miles better than the opposition, and Mitch and Ujay were able to restrict them to 6/22 with an opening spell that would have destroyed much better batsmen. The opposition avoided total embarrassment and took the game past tea, but only by a handful of overs as the openers chased the runs without loss in less than 20 overs. To put our dominance in perspective - we flew across the road to the Carine Tavern to see the third over of the Perth Scorchers final, a game that started at 4:20pm.

Our first clash with High Wycombe had been rained out and they were a game ahead of us in second spot on the ladder, so any chance we had of competing for a home semi-final relied on us winning. They batted first, and showed patience above all else as they ground out 210 on a very slow outfield. Ujay Bhan took 3/48 from 23 high-class overs, toiling away in oppressive conditions and proving he was the spearhead of this attack. Unfortunately, Darty suffered a hamstring injury late in the day, ruling him out of the one-day Grand Final the next day.

For this Grand Final, we travelled to Shirley Strickland again, where Applecross won the toss and batted first, moving to 3/147 with ease. Enter P.C.Smith and Mike Vlismas, who bowled brilliantly in tandem to trigger a collapse of 7/24 and we were left chasing a very gettable 171. Unfortunately, we were never in the chase compiling just 78. The lack of application against a very good bowling side would come back to haunt us on more than one occasion later in the season.

The first time was against High Wycombe, where we fought hard and batted for more than 50 overs but failed to get close, finishing with just 87. A handful of players made double-figures, but none passed 15 – the bowling was again consistent rather than outstanding, but we were a fair way behind the top two sides and left with a fight on our hands to play finals.

Things got no easier as we faced Applecross again in a two-dayer, batting first and fighting for a full day in squeezing out a score of 130. Chappy batted for most of the innings in oppressive conditions, once again showing the application the rest of us lacked while youngster Michael Dawson showed some of his quite considerable natural talent in a short, impressive innings. The tail fought hard, but the WASTCA heat policy meant that the game finished in a draw – we were none the wiser as to whether we had improved against the top two sides.

In the week before the Applecross game, Cal McMulkin was injured playing indoor soccer and subsequently needed a full knee reconstruction after tearing his ACL. This was a cruel blow for such a vibrant teammate and critical team member, and Cal's loss was felt as the season went on.

In the final game of the regular season, we faced off against Murdoch-Melville with a reasonably simple equation – win and we finish third, lose and we might sneak into fourth but could just as well miss out altogether. To lose and miss finals would have been a brutal blow, and Murdoch won the toss and batted first and were 3/166 midway through the third hour which meant we were staring down the barrel of 300+. We turned the game around, dismissing them for 215 as Mike Vlismas bowled an outstanding spell in very hot conditions. The chase was all too familiar unfortunately, with plenty of batsmen getting a start but none going on with it other than the evergreen Justin Warren, who played a lone hand in striking 44 not out to reaffirm his well-deserved status as a big game player. Luckily Applecross did us a favour, smashing Subi-Marist which meant we finished fourth and would take on Applecross in the semi-final. We deserved our spot in the finals, and went into the semi-final with an experienced, skilled team that knew what was needed in a big game.

We won the toss and batted, with Jamey Riches and Blair Chapman starting well before Chappy and Sibo went in close succession. Myself and Jamey then put on 50, getting to a position of strength and control before a woeful umpiring decision turned the game. I am not one to bash umpires, but let's call this what it was – a terrible decision by a sub-par official. A team like Applecross jumps on every chance in a game, and they turned the pressure on the middle and lower order and we quite simply weren't up to the task. Jamey was gallant, striking 53 and proving he has a massive future at the club – with a bit more luck he could have had that many at first drinks, as his clean ball striking was foiled only by a very good fielding side. We scrambled to 114, and knew that we need to created chances and put the batting side and umpires under pressure. Unfortunately, despite lion-hearted performances by Mitch, Ujay and Vlissy we were unable to make inroads and lost by seven wickets; to keep Applecross out there for 53 overs showed great heart, but ultimately, we were a level below the top two sides all season and this result proved as much.

Jamey and Chappy were the standouts with the bat, proving to be a prolific opening partnership and both would be looking to back up with another strong season in 2017/18. With the ball, Tom and Ujay carried the attack for most of the year, while Mitch developed and matured as an opening bowler and will surely get more luck in future seasons. Tom is the kind of youngster around which the club can build in future seasons, as are Matt Robson, Michael Dawson and Lachie Henderson and we can only hope the family ties keep these kids at the Blues.

The fielding was subpar all season, perhaps a reflection of an experienced side with many members who didn't regularly train. The effort was always there, but the number of dropped catches and inability to create pressure with strong ground fielding left us in a tough position on many an occasion.

Veterans like Vlissy, Hollywood and Damo Hewitt all showed glimpses of the talent, class and toughness we have come to know and it was great to have those older heads to bounce ideas off.

To Brian Hayward, thanks for your level-headed approach to being chairman of selectors and for always providing a logical view on things. To Jay Smith, you have done an outstanding job as skipper but also carrying a massive burden on the Committee and I hope your work is appreciated by all, as it was by me. To Timmy Horan, the GF result was a shame but congrats for taking us back to 1st grade mate and I hope you stick around to take us back to premiership glory. To my old mate, Timmy D'Souza, it gutted me to see you lose the GF knowing how much this meant to you but come back stronger next season man – if anyone deserves to captain a flag at Bentley, it's you!

I was humbled, privileged and honoured to be asked to lead this side at such a great club and I hope I did the position justice – it was shattering to lose at the semi-final side again, but I know that every bloke in that side walked off the ground having given all they could and there is not much more you can ask than that.

To the Bentley Cricket Club, thanks for 18 great years – we are the Mighty Blues!

Steven Paice, Blue #572

3rd Side Batting

Player	М	Т	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O	FV
Paice, Steven	13.5	14	1	101	388	29.85	2	1	49	2	6	0	1	47
Riches, Jamey S	12	11	1	81*	258	25.80	2	0	22	4	3	0	0	47
Chapman, Blair	13.5	13	2	36	217	19.73	0	0	16	0	4	0	1	27
Dart, Geoffrey	11	11	0	39	152	13.82	0	0	14	1	8	0	0.5	37
Vlismas, Michael	10.5	10	0	48	127	12.70	0	0	12	0	6	0	0	33
Warren, Justin A	9	7	2	46*	109	21.80	0	0	9	2	2	0	0	6
McMulkin, Calum J	10	9	3	72*	109	18.17	1	0	10	1	3	0	0.5	22
Horan, Thomas	11	8	3	44*	104	20.80	0	0	11	0	2	0	0	17
Martin, Leigh	2	2	1	62	103	103.00	1	0	10	0	2	2	0.5	19
Dawson, Michael	3	3	0	21	56	18.67	0	0	7	0	2	0	0	8
McNab, Cameron R	6	6	0	21	51	8.50	0	0	4	0	2	0	0	17
Harmer, Matthew J	2.5	2	0	28	45	22.50	0	0	1	0	2	0	0	0
George, Jamie	4	3	0	28	38	12.67	0	0	4	2	0	0	0.5	2
Leng, Darren	5	4	2	14*	34	17.00	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	16
Bhan, Ujjwal	12	8	3	22*	30	6.00	0	0	3	0	5	0	1.5	19
Hewitt, Glen	1	1	0	28	28	28.00	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0
Hewitt, Damien P	3	3	0	14	27	9.00	0	0	0	0	2	0	1	15
Ericson, Joshua	2	2	0	14	25	12.50	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	6
Sibson, Jarrad	4	4	0	11	25	6.25	0	0	3	0	6	1	0	29
Solanki, Lilesh	1	1	0	22	22	22.00	0	0	2	1	1	0	0	9
Robson, Matthew	3	2	0	13	18	9.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Dungey, Donald L	3	2	0	12	17	8.50	0	0	0	0	4	0	1	27
Lockyer, Christopher	2	2	1	13	13	13.00	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0
Sumanasinghe, Shaminda	4	3	1	8	9	4.50	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0
Cheeseman, Daniel	2	1	1	8*	8	N/A	0	0	2	0	1	0	0	6
McKeig, Donald R	2	1	0	6	6	6.00	0	0	1	0	2	1	0.5	15
Singh, Manvir	2	1	0	6	6	6.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	8
Duncan, Mitchell J	6	4	0	5	6	1.50	0	0	1	0	2	0	0	18
Henderson, Liam	3	0	0	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Smith, Jay P	2	0	0	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Daye, Steven M	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Smith, Peter C	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Partnerships

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Round	Opponent
1	96	Blair Chapman* - Jamey Riches	3	Subiaco Marist
2	99	Blair Chapman - Steven Paice*	6	Doubleview-Carine
3	114*	Blair Chapman* - Jamey Riches*	9	Tuart Hill
4	68	Steven Paice - Leigh Martin*	6	Doubleview-Carine
5	96	Steven Paice - Michael Vlismas*	7	Balcatta
6	23	Matthew Harmer - Michael Dawson*	3	Subiaco Marist
	23	Michael Vlismas - Thomas Horan*	7	Balcatta
7	47	Thomas Horan* - Jamie George	7	Balcatta
8	25	Matthew Harmer* - Matthew Robson	2	Applecross
9 #	88*	Calum McMulkin* - Ujjwal Bhan*	8	Subiaco Marist
10	45	Thomas Horan* - Darren Leng	5	Tuart Hill

Record for this side

3rd Side Bowling

Player	Balls	М	W	Runs	Ave	BB	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Horan, Thomas	409	8	16	258	16.13	4/41	0	0	25.56	3.78
Bhan, Ujjwal	652	31	16	302	18.88	4/7	0	0	40.75	2.78
Paice, Steven	487	15	16	305	19.06	3/30	0	0	30.44	3.76
McMulkin, Calum J	510	16	15	293	19.53	3/20	0	0	34.00	3.45
Vlismas, Michael	160	6	6	81	13.50	3/19	0	0	26.67	3.04
Duncan, Mitchell J	396	18	6	169	28.17	2/15	0	0	66.00	2.56
Chapman, Blair	370	11	5	201	40.20	1/6	0	0	74.00	3.26
Daye, Steven M	50	0	4	28	7.00	4/26	0	0	12.50	3.36
Smith, Peter C	35	0	3	18	6.00	3/18	0	0	11.67	3.09
Robson, Matthew	102	7	3	31	10.33	2/8	0	0	34.00	1.82
Hewitt, Damien P	36	0	3	44	14.67	2/30	0	0	12.00	7.33
George, Jamie	104	2	3	72	24.00	1/9	0	0	34.67	4.15
Leng, Darren	156	2	3	97	32.33	2/26	0	0	52.00	3.73
Cheeseman, Daniel	78	3	2	37	18.50	1/12	0	0	39.00	2.85
Harmer, Matthew J	126	5	2	71	35.50	1/27	0	0	63.00	3.38
Dart, Geoffrey	12	0	1	6	6.00	1/6	0	0	12.00	3.00
Dawson, Michael	36	1	1	19	19.00	1/19	0	0	36.00	3.17
Ericson, Joshua	84	2	1	49	49.00	1/22	0	0	84.00	3.50
Sumanasinghe, Shaminda	102	2	1	68	68.00	1/26	0	0	102.00	4.00
Henderson, Liam	102	1	1	83	83.00	1/35	0	0	102.00	4.88
Sibson, Jarrad	18	0	0	8	N/A	0/8	0	0	N/A	2.67
Lockyer, Christopher	30	1	0	13	N/A	0/13	0	0	N/A	2.60

Record Partnerships (3rd Side)

Wkt	Runs	Dismissed	Not Out	Opponent	Season	Ground
1	175*	M.Murphy	Greg Dickerson	Murdoch University	1996/97	Murdoch University
1	175	G.Hewitt	T.Groube	Frem./Mosman Park	2006/07	Shelley
2	154	K.Dawson	S.Cleary	Swan Valley	2012/13	Shelley
3	168	S.Jefferys	O.Fanayan	Applecross	2003/04	Wyong
4	141	J.Ford	T.Shepherd	Bedford	1990/91	Deschamp
5	158	G.Hewitt	Kieren Elliott	Bedford/Morley	2004/05	Shelley
6	143	P.Quartermaine	L.Dungey	Melville	1994/95	Tompkins
7	177	L.Kirwan	L.Dungey	Dianella/Alexander	1995/96	Wyong
8	125	C.Rickards	J.Warren	Balcatta	2000/01	Delawney
9	88*	C.McMulkin	U.Bahn	Subiaco/Marist	2016/17	Maniana
10	91	K.Chapman	G.Farrall	Marist/Newman O.B.	1980/81	Raphael

Club Roles

President		Justin Warren
Vice President		Ron Fernandez
Secretary		Jay Smith
Treasurer		Darren Leng
Committee		Lesley Magill Steve Cairns Peter Smith Cam McNab Josh Ericson Chris Pritchard
Patrons		Ben Wyatt Steve Irons
Vice Patrons		Keith Chapman Lloyd Dungey Greg Dart Steve Shearing
Club Coach		Fab Fanayan
Assistant Coac	hes	Omid Fanayan Tim Horan
Captains	2 nd Grade 5 th Grade 8 th Grade 9 th Grade One Day Side	Tim Horan Tim D'Souza Steven Paice Jay Smith Steve Shearing
Chairman of Se	electors	Brian Hayward
Cricket Manage	er	Peter Smith
Nets Captains		Stephen Cairns
Ground Marking	g	Len Woodley Greg Dart
Curator		Mark Petta
Bar Manager		Chris Pritchard
Auditor		Peter Smith
Statistician		Tony Magill

4th Side Report

What does a 'successful' season look like?

As we reflect on the season that was, I am drawn to last season's summary of the 4th team. For the second time in as many seasons we were going to be demoted on the back of a bottom two finish, player numbers were poor and putting eleven on the field each Saturday was the biggest challenge the team faced. Ironically, lacking five bowlers was one of our main weaknesses. I foreshadowed that, "demotion next season will not be a great improvement to our prospects."

What a contrast to season 2016/17.

It was a season of unimagined highs and all-too familiar lows, at round 6 we were bottom of the ladder and unbackable, before putting on a 4-game streak and regaining the Chuck Berry trophy in our first 2 day win since 2013/14. Some of the cricket played around Christmas was simply brilliant. Our bowling in those one-dayers was exemplary as we defended modest targets of around 150 against top batting sides. Then a disastrous loss to bottom team Murdoch in a 2-dayer ruled us out of finals contention. We finished 2 wins and hefty percentage outside the 4, but a 5-7 record meant we finished 5th and avoided relegation.

The dramatic revival of fortune for the team can be placed firmly at the feet of the fresh talent that blossomed this season, and the old hands that performed match-winning cameos.

Mobin Matthew scored 34 runs last season @ 8.50. This season he made 229 @ 25.44, winning the average award in what can only be described as a remarkable transformation. He was instrumental in anchoring our innings on multiple occasions when the rest of the order fell over. None more so than his 51 against Bassendean out of a team total of 153 when 'extras' was the next highest scorer.

Josh Ericson put in some mighty performances opening the batting, taking home the aggregate award and anchoring the innings on several occasions as well. Josh was the best pick of the fielders, rarely dropping a catch and taking out the award by a comfortable margin. His new ball bowling produced 16 wickets and a bevy of dropped catches he can recall with vivid imagery.

Andrew Stace, third generation Bentley Cricketer, new ball weapon, exuberant fielder, hard hitting bat, and all-round self-proclaimed flog made an indelible impact on the team and is the deserved winner of the bowling aggregate, taking 19 @ 18.95. His ability to take key wickets in tight games was match-winning on more than one occasion and his presence added great spice on and off the field.

Old hands Chris Lockyer and PC Smith both had great performances throughout the year. Chris' full-toss wicket balls that begun the rot against South Perth to win us the Chuck Berry was one of his finest spells this season, and the great job he and PC did in the middle overs of the one day games to dry up the scoring created so much pressure that most middle orders simply collapsed in pursuit of our modest targets with the overs dwindling away.

Winning the toss 10/13 times certainly served us well in the one-dayers as our batting gave us something to bowl at. However, in the two-dayers we only put in one glowing performance with the bat, making 9/248 against Swan Athletic. I don't include the Chuck Berry win as a 'great' performance with the bat, for reasons that can be read about elsewhere. Batting out 72 overs is something that needs to be improved on next season, we only won a single 2 day game in 2016/17.

There were match-winning performances from the likes of Cam McNab, Kieran Smith, Jesse Liddle, Shaminda Sumanasinghe and others to add to the names above. I hope to see all of them return next year to give the 4th team some serious depth. Derryn Rive did a marvellous job in the field, whether wearing the gloves or not, he picked up an average 8.60 votes per game he played - not enough to win the fielding trophy - but a higher average than anyone else in the club.

Most captains define a successful season by making the top 4 and playing finals. So do I. But next season if the numbers hold up in the top grades and we continue to unearth talented cricketers in the squad, success is just around the corner for the 4th team 'Battler' Blues.

Jay Smith #801

4th Side Batting

Player	М	Ι	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O	FV
Ericson, Joshua	12	12	0	78	304	25.33	1	0	26	1	9	0	1.5	83
Mathew, Mobin	12	11	2	51	229	25.44	1	0	22	0	3	0	0	26
Smith, Kieran E	4.5	4	0	106	207	51.75	0	1	26	4	1	0	0.5	12
Smith, Peter C	11.5	11	0	60	161	14.64	1	0	18	3	4	0	0	47
Stace, Andrew	13	12	1	49	150	13.64	0	0	23	2	8	0	0.5	50
McNab, Cameron R	7	7	3	50*	117	29.25	1	0	13	0	6	1	1.5	62
Leng, Darren	5	5	0	48	90	18.00	0	0	8	1	1	0	0	27
Lockyer, Christopher	10	9	1	24	87	10.88	0	0	7	1	4	0	0	33
Smith, Jay P	13	12	4	13	72	9.00	0	0	3	1	4	0	0	32
McKeig, Donald R	7.5	7	0	31	59	8.43	0	0	8	0	2	0	0.5	18
Liddle, Jesse	9	8	2	29*	56	9.33	0	0	4	0	4	0	0.5	57
Dungey, Donald L	1	1	0	33	33	33.00	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	0
Sumanasinghe, Shaminda	4	4	0	19	33	8.25	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0
deRozario, Trevor	8	5	1	19	28	7.00	0	0	1	0	1	0	0.5	33
Khan, Afrasiab	8	7	3	20*	28	7.00	0	0	2	0	1	0	0	19
Lall, Vishwas	1.5	1	0	22	22	22.00	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	1
Rive, Derryn	7	5	2	11	17	5.67	0	0	3	0	7	0	0.5	59
Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Bhan, Ujjwal	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	9
Pate, Alex	1	0	0	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Campbell, James	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Riches, Stephen	2	2	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Singh, Manvir	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	14
Vlismas, Michael	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
Adams, Bryan														1

Partnerships

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Round	Opponent
1	53	Joshua Ericson* - Vishwas Lall	2	Whitfords
2	36	Joshua Ericson* - Mobin Mathew	8	Curtin Victoria Park
3	70	Darren Leng* - Kieran Smith	14	Western Suburbs
4	39	Mobin Mathew* - Kieran Smith	9	Bassendean
5	48	Donald Dungey* - Peter Smith	6	Swan Athletic Caversham
6	63	Peter Smith - Donald McKeig*	6	Swan Athletic Caversham
7	41	Mobin Mathew - Jesse Liddle*	5	Bassendean
8 #	106	Kieran Smith - Cameron McNab*	10	South Perth
9	44*	Cameron McNab* - Trevor deRozario*	10	South Perth
10	56	Mobin Mathew* - Trevor deRozario	3	Curtin Victoria Park

Record for this side

Record Partnerships (4th Side)

Wkt	Runs	Dismissed	Not Out	Opponent	Season	Ground
1	126	S.Daye	E.Daquino	Ocean Ridge	2013/14	Shelley
2	118	K.Smith	J.Ericson	Ocean Ridge	2015/16	Heathridge Park
3	132	C.Lockyer	D.Berry	Balcatta	2005/06	Sheldrake
4	110	D.Sykes	L.Dungey	South Perth	2001/02	Forrest
5	145	Greg Dickerson	P.Warren	Shenton Park	1995/96	Grand Promenade
6	138	R.Budd	J.Hendry	Subiaco/Marist	2003/04	Maniana
7	116*	C.Chappelle	S.Cleary	Western Suburbs	2009/10	Shelley
8	106	K.Smith	C.McNab	South Perth	2016/17	George Burnett Park
9	74	S.Duncan	C.McNab	Melville	2008/09	Tompkins
10	79*	S.Daye	C.Lockyer	Kalamunda	2008/09	Maida Vale

4th Side Bowling

Player	Balls	М	w	Runs	Ave	BB	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Stace, Andrew	684	18	19	360	18.95	3/13	0	0	36.00	3.16
Smith, Jay P	644	22	18	363	20.17	4/29	0	0	35.78	3.38
Ericson, Joshua	763	25	16	450	28.13	3/21	0	0	47.69	3.54
Lockyer, Christopher	569	21	15	236	15.73	3/8	0	0	37.93	2.49
Sumanasinghe, Shaminda	112	3	8	68	8.50	4/18	0	0	14.00	3.64
Smith, Peter C	480	18	8	206	25.75	3/23	0	0	60.00	2.58
McKeig, Donald R	156	6	5	95	19.00	2/10	0	0	31.20	3.65
Smith, Kieran E	90	0	4	49	12.25	3/21	0	0	22.50	3.27
deRozario, Trevor	120	4	4	110	27.50	2/26	0	0	30.00	5.50
Leng, Darren	132	2	2	94	47.00	1/38	0	0	66.00	4.27
Bhan, Ujjwal	48	2	1	16	16.00	1/16	0	0	48.00	2.00
Lall, Vishwas	24	1	1	19	19.00	1/19	0	0	24.00	4.75
Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	54	2	1	19	19.00	1/19	0	0	54.00	2.11
SINGH, Manvir	18	0	1	20	20.00	1/20	0	0	18.00	6.67
Vlismas, Michael	30	0	0	12	N/A	0/12	0	0	N/A	2.40
Rive, Derryn	18	0	0	16	N/A	0/16	0	0	N/A	5.33
Pate, Alex	12	0	0	16	N/A	0/16	0	0	N/A	8.00
Khan, Afrasiab	18	0	0	20	N/A	0/20	0	0	N/A	6.67
Mathew, Mobin	48	3	0	22	N/A	0/9	0	0	N/A	2.75
Liddle, Jesse	66	1	0	44	N/A	0/14	0	0	N/A	4.00

Record Partnerships (5th Side – no longer fielding this side)

Wkt	Runs	Dismissed	Not Out	Opponent	Season	Ground
1	191	O.Fanayan	J.George	Curtin Uni./Vic.Park	2007/08	Raphael
2	107	Geoff Dart	L.Dungey	Bassendean	2009/10	Jubilee
3	130	S.Cairns	L.Dungey	South Perth	2000/01	Maniana
4	115	K.Dawson	L.Dungey	Balcatta	2003/04	Ranford
5	109	J.Warren	L.Dungey	Tuart Hill	2007/08	Shelley
6	126*	M.Gilders	M.Holland	Melville	2009/10	Bentley PS
7	116	P.Smith	P.Pringle	Curtin Uni./Vic.Park	2009/10	Bentley PS
8	68	K.Spencer	A.Manjire	Balcatta	2003/04	Ranford
9	58	John Williams	Chris Williams	Applecross	1997/98	Winthrop
10	52	E.Daquino	S.Arnott-Dungey	Tuart Hill	2004/05	Shelley

Ken Dawson – 200 Games Milestone

Side	All	1	2	3	4	5	6/OD
Debut Season	1993/94	1993/94	1995/96	1997/98	1995/96	2001/02	2006/07
Matches	203.5	45	46	31	35	7	39.5
Runs	3710	811	941	427	617	153	761
High Score	99	98	86	51	51	53	99
Innings	227	47	53	35	35	9	48
Not Outs	15	2	1	2	4	1	5
Bat Average	17.50	18.02	18.10	12.94	19.90	19.13	17.70
4's	342	71	76	48	49	15	83
6's	13	3	5	0	1	0	4
Boundary %	38.98	37.24	35.49	44.96	32.74	39.22	46.78
Ducks	19	6	4	3	1	1	4
50's	12	1	5	2	1	1	2
100's	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
50 Partnerships	31	8	5	0	7	1	10
100 Partnerships	9	0	2	2	1	1	3
Catches	63	15	11	13	11	3	10
Stumpings	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Run Outs	5.5	2	1.5	0.5	0.5	0	1
Balls Bowled	830	108	50	48	162	188	274
Maidens	12	1	1	0	3	6	1
Wickets	26	0	3	3	6	6	8
Runs	542	66	36	22	118	10	290
Bowling Average	20.85	NA	12.00	7.33	19.67	17.17	36.25
Best Bowling	4/16	0/4	2/23	3/9	3/47	2/8	4/16
S/R	31.92	NA	16.70	16.00	27.00	31.30	34.30
E/R	3.92	3.67	4.32	2.75	4.37	3.29	6.35

Jamie George – 200 Games Milestone

Side	All	1	2	3	4	5	6/OD
Debut Season	1994/95	1995/96	1994/95	1994/95	1997/98	1997/98	2006/07
Matches	200	17	41	73	21.5	24	23.5
Runs	3966	113	600	1346	490	651	766
High Score	160	29	52	64	85	160	63
Innings	221	16	42	82	21	23	37
Not Outs	16	1	3	9	2	0	1
Bat Average	19.35	7.53	15.38	18.44	25.79	28.30	21.28
4's	448	12	61	155	46	94	80
6's	67	0	11	13	9	12	22
Boundary %	55.32	42.48	51.67	51.86	48.57	68.82	59.01
Ducks	18	4	3	5	3	2	1
50's	14	0	2	6	1	2	3
100's	1	0	0	0	0	1	0
50 Partnerships	34	0	4	10	3	8	9
100 Partnerships	3	0	0	0	1	1	1
Catches	84	8	23	24	5	10	14
Stumpings	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Run Outs	13	1	2	4.5	0	2	3.5
Balls Bowled	10064	884	1784	5058	616	726	996
Maidens	402	42	82	224	16	26	12
Wickets	332	22	64	164	24	26	32
Runs	4624	473	789	1948	314	414	686
Bowling Average	13.93	21.50	12.33	11.88	13.08	15.92	21.44
Best Bowling	7/18	3/8	5/45	7/18	5/14	5/34	3/44
5WI	13	0	3	8	1	1	0
7WI	1	0	0	1	0	0	0
10WM	2	0	0	2	0	0	0
S/R	30.31	40.18	27.88	30.84	25.67	27.92	31.13
E/R	2.76	3.21	2.65	2.31	3.06	3.42	4.13

One Day Report

Well, a warm welcome to all that may read this report. As another season passes, with pending retirements of guys who have played over 30 years of cricket? Many who have amassed hundreds and hundreds of serious games? It still amazes me the laughs and jokes that we still enjoy, even in the face of a disappointing year. This along with the comradery is superb and the few wins we had make it all worthwhile.

I am sure the main stay of the Team would offer no excuses as every week we had a compliment of players, 11 bodies versus 11 bodies and we all know the story once you cross the white line. You make your own luck and fortunes, you are in control of what you do. We make our own success in wins or failure in losses. The fact that the competition in the One day Grade One is very good with many players 25 years our junior, we need to get better. We can do that with the possible recruitment of some younger older players next year.

Les Saxon and Rod Duncan where again the main stay of the bowling as they have done over the last 4 seasons. Our batting was generally brittle, but still there where some stand out performances in Jos Welsh with a Season Team top score of 76 and Steve Shearing who made nearly 400 hundred runs. We had a mix of good fielding and some games where our fielding was well, let's just say it could do with some improvement. The Super cat in Jos Welsh won our fielding award and also made his 3500th run for the club.

Some big milestones and wins occurred during the year. The game against Swanbourne at Grayland's reserve was outstanding, the game took on added significance as it was club Legends in Ken Dawson and Jamie Georges 200th Game. A great win by the lads. Glenn Davies played his 250th Game a true legend of the club. Ed Daquino had a good year opening the batting and also played his 150th Game. Simon Cleary also played his 100th Game and took his 100th wicket for the mighty blues.

In the thankyou department, to my fellow Captains and selectors well done. To Jay Smith in particular as my closest Grade Captain thank-you for the banter around selection. Brian Hayward did an outstanding job, and whilst many of our meetings where brief due to the fact we only just had a team of 11 anyway, none the less his contribution was outstanding. From what I could see his job was made more difficult that it needs to be. Maybe a learning for next year.

Stephen Cairns job as Net Coach was again invaluable and I thank him for his management of a difficult task. To Serge and Les thank-you for taking on typical Vice captain type rolls and finally to my wife Emma and kids India, Evie and Marlin thank-you for the support and the games you came too.

Steve Shearing

One Day Captain

One Day Batting

Player	N	I	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O	FV
Shearing, Steven J	51	5	1	66	392	28.00	2	0	35	1	3	0	0	42
Daquino, Edward	31	3	0	58	236	18.15	1	0	31	0	0	0	0	38
Cleary, Simon V	1 1	0	1	53	168	18.67	1	0	15	7	2	0	0	31
Welsh, Jos	8	8	0	78	160	20.00	1	0	23	2	5	3	0	58
Perrozzi, Serge	9	9	1	52	145	18.13	1	0	20	0	8	0	0.5	56
Dawson, Ken C	51	5	2	39*	138	10.62	0	0	16	2	3	0	0	29
George, Jamie	5	5	0	34	77	15.40	0	0	7	2	0	0	0	28
Singh, Manvir	3	2	0	58	68	34.00	1	0	6	0	1	0	0	6
Saxon, Les	61	2	3	33*	61	6.78	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	23
Duncan, Mitchell J	2	2	1	44*	59	59.00	0	0	3	3	1	0	0	8
Hewitt, Glen	2	2	0	34	49	24.50	0	0	7	0	1	0	0	10
Pate, Alex	5	5	2	21	43	14.33	0	0	8	0	2	0	0	42
Warren, Justin A	1	1	0	42	42	42.00	0	0	1	4	1	0	0	0
Davies, Glenn M	7	5	2	10*	37	12.33	0	0	2	0	6	1	1	55
Duncan, Rodney	51	1	4	10	36	5.14	0	0	1	1	3	1	0	40
Linehan, Paul J	2	2	0	24	29	14.50	0	0	5	0	0	0	0	6
Liddle, Jesse	2	2	0	20	26	13.00	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	3
deJager, Kenneth	0	7	2	10	26	5.20	0	0	3	0	2	0	0	23
McKeig, Donald R	1	1	0	23	23	23.00	0	0	3	0	1	0	0	3
Dawson, Michael	2	2	0	14	23	11.50	0	0	2	1	1	0	0	8
Rive, Derryn	3	3	1	11	22	11.00	0	0	2	0	3	0	0	27
Khan, Afrasiab	1	1	0	19	19	19.00	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	4
Leng, Darren	2	2	0	13	17	8.50	0	0	2	0	3	0	0	13
Martin, Leigh	1	1	0	16	16	16.00	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	11
Horan, Thomas	3	3	0	8	14	4.67	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	20
deRozario, Trevor	3	3	1	8*	11	5.50	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	26
Harmer, Matthew J	2	2	0	10	11	5.50	0	0	0	0	1	0	1	17
Pearson, Glen	1	1	0	10	10	10.00	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	7
Bhan, Ujjwal	1	1	1	7*	7	N/A	0	0	1	0	0	0	0.5	10
Bormolini, Zachary	1	1	1	4*	4	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Dungey, Donald L	1	1	0	3	3	3.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	8
Henderson, Liam	3	2	0	2	2	1.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	30
Kaseke, Samuel	6	5	1	1	2	0.50	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	18
Adams, Bryan	0	6	1	2	2	0.40	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	34
Smith, Peter C	1	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
Cairns, Stephen G	3	3	0	1	1	0.33	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6
Dawson, Stafford G	1	0	0	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	14
Dixon, Bradley	1	0	0	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Campbell, James	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Naley, Gordon	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	9

Partnerships

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Round	Opponent
1	76	Edward Daquino* - Jos Welsh	15	Western Suburbs Gold
2	119	Manvir SINGH - Steven Shearing*	2	Balcatta
3	41	Edward Daquino - Alex Pate*	18	Western Suburbs Gold
4 #	118	Steven Shearing - Serge Perrozzi*	13	Wembley Districts
5	25	Steven Shearing - Rodney Duncan*	11	Balcatta
6	64	Jamie George - Simon Cleary*	7	Western Suburbs Blue
7	37	Steven Shearing - Glenn Davies*	4	Western Suburbs Blue
8	24	Steven Shearing - Afrasiab Khan*	1	Western Suburbs Gold
9	18	Afrasiab Khan - Ken Dawson*	1	Western Suburbs Gold
	18	Serge Perozzi - Ujjwal Bahn*	4	Western Suburbs Blue
10 #	50	Ken Dawson* - Samuel Kaseke	1	Western Suburbs Gold

One Day Bowling

Player	Balls	М	w	Runs	Ave	BB	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Duncan, Rodney	609	13	17	476	28.00	3/16	0	0	35.82	4.69
Cleary, Simon V	294	4	11	276	25.09	3/16	0	0	26.73	5.63
deJager, Kenneth	281	0	10	273	27.30	3/52	0	0	28.10	5.83
Shearing, Steven J	128	1	8	128	16.00	4/27	0	0	16.00	6.00
Saxon, Les	325	2	8	295	36.88	2/19	0	0	40.63	5.45
Henderson, Liam	132	2	7	83	11.86	3/14	0	0	18.86	3.77
deRozario, Trevor	144	0	5	135	27.00	2/45	0	0	28.80	5.63
Horan, Thomas	78	0	4	88	22.00	3/14	0	0	19.50	6.77
Adams, Bryan	168	1	4	172	43.00	3/53	0	0	42.00	6.14
Perrozzi, Serge	200	2	4	203	50.75	2/8	0	0	50.00	6.09
Smith, Peter C	48	1	3	23	7.67	3/23	0	0	16.00	2.88
Dawson, Michael	35	0	3	37	12.33	3/30	0	0	11.67	6.34
Duncan, Mitchell J	48	0	3	47	15.67	3/47	0	0	16.00	5.88
McKeig, Donald R	18	0	2	8	4.00	2/8	0	0	9.00	2.67
Harmer, Matthew J	42	0	2	33	16.50	2/33	0	0	21.00	4.71
Leng, Darren	72	1	2	62	31.00	1/24	0	0	36.00	5.17
Pate, Alex	61	0	2	96	48.00	1/17	0	0	30.50	9.44
Martin, Leigh	48	0	1	35	35.00	1/35	0	0	48.00	4.38
Rive, Derryn	42	0	1	54	54.00	1/23	0	0	42.00	7.71
Daquino, Edward	12	0	0	10	N/A	0/10	0	0	N/A	5.00
Linehan, Paul J	12	0	0	16	N/A	0/16	0	0	N/A	8.00
Liddle, Jesse	12	0	0	17	N/A	0/17	0	0	N/A	8.50
Bormolini, Zachary	18	0	0	20	N/A	0/20	0	0	N/A	6.67
Pearson, Glen	18	0	0	29	N/A	0/29	0	0	N/A	9.67
Dixon, Bradley	18	0	0	30	N/A	0/30	0	0	N/A	10.00
George, Jamie	84	2	0	45	N/A	0/33	0	0	N/A	3.21
Bhan, Ujjwal	48	0	0	61	N/A	0/61	0	0	N/A	7.63

Record Partnerships (One Day Side)

Wkt	Runs	Dismissed	Not Out	Opponent	Season	Ground
1	253	C.Taylor	K.Dawson	Bedford/Morley	2007/08	R.A. Cook
2	120	R.Hampson	P.Smith	South Perth	2007/08	Shelley
3	156	P.Smith	A.Magill	South Perth	2007/08	Bentley PS
4	118	S.Shearing	S.Perrozzi	Wembley Districts	2016/17	Pat Goodridge (East)
5	116*	A.Magill	C.Taylor	High Wycombe	2008/09	Bentley PS
6	107*	D.Arcaro	G.Davies/S.Shearing*	Doubleview Carine	2015/16	Maniana
7	74*	S.George	P.Smith	Whitfords	2006/07	Belrose
8	74	L.Saxon	J.Smyth	Fremantle Mosman Park	2014/15	Gil Fraser
9	50	P.Smith	L.Saxon	Western Suburbs	2014/15	Dalkeith Oval
10	50	S.Kaseke	K.Dawson	Western Suburbs	2016/17	College Park (Lower)

Season Batting

Player	М	I	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O	FV
Saxon, Shane	12.5	13	0	150	489	37.62	1	1	66	0	8	0	0	37
Horan, Tim	14	15	3	132*	398	33.17	2	1	40	8	2	0	1.5	27
Shearing, Steven J	15	15	1	66	392	28.00	2	0	35	1	3	0	0	42
Paice, Steven	13.5	14	1	101	388	29.85	2	1	49	2	6	0	1	47
Daw, Cameron	15	12	1	79	382	34.73	3	0	55	4	3	0	0	25
Thomas, Jai P	13.5	13	1	74	350	29.17	3	0	50	0	2	0	0	30
Pritchard, Christopher P	13	13	2	106	344	31.27	1	1	43	0	20	1	1	60
Ericson, Joshua	14	14	0	78	329	23.50	1	0	26	1	10	0	1.5	89
Fanayan, Omid	14.5	16	2	69*	329	23.50	2	0	32	3	11	0	0	82
Lockyer, Matthew	15	16	1	109*	326	21.73	1	1	28	0	8	0	2	57
Daye, Brendan	15	14	2	58*	299	24.92	2	0	23	2	8	0	1.5	72
Martin, Leigh	13	14	2	62	287	23.92	1	0	27	1	7	2	0.5	54
Riches, Jamey S	14	13	1	81*	272	22.67	2	0	24	4	3	0	0	71
Paice, Laurence	15	15	0	50	268	17.87	1	0	29	0	12	0	1.5	89
Daye, Steven M	12	13	0	72	239	18.38	1	0	25	0	2	0	0.5	54
Magill, Anthony J	15	14	5	55	237	26.33	1	0	26	6	5	0	1	35
Daquino, Edward	13	13	0	58	236	18.15	1	0	31	0	0	0	0	38
Mathew, Mobin	12	11	2	51	229	25.44	1	0	22	0	3	0	0	26
Kenna, Jarryd	13	12	0	47	227	18.92	0	0	31	1	7	0	0	33
Chapman, Blair	13.5	13	2	36	217	19.73	0	0	16	0	4	0	1	27
Smith, Kieran E	4.5	4	0	106	207	51.75	0	1	26	4	1	0	0.5	12
Cleary, Simon V	11	10	1	53	168	18.67	1	0	15	7	2	0	0	31
McNab, Cameron R	15	13	3	50*	168	16.80	1	0	17	0	8	1	1.5	79
Fanayan, Fab	15	15	0	71	163	10.87	1	0	20	0	21	3	3	79
Smith, Peter C	13.5	13	0	60	162	12.46	1	0	18	3	4	0	0	49
Welsh, Jos	8	8	0	78	160	20.00	1	0	23	2	5	3	0	58
Dart, Geoffrey	11	11	0	39	152	13.82	0	0	14	1	8	0	0.5	37
Warren, Justin A	11	8	2	46*	151	25.17	0	0	10	6	4	0	0	18
Stace, Andrew	13	12	1	49	150	13.64	0	0	23	2	8	0	0.5	50
Perrozzi, Serge	9	9	1	52	145	18.13	1	0	20	0	8	0	0.5	56
D'Souza, Timothy	13	11	4	31	144	20.57	0	0	11	5	5	0	0	48
Hewitt, Damien P	9	9	0	36	143	15.89	0	0	17	0	2	0	1	30
Leng, Darren	14	11	2	48	141	15.67	0	0	11	1	4	0	0	56
Tilbury, Rhys	13	13	2	29	141	12.82	0	0	15	1	4	0	0	18
Dawson, Ken C	15	15	2	39*	138	10.62	0	0	16	2	3	0	0	29
Vlismas, Michael	11.5	11	0	48	127	11.55	0	0	12	0	6	0	0	35
Horan, Thomas	15	12	3	44*	118	13.11	0	0	11	0	3	0	0	37
George, Jamie	9	8	0	34	115	14.38	0	0	11	4	0	0	0.5	30
McMulkin, Calum J	11	10	3	72*	112	16.00	1	0	10	1	4	0	1	37
Dawson, Michael	11.5	10	3	21	104	14.86	0	0	10	2	5	0	0	26
Lockyer, Christopher	12	11	2	24	100	11.11	0	0	8	1	4	0	0	33

Season Batting (continued)

Player	М	I	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O	FV
McKeig, Donald R	10.5	9	0	31	88	9.78	0	0	12	0	5	1	1	36
Liddle, Jesse	11	10	2	29*	82	10.25	0	0	7	0	4	0	0.5	60
Hewitt, Glen	3	3	0	34	77	25.67	0	0	10	0	1	0	0	10
Singh, Manvir	6	4	0	58	74	18.50	1	0	6	0	5	0	0	28
Sibson, Jarrad	11	10	0	22	74	7.40	0	0	10	0	12	1	0.5	75
Smith, Jay P	15	12	4	13	72	9.00	0	0	3	1	4	0	0	32
Duncan, Mitchell J	11	7	2	44*	69	13.80	0	0	5	3	3	0	0	33
Solanki, Lilesh	5	6	0	29	67	11.17	0	0	8	1	5	0	0.5	33
Saxon, Les	16	12	3	33*	61	6.78	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	23
Harmer, Matthew J	4.5	4	0	28	56	14.00	0	0	1	0	3	0	1	17
Dungey, Donald L	5	4	0	33	53	13.25	0	0	4	0	4	0	1	35
Khan, Ishfaq	8	7	3	14	49	12.25	0	0	7	0	3	0	0	10
Khan, Afrasiab	9	8	3	20*	47	9.40	0	0	5	0	1	0	0	23
Solanki, Mauneek	8	6	1	26	44	8.80	0	0	3	1	6	0	0.5	12
Pate, Alex	6	5	2	21	43	14.33	0	0	8	0	2	0	0	42
Sumanasinghe, Shaminda	9	8	1	19	42	6.00	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0
Patel, Smit	13	10	6	14	40	10.00	0	0	5	0	6	0	2.5	49
Rive, Derryn	10	8	3	11	39	7.80	0	0	5	0	10	0	0.5	86
Bhan, Ujjwal	15	10	4	22*	39	6.50	0	0	4	0	6	0	2.5	41
deRozario, Trevor	11	8	2	19	39	6.50	0	0	2	0	2	0	0.5	59
Davies, Glenn M	7	5	2	10*	37	12.33	0	0	2	0	6	1	1	55
Bartholomew, Adam	5	4	2	16*	36	18.00	0	0	6	0	2	0	0	17
Duncan, Rodney	15	11	4	10	36	5.14	0	0	1	1	3	1	0	40
Shah, Hiten	12.5	7	5	12*	32	16.00	0	0	4	1	3	0	0	30
Linehan, Paul J	2	2	0	24	29	14.50	0	0	5	0	0	0	0	6
Walley, Yagan	3.5	4	0	20	27	6.75	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	2
deJager, Kenneth	10	7	2	10	26	5.20	0	0	3	0	2	0	0	23
Cheeseman, Daniel	13	6	2	14	24	6.00	0	0	3	0	3	0	0	26
Robson, Matthew	13	7	3	13	24	6.00	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	36
Lall, Vishwas	1.5	1	0	22	22	22.00	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	1
Britton, Evan R	6	5	2	7	15	5.00	0	0	2	0	2	0	0	17
Pearson, Glen	1	1	0	10	10	10.00	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	7
Bormolini, Zachary	1	1	1	4*	4	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Henderson, Liam	7	2	0	2	2	1.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	36
Kaseke, Samuel	6	5	1	1	2	0.50	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	18
Adams, Bryan	10	6	1	2	2	0.40	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	35
Cairns, Stephen G	3	3	0	1	1	0.33	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6
Dawson, Stafford G	1	0	0	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	14
Dixon, Bradley	1	0	0	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ghani, Asim	2	0		N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Campbell, James	2	2	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Naley, Gordon	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	9
Riches, Stephen	2	2	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Season Bowling

Player	Balls	М	w	Runs	Ave	BB	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Daye, Brendan	1625	85	38	740	19.47	7/32	2	1	42.76	2.73
Shah, Hiten	1127	57	33	460	13.94	6/69	1	0	34.15	2.45
D'Souza, Timothy	861	27	26	482	18.54	4/52	0	0	33.12	3.36
Robson, Matthew	562	25	25	252	10.08	4/27	0	0	22.48	2.69
Patel, Smit	666	28	22	345	15.68	5/20	1	0	30.27	3.11
Horan, Thomas	493	8	20	348	17.40	4/41	0	0	24.65	4.24
McMulkin, Calum J	552	17	19	314	16.53	4/21	0	0	29.05	3.41
Stace, Andrew	684	18	19	360	18.95	3/13	0	0	36.00	3.16
Smith, Jay P	644	22	18	363	20.17	4/29	0	0	35.78	3.38
Daw, Cameron	629	15	17	382	22.47	4/35	0	0	37.00	3.64
Bhan, Ujjwal	766	33	17	406	23.88	4/7	0	0	45.06	3.18
Duncan, Rodney	609	13	17	476	28.00	3/16	0	0	35.82	4.69
Ericson, Joshua	847	27	17	499	29.35	3/21	0	0	49.82	3.53
Khan, Ishfaq	485	16	16	190	11.88	5/21	1	0	30.31	2.35
Paice, Steven	487	15	16	305	19.06	3/30	0	0	30.44	3.76
Cheeseman, Daniel	606	15	16	343	21.44	4/33	0	0	37.88	3.40
Lockyer, Christopher	599	22	15	249	16.60	3/8	0	0	39.93	2.49
Smith, Peter C	563	19	14	247	17.64	3/18	0	0	40.21	2.63
Solanki, Mauneek	292	7	13	153	11.77	4/11	0	0	22.46	3.14
Britton, Evan R	369	23	13	167	12.85	5/16	1	0	28.38	2.72
Duncan, Mitchell J	600	20	12	332	27.67	3/47	0	0	50.00	3.32
Thomas, Jai P	354	5	11	246	22.36	3/30	0	0	32.18	4.17
Cleary, Simon V	294	4	11	276	25.09	3/16	0	0	26.73	5.63
Sumanasinghe, Shaminda	238	5	10	158	15.80	4/18	0	0	23.80	3.98
Paice, Laurence	484	17	10	227	22.70	3/18	0	0	48.40	2.81
deJager, Kenneth	281	0	10	273	27.30	3/52	0	0	28.10	5.83
deRozario, Trevor	264	4	9	245	27.22	2/26	0	0	29.33	5.57
Shearing, Steven J	128	1	8	128	16.00	4/27	0	0	16.00	6.00
Henderson, Liam	282	4	8	193	24.13	3/14	0	0	35.25	4.11
Saxon, Les	325	2	8	295	36.88	2/19	0	0	40.63	5.45
McKeig, Donald R	174	6	7	103	14.71	2/8	0	0	24.86	3.55
Leng, Darren	360	5	7	253	36.14	2/26	0	0	51.43	4.22

Season Bowling (continued)

Player	Balls	М	w	Runs	Ave	BB	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Vlismas, Michael	190	6	6	93	15.50	3/19	0	0	31.67	2.94
Magill, Anthony J	264	3	6	174	29.00	3/17	0	0	44.00	3.95
Bartholomew, Adam	198	11	5	97	19.40	2/14	0	0	39.60	2.94
Chapman, Blair	370	11	5	201	40.20	1/6	0	0	74.00	3.26
Daye, Steven M	50	0	4	28	7.00	4/26	0	0	12.50	3.36
Ghani, Asim	60	1	4	30	7.50	3/15	0	0	15.00	3.00
Smith, Kieran E	90	0	4	49	12.25	3/21	0	0	22.50	3.27
Dawson, Michael	83	1	4	82	20.50	3/30	0	0	20.75	5.93
Harmer, Matthew J	168	5	4	104	26.00	2/33	0	0	42.00	3.71
Lockyer, Matthew	208	5	4	107	26.75	2/25	0	0	52.00	3.09
Adams, Bryan	168	1	4	172	43.00	3/53	0	0	42.00	6.14
Perrozzi, Serge	200	2	4	203	50.75	2/8	0	0	50.00	6.09
Hewitt, Damien P	54	0	3	62	20.67	2/30	0	0	18.00	6.89
George, Jamie	188	4	3	117	39.00	1/9	0	0	62.67	3.73
Walley, Yagan	144	2	2	84	42.00	1/22	0	0	72.00	3.50
Pate, Alex	73	0	2	112	56.00	1/17	0	0	36.50	9.21
Dart, Geoffrey	12	0	1	6	6.00	1/6	0	0	12.00	3.00
Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	54	2	1	19	19.00	1/19	0	0	54.00	2.11
Lall, Vishwas	24	1	1	19	19.00	1/19	0	0	24.00	4.75
SINGH, Manvir	18	0	1	20	20.00	1/20	0	0	18.00	6.67
Martin, Leigh	48	0	1	35	35.00	1/35	0	0	48.00	4.38
Rive, Derryn	60	0	1	70	70.00	1/23	0	0	60.00	7.00
Saxon, Shane	6	0	0	4	N/A	0/4	0	0	N/A	4.00
Sibson, Jarrad	18	0	0	8	N/A	0/8	0	0	N/A	2.67
Daquino, Edward	12	0	0	10	N/A	0/10	0	0	N/A	5.00
Kenna, Jarryd	24	1	0	11	N/A	0/11	0	0	N/A	2.75
Linehan, Paul J	12	0	0	16	N/A	0/16	0	0	N/A	8.00
Bormolini, Zachary	18	0	0	20	N/A	0/20	0	0	N/A	6.67
Khan, Afrasiab	18	0	0	20	N/A	0/20	0	0	N/A	6.67
Mathew, Mobin	48	3	0	22	N/A	0/9	0	0	N/A	2.75
Pearson, Glen	18	0	0	29	N/A	0/29	0	0	N/A	9.67
Dixon, Bradley	18	0	0	30	N/A	0/30	0	0	N/A	10.00
Liddle, Jesse	78	1	0	61	N/A	0/14	0	0	N/A	4.69

Ralph Dungey Award

Player	Points	Player	Points
Daye, Brendan	638 *	McKeig, Donald R	188
Ericson, Joshua	574 *	Vlismas, Michael	188
Paice, Steven	550 *	Cheeseman, Daniel	180
Daw, Cameron	514 *	George, Jamie	175
Shearing, Steven J	514 *	Dawson, Michael	170
Saxon, Shane	441 *	Dawson, Ken C	167
Paice, Laurence	425 *	Khan, Ishfaq	166
Horan, Tim	411 *	Saxon, Les	164
Thomas, Jai P	401	Britton, Evan R	162
Lockyer, Matthew	398	Warren, Justin A	159
Stace, Andrew	390 *	deJager, Kenneth	149
D'Souza, Timothy	376 *	Liddle, Jesse	142
Fanayan, Omid	372	Sibson, Jarrad	142
Pritchard, Christopher P	357 *	Sumanasinghe, Shaminda	142
Horan, Thomas	347 *	Tilbury, Rhys	142
Martin, Leigh	329	Rive, Derryn	135
Shah, Hiten	326 *	Solanki, Mauneek	133
Smith, Peter C	321	Henderson, Liam	118
McMulkin, Calum J	313	Harmer, Matthew J	113
Cleary, Simon V	309	SINGH, Manvir	112
Magill, Anthony J	309	Pate, Alex	105
Patel, Smit	308	Bartholomew, Adam	103
Daye, Steven M	296	Solanki, Lilesh	100
Smith, Jay P	284	Davies, Glenn M	92
Lockyer, Christopher	283 *	Dungey, Donald L	88
Riches, Jamey S	283 *	Hewitt, Glen	87
Chapman, Blair	282	Adams, Bryan	77
Robson, Matthew	279 *	Khan, Afrasiab	70
Daquino, Edward	274	Walley, Yagan	49
Leng, Darren	267	Ghani, Asim	40
Smith, Kieran E	259	Linehan, Paul J	35
Mathew, Mobin	255 *	Lall, Vishwas	33
McNab, Cameron R	247	Kaseke, Samuel	20
Duncan, Rodney	246 *	Pearson, Glen	17
Perrozzi, Serge	241	Dawson, Stafford	14
Bhan, Ujjwal	238	Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	12
Kenna, Jarryd	224	Naley, Gordon	9
Welsh, Jos	218 *	Cairns, Stephen G	7
Duncan, Mitchell J	212	Bormolini, Zachary	4
Dart, Geoffrey	198	Campbell, James	0
Hewitt, Damien P	195	Dixon, Bradley	0
Fanayan, Fab	193	Riches, Stephen	0
deRozario, Trevor	188		

* Denotes a player ineligable for this award due to winning another maor award

Consistency Award

Player	Points	Player	Points		
Daye, Brendan	783	Welsh, Jos	218		
Ericson, Joshua	659	659 Hewitt, Damien P			
Paice, Steven	625 Saxon, Les		204		
Daw, Cameron	594 Dart, Geoffrey		203		
Shearing, Steven J	554 Vlismas, Michael		203		
Stace, Andrew	485 deJager, Kenneth		199		
D'Souza, Timothy	471 Fanayan, Fab		193		
Paice, Laurence	470	•			
Shah, Hiten	466	466 Dawson, Michael			
Thomas, Jai P	456	6 George, Jamie			
Horan, Thomas	447	Solanki, Mauneek			
Saxon, Shane	441	Dawson, Ken C	167		
Lockyer, Matthew	418	418 Warren, Justin A			
Patel, Smit	418	Henderson, Liam	158		
Horan, Tim	411	Liddle, Jesse	142		
McMulkin, Calum J	398	Sibson, Jarrad	142		
Robson, Matthew	389	Tilbury, Rhys	142		
Smith, Peter C	376	Rive, Derryn	140		
Smith, Jay P	374	Harmer, Matthew J	133		
Fanayan, Omid	372	Bartholomew, Adam	128		
Cleary, Simon V	364	SINGH, Manvir	117		
Lockyer, Christopher	358	Pate, Alex	115		
Pritchard, Christopher P	357	Solanki, Lilesh	100		
Magill, Anthony J	339	Adams, Bryan	97		
Martin, Leigh	334	Davies, Glenn M	92		
Duncan, Rodney	331	Dungey, Donald L	88		
Bhan, Ujjwal	318	Hewitt, Glen	87		
Daye, Steven M	316	Khan, Afrasiab	70		
Chapman, Blair	307	Ghani, Asim	60		
Leng, Darren	302	Walley, Yagan	59		
Riches, Jamey S	283	Lall, Vishwas	38		
Smith, Kieran E	279	Linehan, Paul J	35		
Daquino, Edward	274	Kaseke, Samuel	20		
Duncan, Mitchell J	267	Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	17		
Perrozzi, Serge	261	Pearson, Glen	17		
Mathew, Mobin	255	Dawson, Stafford	14		
McNab, Cameron R	247	Naley, Gordon	9		
Cheeseman, Daniel	245	Cairns, Stephen G	7		
deRozario, Trevor	233	Bormolini, Zachary	4		
Khan, Ishfaq	231	Campbell, James	0		
Britton, Evan R	227	Dixon, Bradley	0		
Kenna, Jarryd	224	Riches, Stephen	0		
McKeig, Donald R	223				

Career Batting

Dungey, Donald L 563.5 657 88 117 11883 20.7 43 4 7 963 76 21.0 34.5 37.2 Warren, Justin A 244 278 34 120' 6582 26.98 3 25 57 15 16 0 2.5 35.1 Cairns, Stephen G 430.5 556 72 74 6174 12.76 14 0 76 404 8 139 0 5 27.0 Hayward, Andrew 306.5 326 48 102' 5355 19.26 20 2 43 521 17 17.2 9 21 40.8 Hayward, Andrew 306.5 220 214 4302 12.80 21.2 23 453 88 119 5 1 7 45.5 Fernandez, Ron G. 205.52 20 21.41 3176 18.28 13 2 24.30 9 12.6 1	Player	М	Т	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	Dk's	4's	6's	Cat	St	RO	Bdy%
Shearing, Steven J 246,5 276 51 1144 6493 28.86 36 3 25 547 15 86 0 2.5 35.1 Cairns, Stephen G 430.5 556 72 74 6174 12.76 14 0 76 404 8 19 15 12.5 72.0 Hayward, Brian 312 356 326 48 1022 12.87.8 2.3 2.5 38.8 8 119 5 1.8.3 Hayward, Andrew 235.5 255 32 114 4959 21.28 23 2 15 481 51 7 7.5 57.5 7.5	Dungey, Donald L	563.5 6	657	98	117	11583	20.72	43	4	67	963	76	212	0	34.5	37.2
Caims, Štephen G 430.5 556 72 74 6174 12.76 14 0 76 404 8 139 0 5 27.0 Hayward, Brian 312 366 30 107 6122 18.78 24 2 23 603 16 11.5 54.10 Magill, Anthony J 27.75 233 66 112 5016 22.10 19 3 29 499 155 128 0 31.5 58.3 Fanayan, Omid 162.5 114 4133 26.58 23 1 1 18 489 17 9 5 1.7 7.4 61.54 George, Jamie 200 221 16 160 141 413 24.84 87 84.0 13 55.42 14.4 18.84 78 40.0 13 55.39 65.42 10 13 55.42 12.14 13.07 17.170 13 17 14.4	Warren, Justin A	244 2	278	34	120*	6582	26.98	27	4	25	657	163	184	5	11.5	54.8
Hayward, Bran312326530107612218.782423260.316191511.541.0Harmer, Matthew J306.532648102'535519.20243521171722140.8Magill, Anthrony J277.529366112501622.101329.99155180333.0Fanayan, Omid162.518421112433326.58231448.867840330.0Smith, Peter C.16518616141413124.301921548.8678401355.3Paice, Steven20022116160306619.3514118.448678401355.3Dawson, Ken C203.52271593917017.5012020242136311.584.9Dawson, Ken C203.52271593917017.50202023.884119031.549.6Chapman, Keith200229259536714.6290023.841.534.0111.584.0Daves, Glenn M255.52505470'3491551102828792.9324 <t< td=""><td>Shearing, Steven J</td><td>246.5 2</td><td>276</td><td>51</td><td>114*</td><td>6493</td><td>28.86</td><td>36</td><td>3</td><td>25</td><td>547</td><td>15</td><td>86</td><td>0</td><td>2.5</td><td>35.1</td></t<>	Shearing, Steven J	246.5 2	276	51	114*	6493	28.86	36	3	25	547	15	86	0	2.5	35.1
Harmer, Matthew J306.532648102'535519.2620243521171792140.8Magil, Anthony J277.529366112501622.1019329499151533.3Fanayan, Omid162.518421112433326.582321548017951747.5Fernandez, Ron G.205.52023101421621.4020112344458309954.4George, Jamie2002211616141314.30131222443011445.5Paice, Steven212.523422144387618.28131222448574945.543.9Dawson, Ken C203.52271599371017.50120202.4211.445.8Velsh, Jos12114913102364226.782411.444327031.549.6Davies, Glenn M255.5555470'339313.156022.9211.1141.32.9Fanayan, Fab176.5182171717.23031.540.22.334.41.191.25.4Daquio, Edward156.5	Cairns, Stephen G	430.5 5	556	72	74	6174	12.76	14	0	76	404	8	139	0	5	27.0
Magill, Anthony J 277.5 293 66 112 5016 22.10 19 3 29 499 155 128 0 31.5 58.3 Hayward, Andrew 235.5 26 32 114 4959 21.28 23 3 25 38 11 32.5 Fernanyan, Omid 162.5 184 11 4213 24.03 16 18 48 17 95 48 97 0 9 54.4 George, Jamie 200 21 16 160 3966 19.35 12 18 448 67 84 0 13 55.3 Paice, Steven 212.5 234 22 144 3876 18.28 13 2 25 430 0 15 55.3 56.7 15 12 0 30 23 15.5 52.5 52 54 70 3393 17.55 11 0 28 287 9 29 24 16.5 35.0 Davies, Glenn M 255.5 150	Hayward, Brian	312 3	356	30	107	6122	18.78	24	2	32	603	16	199	15	11.5	41.0
Hayward, Andrew238.52653214'495921.2823325388811951132.3Fanayan, Omid162.514821112433326.58232015481195177.5Fernandez, Ron G.205.522310141621.4010122034445830339.0Smith, Peter C.16518616141413124.301921548154970954.4George, Jamie20022116160396613.851322254.30912611445.8Pritchard, Christopher P17019011117377721.102131714048.543.9Dawson, Ken C205.527.07364226.78241114448.543.9Davies, Glenn M255.525.70366714.62903023.811.526.7Paice, Laurence150.17614116345421.811420292416.535.0Davies, Glenn M255.525.026321.161321430087710.540.2Dave, Brendan170.5181717.0122.01131224.40301.5	Harmer, Matthew J	306.5 3	326	48	102*	5355	19.26	20	2	43	521	17	172	9	21	40.8
Fanayan, Omid162.518421112433326.58232321548917951747.5Fernandez, Ron G.205.522023101421621.40201202445830339.0Smith, Peter C.1651661614141324.01011118448678401355.3Paice, Steven212.523422144387618.281322530912.611445.8Paice, Steven212.52271599371017.5012020222136305.528.2Welsh, Jos12114913102364226.7824111144327.031.549.6Chapman, Keith200269259556714.6290.03028.87929.32416.535.0Dark, Greg2132943677339313.15602.921114171723.98Fanayan, Fab176.511014'30622.3514214300877<0	Magill, Anthony J	277.5 2	293	66	112	5016	22.10	19	3	29	499	155	128	0	31.5	58.3
Fernanciez, Ron G. 205.5 220 23 101 4216 21.40 20 1 20 344 45 83 0 3 39.0 Smith, Peter C. 165 166 161 141 4131 24.30 19 2 15 841 0 13 55.3 Paice, Steven 212.5 234 22 144 3876 16.28 13 12 44 7 149 4 8.5 43.9 Dawson, Ken 203.5 227 15 99 3710 17.50 12 3 6.3 1 1.5 26.7 Velsh, Jos 121 149 13 102 3642 26.78 24 1 1 44 4.85 4.19 0 3.5 41.65 Davies, Glenn M 255.5 54 70* 33.93 1.315 6 0 29 1 1.114 17 1 2.39 Fanzaman,	Hayward, Andrew	238.5 2	265	32	114*	4959	21.28	23	3	25	388	8	119	5	11	32.3
Smith, Peter C. 165 186 16 141 4131 24.30 19 2 15 481 54 97 0 9 54.4 George, Jamie 200 221 16 160 3966 19.35 14 1 18 48 78 14 1 18 48 78 14 14 14 45.8 Pritchard, Christopher P 170 190 11 117 3777 21.10 21 2 24.21 3 63 0 5.5 28.2 Welsh, Jos 121 149 13 102 3642 26.78 24 1 11 44 2.7 38 0 63 1 1.5 26.7 Paice, Eurence 150 176 14 116 3454 21.32 14 2 23 38 4 119 0 3.5 6.0 7.5 7.0 3.5 7.0 3.5 7.0 1.5 7.0 1.5 7.0 2.1 2.1 2.9 2.6 0.1	Fanayan, Omid	162.5 1	184	21	112	4333	26.58	23	2	15	489	17	95	1	7	47.5
George, Jamie20022116160396619.3514118448678401355.3Paice, Steven212.523422144387618.28132224011445.8Pritchard, Christopher P17010011117377721.1021317404714948.543.9Dawson, Ken C203.52271599371017.5012020242136305.528.6Chapman, Keith2002692595365714.62903023806311.554.6Paice, Laurence15017614116345421.3214223348411902554.70*Paixe, Glenn M255.52505470*333913.15602921111417123.9Fanayan, Fab176.515119104*310623.53142214300877010.540.2Daye, Brendan150.515119104*310623.5314214300877015.536.6Daye, Brendan170.5151141302191216.132143001328.91562 </td <td>Fernandez, Ron G.</td> <td>205.5 2</td> <td>220</td> <td>23</td> <td>101</td> <td>4216</td> <td>21.40</td> <td>20</td> <td>1</td> <td>20</td> <td>344</td> <td>45</td> <td>83</td> <td>0</td> <td>3</td> <td>39.0</td>	Fernandez, Ron G.	205.5 2	220	23	101	4216	21.40	20	1	20	344	45	83	0	3	39.0
Paice, Steven 212.5 234 22 144 3876 18.28 13 2 25 430 9 126 1 14 45.8 Pritchard, Christopher P 170 190 11 117 3777 21.10 21 3 17 440 7 149 4 8.5 43.9 Dawson, Ken C 203.5 227 15 99 3710 17.50 12 0 20.242 13 63 0 5.5 28.28 Welsh, Jos 121 149 13 102 3642 26.78 24 11 14 40 3.5 41.0 Davies, Glenn M 255.5 55 56 7* 3333 1.5 6 0 29.201 1 14 17 12.7 24.3 25 54.7 7* 3333 1.4 2 14 369 26.2 36.2 37.0 0 1.5 40.2 1.63 2 1.44 369 21.2 54.2 154.2 14.2 144 1.5 11.1 </td <td>Smith, Peter C.</td> <td>165 1</td> <td>186</td> <td>16</td> <td>141</td> <td>4131</td> <td>24.30</td> <td>19</td> <td>2</td> <td>15</td> <td>481</td> <td>54</td> <td>97</td> <td>0</td> <td>9</td> <td>54.4</td>	Smith, Peter C.	165 1	186	16	141	4131	24.30	19	2	15	481	54	97	0	9	54.4
Pritchard, Christopher P 170 190 11 117 3777 21.10 21 3 17 404 7 149 4 8.5 43.9 Dawson, Ken C 203.5 227 15 99 3710 17.50 12 0 20 242 13 63 0 5.5 28.2 Welsh, Jos 121 149 13 102 3642 26.78 24 1 11 404 32 70 3 1.5 49.6 Chapman, Keith 200 265 250 54 70" 3439 17.55 11 0 28 28 79 29.3 24 16.5 35.0 Davises, Glenn M 255.5 250 54 70" 3333 1.5 6 0 29 10 111 17 12.9 Fanayan, Fab 176.5 182 17 174 2480 1.685 7 2 12 26 9 57 0 2.5 37.8 Perrozzi, Serge 148 1	George, Jamie	200 2	221	16	160	3966	19.35	14	1	18	448	67	84	0	13	55.3
Dawson, Ken C 203.5 227 15 99 3710 17.50 12 0 20 242 13 63 0 5.5 28.2 Welsh, Jos 121 149 13 102 3642 26.78 24 1 11 404 32 70 3 1.5 49.6 Chapman, Keith 200 269 25 95 3567 14.62 9 0 328 0 3<1	Paice, Steven	212.5 2	234	22	144	3876	18.28	13	2	25	430	9	126	1	14	45.8
Welsh, Jos 121 149 13 102 3642 26.7 24 1 11 404 32 70 3 1.5 49.6 Chapman, Keith 200 269 25 95 3567 14.62 9 0 0 23 288 0 63 1 1.5 24.7 Paice, Laurence 150 176 141 116 3454 21.32 14 2 23 388 4 119 0 3.5 41.0 Davies, Glenn M 255.5 250 54 70' 34393 13.15 6 0 29 201 1 114 17 1 23.9 Fangayan, Fab 176.5 182 17 174' 3280 19.88 11 2 14 300 8 77 0 22 26 0 1.5 37.8 Daquino, Edward 160 165 21 151 2494 21.30 0 13 20 93 27 0 3.5 63.6	Pritchard, Christopher P	170 1	190	11	117	3777	21.10	21	3	17	404	7	149	4	8.5	43.9
Chapman, Keith2002692595356714.62903023806311.526.7Paice, Laurence15017614116345421.3214223348411903.541.0Davies, Glenn M255.52505470*343917.551102826799232416.535.0Panayan, Fab176.518217117*328019.88112274072513491254.2Daye, Brendan150.515119104*310623.5314214300877010.540.2Daye, Brendan16016525150296321.1613214309202801.553.78Perrozzi, Serge1481592181294021.3013013289156206.542.4Lockyer, Christopher2202024473255916.20702215206363.61136.6Dart, Geoffrey2232203969*208311.513038163720910222.533.3Martin, Leigh100.5106188721222.8690515 <td< td=""><td>Dawson, Ken C</td><td>203.5 2</td><td>227</td><td>15</td><td>99</td><td>3710</td><td>17.50</td><td>12</td><td>0</td><td>20</td><td>242</td><td>13</td><td>63</td><td>0</td><td>5.5</td><td>28.2</td></td<>	Dawson, Ken C	203.5 2	227	15	99	3710	17.50	12	0	20	242	13	63	0	5.5	28.2
Paice, Laurence15017614116345421.3214223348411903.541.0Davies, Glenn M255.52505470°343917.551102828792932416.535.0Dart, Greg2132943677°339313.156029201111417123.9Fanayan, Fab176.51821717*328019.88112274407253491254.2Daye, Brendan150.515119104'310623.5314214300877010.554.2Daquino, Edward16016525150296321.161321430915620153.9Hewitt, Glen171.518712117294816.857221268601166.5Cleary, Simon V107.511514130219121.697213209932703.563.6Dart, Geoffrey2232022994105*175918.524115173702.533.3Martin, Leigh102.51061887715514.6340151770 </td <td>Welsh, Jos</td> <td>121 1</td> <td>149</td> <td>13</td> <td>102</td> <td>3642</td> <td>26.78</td> <td>24</td> <td>1</td> <td>11</td> <td>404</td> <td>32</td> <td>70</td> <td>3</td> <td>1.5</td> <td>49.6</td>	Welsh, Jos	121 1	149	13	102	3642	26.78	24	1	11	404	32	70	3	1.5	49.6
Davies, Glenn M255.52505470*343917.551102828792932416.535.0Dart, Greg2132943677*339313.156029201111417123.9Fanayan, Fab176.51821717*328019.881122740725134910.540.2Daye, Brendan150.515119104*310623.531421430087701.540.2Daquino, Edward16016525150296321.161321430087702.537.8Perrozzi, Serge1481592181294021.3013013289156206.542.4Lockyer, Christopher220247325916.20721320993703.563.6Dart, Geoffrey2232203969*208311.51303816372.9102.533.3Martin, Leigh102.51061887212.22.869052.55115754.6Daye, Steven M94.594105*17514.634015174957107.542.7 <td>Chapman, Keith</td> <td>200 2</td> <td>269</td> <td>25</td> <td>95</td> <td>3567</td> <td>14.62</td> <td>9</td> <td>0</td> <td>30</td> <td>238</td> <td>0</td> <td>63</td> <td>1</td> <td>1.5</td> <td>26.7</td>	Chapman, Keith	200 2	269	25	95	3567	14.62	9	0	30	238	0	63	1	1.5	26.7
Dart, Greg2132943677*339313.156029201111417123.9Fanayan, Fab176.518217117*328019.88112274072513491254.2Daye, Brendan150.515119104*310623.531421430920280153.9Hewitt, Glen171.51871217294816.85722122695702.537.8Perrozzi, Serge1481592181294021.3013013289156206.542.4Lockyer, Christopher2202024473255916.207022155263.601136.6Dart, Geoffrey2232203969*208311.51303816377<0	Paice, Laurence	150 1	176	14	116	3454	21.32	14	2	23	348	4	119	0	3.5	41.0
Fanayan, Fab176.518217117*328019.88112274072513491254.2Daye, Brendan150.515119104*310623.5314214300877010.540.2Daquino, Edward16016525150296321.161321436920280153.9Hewitt, Glen171.518712117294816.857221268601136.6Lockyer, Christopher2202024473255916.20702213209932703.563.6Dart, Geoffrey2232203969*208311.51303816372091022.533.3Martin, Leigh102.51061887201222.86905505115720.544.0Daye, Steven M94.5994105*175918.524115174970239.80Chapman, Bair19181100466175514.63401517497066.542.4Dave, Steven M94.597134138.415.041151749710 <td>Davies, Glenn M</td> <td>255.5 2</td> <td>250</td> <td>54</td> <td>70*</td> <td>3439</td> <td>17.55</td> <td>11</td> <td>0</td> <td>28</td> <td>287</td> <td>9</td> <td>293</td> <td>24</td> <td>16.5</td> <td>35.0</td>	Davies, Glenn M	255.5 2	250	54	70*	3439	17.55	11	0	28	287	9	293	24	16.5	35.0
Daye, Brendan150.515119104*310623.5314214300877010.540.2Daquino, Edward16016525150296321.161321436920280153.9Hewitt, Glen171.518712117294816.85722126595702.537.8Perrozzi, Serge1481592181294021.3013013289156206.542.4Lockyer, Christopher2202024473255916.207022195268601136.6Cleary, Simon V107.51151413021921.687213209932703.533.3Martin, Leigh102.51061887201222.66905205115720.544.0Daye, Steven M94.5994105*175918.52411517132702.638.0Chapman, Bali1001457171519.947066.109966.544.5DSouza, Timothy160.51525844126813.4901814102.930.02.21414 </td <td>Dart, Greg</td> <td>213 2</td> <td>294</td> <td>36</td> <td>77*</td> <td>3393</td> <td>13.15</td> <td>6</td> <td>0</td> <td>29</td> <td>201</td> <td>1</td> <td>114</td> <td>17</td> <td>1</td> <td>23.9</td>	Dart, Greg	213 2	294	36	77*	3393	13.15	6	0	29	201	1	114	17	1	23.9
Daquino, Edward16016525150296321.161321436920280153.9Hewitt, Glen171.518712117294816.85722126595702.537.8Perrozzi, Serge1481592181294021.3013013289156206.542.4Lockyer, Christopher2202024473255916.207022195268601136.6Cleary, Simon V107.511514130219121.697213209932703.563.6Dart, Geoffrey2232203969*208311.51303816372091022.533.3Matin, Leigh102.51061887201222.86905205115720.544.0Daye, Steven M94.5994105*175918.5241151713270239.9McKeig, Donald R120124466175514.634015174957107.542.7Linehan, Paul J811001457171519.947066544.5D'So	Fanayan, Fab	176.5 1	182	17	117*	3280	19.88	11	2	27	407	25	134	9	12	54.2
Hewitt, Glen171.518712117294816.857222126595702.537.8Perrozzi, Serge1481592181294021.3013013289156206.542.4Lockyer, Christopher2202024473255916.207022195268601136.6Cleary, Simon V107.511514130219121.697213209932703.563.6Dart, Geoffrey2232203969*208311.5130381637702.513.702.533.3Martin, Leigh102.5106188720122.869052051157107.542.7Linehan, Paul J811001457171519.947061099361628.6Thomas, Jai P91.58913101*167322.018281590170038.02Chapman, Blair1911875545165912.5700271361400833.2D'Souza, Timothy160.51525844126813.49001412<	Daye, Brendan	150.5 1	151	19	104*	3106	23.53	14	2	14	300	8	77	0	10.5	40.2
Perrozzi, Serge1481592181294021.3013013289156206.542.4Lockyer, Christopher2202024473255916.207022195268601136.6Cleary, Simon V107.511514130219121.697213209932703.563.6Dart, Geoffrey2232203969*208311.5130381637201022.533.3Mattin, Leigh102.51061887201222.86905205115720239.9McKeig, Donald R120124466175514.634015174957107.542.7Linehan, Paul J811001457171519.94706109936166.68.6Thomas, Jai P91.58913101*167322.078281590170038.02Chapman, Blair1911875545165912.5700271361400833.2Sibson, Jarrad100.5997134138415.0431161391079 <td< td=""><td>Daquino, Edward</td><td>160 1</td><td>165</td><td>25</td><td>150</td><td>2963</td><td>21.16</td><td>13</td><td>2</td><td>14</td><td>369</td><td>20</td><td>28</td><td>0</td><td>1</td><td>53.9</td></td<>	Daquino, Edward	160 1	165	25	150	2963	21.16	13	2	14	369	20	28	0	1	53.9
Lockyer, Christopher2202024473255916.207022195268601136.6Cleary, Simon V107.511514130219121.697213209932703.563.6Dart, Geoffrey2232203969*208311.51303816372091022.533.3Mattin, Leigh102.51061887201222.86905205115720.544.0Daye, Steven M94.5994105*175918.5241151713270239.9McKeig, Donald R120124466175514.634015174957107.542.7Linehan, Paul J811001457171519.947061099361628.6Thomas, Jai P91.5891310*167322.070271361<40	Hewitt, Glen	171.5 1	187	12	117	2948	16.85	7	2	21	265	9	57	0	2.5	37.8
Cleary, Simon V107.511514130219121.697213209932703.563.6Dart, Geoffrey2232203969*208311.51303816372091022.533.3Martin, Leigh102.51061887201222.86905205115720.544.0Daye, Steven M94.5994105*175918.5241151713270239.9McKeig, Donald R120124466175514.634015174957107.542.7Linehan, Paul J811001457171519.947061099361628.6Thomas, Jai P91.58913101*167322.018281590170038.0Chapman, Blair1911875545165912.5700271361400833.2Sibson, Jarrad100.5997134138415.043116139107966.544.6Dawson, Stafford G1011011359120113.6530141012300234.6	Perrozzi, Serge	148 1	159	21	81	2940	21.30	13	0	13	289	15	62	0	6.5	42.4
Dart, Geoffrey2232203969*208311.51303816372091022.533.3Martin, Leigh102.51061887201222.86905205115720.544.0Daye, Steven M94.5994105*175918.5241151713270239.9McKeig, Donald R120124466175514.634015174957107.542.7Linehan, Paul J811001457171519.947061099361628.6Thomas, Jai P91.58913101*167322.018281590170038.0Chapman, Blair1911875545165912.570027131400833.2Sibson, Jarrad100.5997134138415.043116139107966.5544.5D'Souza, Timothy160.51525844126813.49001812213730644.6Dawson, Stafford G1011011359120113.6530141012300232.1 </td <td>Lockyer, Christopher</td> <td>220 2</td> <td>202</td> <td>44</td> <td>73</td> <td>2559</td> <td>16.20</td> <td>7</td> <td>0</td> <td>22</td> <td>195</td> <td>26</td> <td>86</td> <td>0</td> <td>11</td> <td>36.6</td>	Lockyer, Christopher	220 2	202	44	73	2559	16.20	7	0	22	195	26	86	0	11	36.6
Martin, Leigh102.51061887201222.86905205115720.544.0Daye, Steven M94.5994105*175918.5241151713270239.9McKeig, Donald R120124466175514.634015174957107.542.7Linehan, Paul J811001457171519.947061099361628.6Thomas, Jai P91.58913101*167322.018281590170038.0Chapman, Blair1911875545165912.5700271361400833.2Sibson, Jarrad100.5997134138415.043116139107966.544.5D'Souza, Timothy160.51525844126813.49001812213730644.6Dawson, Stafford G1011011359120113.6530141012300232.1Saxon, Shane49.5523150111222.692141221412.558.1H	Cleary, Simon V	107.5 1	115	14	130	2191	21.69	7	2	13	209	93	27	0	3.5	63.6
Daye, Steven M94.5994105*175918.5241151713270239.9McKeig, Donald R120124466175514.634015174957107.542.7Linehan, Paul J811001457171519.947061099361628.6Thomas, Jai P91.58913101*167322.018281590170038.0Chapman, Blair1911875545165912.5700271361400833.2Sibson, Jarrad100.5997134138415.043116139107966.544.5D'Souza, Timothy160.51525844126813.49001812213730644.6Dawson, Stafford G1011011359120113.6530141012300234.6deJager, Kenneth145.51252940113311.800014826550232.1Saxon, Shane49.5523150111222.692141221412.558.1H	Dart, Geoffrey	223 2	220	39	69*	2083	11.51	3	0	38	163	7	209	10	22.5	33.3
McKeig, Donald R120124466175514.634015174957107.542.7Linehan, Paul J811001457171519.947061099361628.6Thomas, Jai P91.58913101*167322.018281590170038.0Chapman, Blair1911875545165912.5700271361400833.2Sibson, Jarrad100.5997134138415.043116139107966.544.5D'Souza, Timothy160.51525844126813.4900141012300234.6deJager, Kenneth145.51252940113311.800014826550232.1Saxon, Shane49.5523150111222.69214121412.558.1Hewitt, Damien P.66.578871107515.362081206200348.0McNab, Cameron R119.51192850*102711.291021851631633.7Arm	Martin, Leigh	102.5 1	106	18	87	2012	22.86	9	0	5	205	11	57	2	0.5	44.0
Linehan, Paul J81 1001457171519.947061099361628.6Thomas, Jai P91.58913101*167322.018281590170038.0Chapman, Blair1911875545165912.5700271361400833.2Sibson, Jarrad100.5997134138415.043116139107966.544.5D'Souza, Timothy160.51525844126813.49001812213730644.6Dawson, Stafford G1011011359120113.6530141012300234.6deJager, Kenneth145.51252940113311.800014826550232.1Saxon, Shane49.5523150111222.69214121412.558.1Hewitt, Damien P.66.578871107515.362081206200348.0McNab, Cameron R119.51192850*102711.291021851631633.7Arnott-Dun	Daye, Steven M	94.5	99	4	105*	1759	18.52	4	1	15	171	3	27	0	2	39.9
Thomas, Jai P91.58913101*167322.018281590170038.0Chapman, Blair1911875545165912.5700271361400833.2Sibson, Jarrad100.5997134138415.043116139107966.544.5D'Souza, Timothy160.51525844126813.49001812213730644.6Dawson, Stafford G1011011359120113.6530141012300234.6deJager, Kenneth145.51252940113311.800014826550232.1Saxon, Shane49.5523150111222.692141432200.546.2Smith, Kieran E34.5405106109531.29423141121412.558.1Hewitt, Damien P.66.578871107515.362081206200348.0McNab, Cameron R119.51192850*102711.291021851631633.7<	McKeig, Donald R	120 1	124	4	66	1755	14.63	4	0	15	174	9	57	10	7.5	42.7
Chapman, Blair1911875545165912.5700271361400833.2Sibson, Jarrad100.5997134138415.043116139107966.544.5D'Souza, Timothy160.51525844126813.49001812213730644.6Dawson, Stafford G1011011359120113.6530141012300234.6deJager, Kenneth145.51252940113311.800014826550232.1Saxon, Shane49.5523150111222.69214121412.558.1Hewitt, Damien P.66.578871107515.362081206200348.0McNab, Cameron R119.51192850*102711.291021851631633.7Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan1381132946101012.020017978210343.2Solanki, Mauneek89.582167998614.9420910611370532.5<	Linehan, Paul J	81 1	100	14	57	1715	19.94	7	0	6	109	9	36	1	6	28.6
Sibson, Jarrad100.5997134138415.043116139107966.544.5D'Souza, Timothy160.51525844126813.49001812213730644.6Dawson, Stafford G1011011359120113.6530141012300234.6deJager, Kenneth145.51252940113311.800014826550232.1Saxon, Shane49.5523150111222.6921412432200.546.2Smith, Kieran E34.5405106109531.29423141121412.558.1Hewitt, Damien P.66.578871107515.362081206200348.0McNab, Cameron R119.51192850*102711.291021851631633.7Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan1381132946101012.020017978210343.2Solanki, Mauneek89.582167998614.942091061137053	Thomas, Jai P	91.5	89	13	101*	1673	22.01	8	2	8	159	0	17	0	0	38.0
D'Souza, Timothy160.51525844126813.49001812213730644.6Dawson, Stafford G1011011359120113.6530141012300234.6deJager, Kenneth145.51252940113311.800014826550232.1Saxon, Shane49.5523150111222.6921412432200.546.2Smith, Kieran E34.5405106109531.29423141121412.558.1Hewitt, Damien P.66.578871107515.362081206200348.0McNab, Cameron R119.51192850*102711.291021851631633.7Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan1381132946101012.020017978210343.2Solanki, Mauneek89.582167998614.9420910611370532.5Verco, Graeme25334187*92932.0351182391037.2 </td <td>Chapman, Blair</td> <td>191 1</td> <td>187</td> <td>55</td> <td>45</td> <td>1659</td> <td>12.57</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>27</td> <td>136</td> <td>1</td> <td>40</td> <td>0</td> <td>8</td> <td>33.2</td>	Chapman, Blair	191 1	187	55	45	1659	12.57	0	0	27	136	1	40	0	8	33.2
Dawson, Stafford G1011011359120113.6530141012300234.6deJager, Kenneth145.51252940113311.800014826550232.1Saxon, Shane49.5523150111222.6921412432200.546.2Smith, Kieran E34.5405106109531.29423141121412.558.1Hewitt, Damien P.66.578871107515.362081206200348.0McNab, Cameron R119.51192850*102711.291021851631633.7Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan1381132946101012.020017978210343.2Solanki, Mauneek89.582167998614.9420910611370549.7Ericson, Joshua6958157896022.33307752370532.5Verco, Graeme25334187*92932.0351182391037.2 <td>Sibson, Jarrad</td> <td>100.5</td> <td>99</td> <td>7</td> <td>134</td> <td>1384</td> <td>15.04</td> <td>3</td> <td>1</td> <td>16</td> <td>139</td> <td>10</td> <td>79</td> <td>6</td> <td>6.5</td> <td>44.5</td>	Sibson, Jarrad	100.5	99	7	134	1384	15.04	3	1	16	139	10	79	6	6.5	44.5
deJager, Kenneth145.51252940113311.800014826550232.1Saxon, Shane49.5523150111222.6921412432200.546.2Smith, Kieran E34.5405106109531.29423141121412.558.1Hewitt, Damien P.66.578871107515.362081206200348.0McNab, Cameron R119.51192850*102711.291021851631633.7Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan1381132946101012.020017978210343.2Solanki, Mauneek89.582167998614.9420910611370549.7Ericson, Joshua6958157896022.33307752370532.5Verco, Graeme25334187*92932.0351182391037.2	D'Souza, Timothy	160.5 1	152	58	44	1268	13.49	0	0	18	122	13	73	0	6	44.6
Saxon, Shane49.5523150111222.6921412432200.546.2Smith, Kieran E34.5405106109531.29423141121412.558.1Hewitt, Damien P.66.578871107515.362081206200348.0McNab, Cameron R119.51192850*102711.291021851631633.7Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan1381132946101012.020017978210343.2Solanki, Mauneek89.582167998614.9420910611370549.7Ericson, Joshua6958157896022.33307752370532.5Verco, Graeme25334187*92932.0351182391037.2	Dawson, Stafford G	101 1	101	13	59	1201	13.65	3	0	14	101	2	30	0	2	34.6
Smith, Kieran E34.5405106109531.29423141121412.558.1Hewitt, Damien P.66.578871107515.362081206200348.0McNab, Cameron R119.51192850*102711.291021851631633.7Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan1381132946101012.020017978210343.2Solanki, Mauneek89.582167998614.9420910611370549.7Ericson, Joshua6958157896022.33307752370532.5Verco, Graeme25334187*92932.0351182391037.2	deJager, Kenneth	145.5 1	125	29	40	1133	11.80	0	0	14	82	6	55	0	2	32.1
Hewitt, Damien P.66.578871107515.362081206200348.0McNab, Cameron R119.51192850*102711.291021851631633.7Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan1381132946101012.020017978210343.2Solanki, Mauneek89.582167998614.9420910611370549.7Ericson, Joshua6958157896022.33307752370532.5Verco, Graeme25334187*92932.0351182391037.2	Saxon, Shane	49.5	52	3	150	1112	22.69	2	1	4	124	3	22	0	0.5	46.2
McNab, Cameron R119.51192850*102711.291021851631633.7Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan1381132946101012.020017978210343.2Solanki, Mauneek89.582167998614.9420910611370549.7Ericson, Joshua6958157896022.33307752370532.5Verco, Graeme25334187*92932.0351182391037.2	Smith, Kieran E	34.5	40	5	106	1095	31.29	4	2	3	141	12	14	1	2.5	58.1
Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan1381132946101012.020017978210343.2Solanki, Mauneek89.582167998614.9420910611370549.7Ericson, Joshua6958157896022.33307752370532.5Verco, Graeme25334187*92932.0351182391037.2	Hewitt, Damien P.	66.5	78	8	71	1075	15.36	2	0	8	120	6	20	0	3	48.0
Solanki, Mauneek89.582167998614.9420910611370549.7Ericson, Joshua6958157896022.33307752370532.5Verco, Graeme25334187*92932.0351182391037.2	McNab, Cameron R	119.5 1	119	28	50*	1027	11.29	1	0	21	85	1	63	1	6	33.7
Ericson, Joshua6958157896022.33307752370532.5Verco, Graeme25334187*92932.0351182391037.2	Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	138 1	113	29	46	1010	12.02	0	0	17	97	8	21	0	3	43.2
Verco, Graeme 25 33 4 187* 929 32.03 5 1 1 82 3 9 1 0 37.2	Solanki, Mauneek	89.5	82	16	79	986	14.94	2	0	9	106	11	37	0	5	49.7
,	Ericson, Joshua	69	58	15	78	960	22.33	3	0	7	75	2	37	0	5	32.5
Lockyer, Matthew 54.5 61 14 109* 784 16.68 2 1 4 67 1 17 0 8.5 34.9	Verco, Graeme	25	33	4	187*	929	32.03	5	1	1	82	3	9	1	0	37.2
	Lockyer, Matthew	54.5	61	14	109*	784	16.68	2	1	4	67	1	17	0	8.5	34.9

Career Batting (continued)

Player	М	I	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	Dk's	4's	6's	Cat	St	RO	Bdy%
Vlismas, Michael	77	64	20	48*	751	17.07	0	0	3	61	10	39	0	5.5	40.5
Horan, Tim	29	29	3	132*	673	25.88	2	1	3	77	9	7	0	2.5	53.8
Tilbury, Rhys	54.5	51	5	81	632	13.74	1	0	11	69	4	18	0	0	47.5
Sykes, David	34	39	5	64	532	15.65	1	0	8	65	5	31	6	2	54.5
Woodley, Leonard	60	74	16	63*	507	8.74	1	0	15	37	4	15	0	0	33.9
Riches, Jamey S	29	28	4	81*	499	20.79	4	0	3	42	7	9	0	0	42.1
Daw, Cameron	21	18	1	79	456	26.82	3	0	0	60	5	5	0	0	59.2
Leng, Darren	44	34	6	59*	419	14.96	1	0	2	32	1	14	0	1	32.0
McMulkin, Calum J	47	36	11	72*	379	15.16	1	0	6	35	4	30	0	2.5	43.3
Duncan, Rodney	92.5	71	30	23*	354	8.63	0	0	11	12	6	22	1	2.5	23.7
Saxon, Les	69.5	52	17	34	336	9.60	0	0	8	21	0	13	0	0	25.0
Walley, Yagan	22.5	22	4	54*	328	18.22	2	0	4	27	2	6	0	0	36.6
Pearson, Glen	25.5	23	5	45*	302	16.78	0	0	0	33	1	43	10	5	45.7
Britton, Evan R	38.5	32	5	38	294	10.89	0	0	6	36	2	12	0	1	53.1
Petta, Mark	16	15	2	89*	276	21.23	2	0	1	29	1	2	0	0	44.2
Mathew, Mobin	21	16	3	51	263	20.23	1	0	0	26	0	4	0	0	39.5
Duncan, Mitchell J	50.5	36	10	44*	257	9.88	0	0	7	18	3	9	0	0.5	35.0
Shah, Hiten	112.5	67	38	19*	255	8.79	0	0	8	14	1	19	0	3.5	24.3
Kenna, Jarryd	13	12	0	47	227	18.92	0	0	1	31	1	7	0	0	57.3
Smith, Jay	69.5	49	16	31	208	6.30	0	0	10	13	2	20	0	0.5	30.8
Dawson, Michael	18.5	14	3	49	164	14.91	0	0	0	15	3	8	0	0	47.6
Stace, Andrew	13	12	1	49	150	13.64	0	0	3	23	2	8	0	0.5	69.3
Rive, Derryn	51.5	40	14	27	127	4.88	0	0	9	12	0	21	0	0.5	37.8
Cheeseman, Daniel	51	30	13	17	120	7.06	0	0	6	8	1	16	0	3	31.7
Horan, Thomas	15	12	3	44*	118	13.11	0	0	4	11	0	3	0	0	37.3
Bhan, Ujjwal	44	29	13	22*	87	5.44	0	0	8	5	0	16	0	2.5	23.0
Liddle, Jesse	11	10	2	29*	82	10.25	0	0	3	7	0	4	0	0.5	34.1
Singh, Manvir	7	5	0	58	74	14.80	1	0	2	6	0	5	0	0	32.4
Solanki, Lilesh	5	6	0	29	67	11.17	0	0	1	8	1	5	0	0.5	56.7
Khan, Ishfaq	8	7	3	14	49	12.25	0	0	0	7	0	3	0	0	57.1
Khan, Afrasiab	9	8	3	20*	47	9.40	0	0	1	5	0	1	0	0	42.6
Bartholomew, Adam	12	7	3	16*	46	11.50	0	0	1	6	0	6	0	0	52.2
Naley, Gordon	6	6	1	19	45	9.00	0	0	1	3	2	1	0	0	53.3
Pate, Alex	6	5	2	21	43	14.33	0	0	1	8	0	2	0	0	74.4
Sumanasinghe, Shaminda	9	8	1	19	42	6.00	0	0	2	2	0	0	0	0	19.0
Patel, Smit	13	10	6	14	40	10.00	0	0	1	5	0	6	0	2.5	50.0
deRozario, Trevor	11	8	2	19	39	6.50	0	0	2	2	0	2	0	0.5	20.5
Robson, Matthew	13	7	3	13	24	6.00	0	0	1	0	0	6	0	0	0.0
Lall, Vishwas	1.5	1	0	22	22	22.00	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	54.5
Kaseke, Samuel	13	9	2	3	6	0.86	0	0	3	0	0	1	0	0	0.0
Bormolini, Zachary	2	2	1	4*	4	4.00	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0.0
Henderson, Liam	7	2	0	2	2	1.00	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	0	0.0
Campbell, James	4	3	0	2	2	0.67	0	0	2	0	0	1	0	0	0.0
Adams, Bryan	10	6	1	2	2	0.40	0	0	4	0	0	1	0	0	0.0
Riches, Stephen	3	3	0	1	1	0.33	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0.0
Dixon, Bradley	1	0	0	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	N/A
Ghani, Asim	2	0	0	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	N/A

Career Bowling

Daye, Brendan15038733419624614.918/11284235.892.4Hayward, Andrew15967613384693818.078/5165541.582.6Lockyer, Christopher12906554374563115.067/44101034.512.6	2.77 2.49 2.61 2.62 2.76 2.97 3.42 2.96 3.31
Hayward, Andrew15967613384693818.078/5165541.582.6Lockyer, Christopher12906554374563115.067/44101034.512.6	2.61 2.62 2.76 2.97 3.42 2.96 3.31
Lockyer, Christopher 12906 554 374 5631 15.06 7/44 10 1 0 34.51 2.0	2.62 2.76 2.97 3.42 2.96 3.31
	2.76 2.97 3.42 2.96 3.31
George, Jamie 10064 402 332 4624 13.93 7/18 13 1 2 30.31 2.7	2.97 3.42 2.96 3.31
	3.42 2.96 3.31
Harmer, Matthew J 10633 411 289 5266 18.22 5/14 3 0 0 36.79 2.9	2.96 3.31
Chapman, Blair 10785 351 283 6151 21.73 6/27 3 0 0 38.11 3.4	3.31
D'Souza, Timothy 10205 368 281 5038 17.93 5/12 8 0 0 36.32 2.9	
Perrozzi, Serge 6835 176 212 3770 17.78 6/20 4 0 0 32.24 3.3	0.04
Shah, Hiten 9048 491 194 3480 17.94 7/38 5 1 0 46.64 2.3	2.31
Duncan, Rodney 6175 211 193 3242 16.80 7/19 6 0 0 31.99 3.	3.15
deJager, Kenneth 6929 266 176 3401 19.32 7/26 1 1 0 39.37 2.9	2.95
Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan 6121 210 165 3395 20.58 5/18 6 0 0 37.10 3.3	3.33
Smith, Peter C. 4985 147 145 2439 16.82 5/25 1 0 0 34.38 2.9	2.94
Thomas, Jai P 4938 188 130 2326 17.89 6/36 5 0 0 37.98 2.8	2.83
Shearing, Steven J 4277 132 126 2221 17.63 6/45 1 0 0 33.94 3.1	3.12
Solanki, Mauneek 4386 162 116 2237 19.28 6/32 4 0 0 37.81 3.0	3.06
Woodley, Leonard 3456 84 113 1227 10.86 6/22 6 0 3 30.58 2.1	2.13
Daquino, Edward 3916 106 109 2245 20.60 4/13 0 0 0 35.93 3.4	3.44
Cleary, Simon V 3302 100 107 1969 18.40 4/13 0 0 0 30.86 3.5	3.58
Ericson, Joshua 3465 86 101 2226 22.04 5/26 1 0 0 34.31 3.8	3.85
Saxon, Les 3458 75 94 2216 23.57 5/33 1 0 0 36.79 3.8	3.84
Vlismas, Michael 2512 94 92 2096 22.78 4/12 0 0 0 27.30 5.0	5.01
Hewitt, Glen 3235 107 84 1743 20.75 6/29 2 0 0 38.51 3.2	3.23
Duncan, Mitchell J 2908 91 74 1759 23.77 5/30 2 0 0 39.30 3.6	3.63
Hewitt, Damien P. 2925 105 68 1424 20.94 5/32 1 0 0 43.01 2.9	2.92
Bhan, Ujjwal 2446 78 66 1368 20.73 5/41 1 0 0 37.06 3.3	3.36
Cheeseman, Daniel 2468 66 65 1441 22.17 5/21 1 0 0 37.97 3.5	3.50
Saxon, Shane 2051 93 64 1013 15.83 6/44 1 0 0 32.05 2.9	2.96
Hayward, Brian 2008 37 63 916 14.54 6/19 2 0 0 31.87 2.7	2.74
Britton, Evan R 2419 94 62 1213 19.56 5/16 2 0 0 39.02 3.0	3.01
Smith, Jay 2382 48 61 1756 28.79 4/25 0 0 0 39.05 4.4	4.42
Paice, Steven 2038 65 60 1151 19.18 4/14 0 0 0 33.97 3.3	3.39
Warren, Justin A 2067 69 60 1243 20.72 4/28 0 0 0 34.45 3.6	3.61
Chapman, Keith 1928 42 57 1112 19.51 6/64 2 0 0 33.82 3.4	3.46
McMulkin, Calum J 2210 73 56 1217 21.73 4/21 0 0 0 39.46 3.3	3.30
Paice, Laurence 1947 60 52 1061 20.40 4/28 0 0 0 37.44 3.2	3.27
Linehan, Paul J 1494 36 50 1004 20.08 6/25 1 0 0 29.88 4.0	4.03
Dungey, Donald L 1278 11 42 704 16.76 4/11 0 0 0 30.43 3.3	3.31
McNab, Cameron R 1464 18 42 1078 25.67 5/49 1 0 0 34.86 4.4	4.42
Daye, Steven M 1611 26 41 1012 24.68 4/26 0 0 0 39.29 3.2	3.77
Leng, Darren 1601 35 36 1063 29.53 4/12 0 0 0 44.47 3.9	3.98
Fernandez, Ron G. 1563 40 33 854 25.88 4/40 0 0 0 47.36 3.2	3.28
Martin, Leigh 814 11 32 580 18.13 4/53 0 0 0 25.44 4.2	4.28
McKeig, Donald R 1188 39 32 656 20.50 3/16 0 0 0 37.13 3.3	3.31
Smith, Kieran E 1410 33 32 848 26.50 3/20 0 0 44.06 3.6	3.61

Career Bowling (continued)

Walley, Yagan 919 24 31 563 18.16 6/40 3 0 0 29.65 3.68 Dawson, Ken C 830 12 26 635 24.42 4/16 0 0 0 22.48 2.69 Dart, Greg 890 10 22 571 22.44 3/8 0 0 0 5.67 4.27 Patel, Smit 666 28 22 345 15.68 5/20 1 0 0 0 4.723 5.54 Daw, Cameron 932 22 21 566 26.95 3/13 0 0 0 4.438 3.64 Horan, Thomas 493 8 20 348 17.40 4/41 0 0 2.456 3.42 Dark, Genfrey 421 6 16 341 1.31 450 0 0 2.66.7 4.64 Manson, Michael 365 3 14 22.43 </th <th>Player</th> <th>Balls</th> <th>М</th> <th>w</th> <th>Runs</th> <th>Ave</th> <th>BB</th> <th>5WI</th> <th>7WI</th> <th>10WM</th> <th>S/R</th> <th>E/R</th>	Player	Balls	М	w	Runs	Ave	BB	5WI	7WI	10WM	S/R	E/R
Robson, Matthew56225252525252722.843/800022.482.68Dart, Greg890116722233336.133/4100050.76/4.27Patel, Smit6662822245665/201004.7235.54Daw, Cameron93222222156626.653/430004.4383.64Horan, Thomas49382020343100024.654.24Fanayan, Fab6812020222156626.953/1300024.654.24Chron, Thomas493820203/3400024.654.24Fanayan, Fab681181936018.953/1300026.312.35Dart, Gorffey42161641411.885/2111<002.663.44Werco, Graeme2522221640025.544/420002.663.44Dawson, Michael365111443030.714/30002.863.44Barbonnew, Adam600331431422.432/130002.863.44Dawson, Graen25424439 <td>Walley, Yagan</td> <td>919</td> <td>24</td> <td>31</td> <td>563</td> <td>18.16</td> <td>6/40</td> <td>3</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>29.65</td> <td>3.68</td>	Walley, Yagan	919	24	31	563	18.16	6/40	3	0	0	29.65	3.68
Dart, Greg 890 10 25 571 22.84 3/8 0 0 0.5 3.6.73 3.411 0 0 0.5 7.4 7.4 Patel, Smit 666 28 22 345 15.68 5/20 1 0 0 3.27 3.11 Rive, Derryn 1039 11 22 960 43.64 3/13 0 0 0 44.28 3.64 Horan, Thomas 493 8 20 432 21.60 3/34 0 0 0 3.65 3.81 Stace, Andrew 684 18 19 360 18.95 3/13 0 0 0 3.01 2.3.11 Carco, Graeme 925 22 16 640 25.25 4/42 0 0 0 56.13 1.4 282 2.14 3/17 0 0 0 2.6.7 4.64 Bartholomew, Adam 600 33 14	Dawson, Ken C	830	12	26	635	24.42	4/16	0	0	0	31.92	4.59
Lockyer, Matthew 1167 23 23 831 36.13 34.14 0 0 0 50.74 4.27 Patel, Smit 666 28 22 345 15.68 5/20 1 0 0 0.277 3.11 Rive, Derryn 1039 12 22 21 566 26.95 4/35 0 0 0 44.38 3.64 Horan, Thomas 493 8 20 348 17.40 4/41 0 0 0 3.6.05 3.16 Fanayan, Fab 681 12 22 1.1 0 0 0 2.6.07 3.6.0 3.14 2.35 Dart, Geoffrey 421 6 16 404 2.5.2 4/2 0 0 0 2.6.07 4.64 Dawson, Michael 365 3 14 242 2.14 3.17 0 0 0 2.6.07 4.64 Barbolomew, Adam 600	Robson, Matthew	562	25	25	252	10.08	4/27	0	0	0	22.48	2.69
Patel, Smit 666 28 22 345 15.68 5/20 1 0 0 30.27 3.11 Rive, Derryn 1039 11 22 960 43.64 3/13 0 0 0 47.23 5.54 Daw, Cameron 932 22 21 66 6.95 4/35 0 0 0 24.65 4.24 Fanayan, Fab 681 20 24.32 21.60 3/14 0 0 0 30.31 2.35 Dart, Geoffrey 421 6 16 341 2.11 0 0 0 2.62.7 4.66 Vesto, Graeme 925 22 16 404 2.25 4/42 0 0 0 2.66.8 3.14 Pawson, Michael 365 3 14 224 2.43 2/13 0 0 0 2.80 3.84 Dawson, Michael 365 10 13.83 3.67 <t< td=""><td>Dart, Greg</td><td>890</td><td>10</td><td>25</td><td>571</td><td>22.84</td><td>3/8</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>35.60</td><td>3.85</td></t<>	Dart, Greg	890	10	25	571	22.84	3/8	0	0	0	35.60	3.85
Rive, Derryn 1039 11 22 960 43.64 3/13 0 0 0 47.23 5.54 Daw, Cameron 932 22 21 566 26.95 4/35 0 0 44.38 3.64 Horan, Thomas 493 8 20 348 17.40 4/41 0 0 0 24.65 4.24 Fanayan, Fab 681 20 20 432 21.60 3/34 0 0 0 36.00 3.81 Khan, Ishfaq 485 16 16 190 11.88 5/21 1 0 0 30.31 2.35 Dawson, Michael 365 3 14 282 20.14 3/17 0 0 0 26.07 4.64 Bartholomew, Adam 600 33 14 314 224 0 0 0 24.83 3.43 Dawson, Stafford G 618 7 11 436	Lockyer, Matthew	1167	23	23	831	36.13	3/41	0	0	0	50.74	4.27
Daw, Cameron 932 22 21 566 26.95 4/35 0 0 0 44.38 3.64 Horan, Thomas 493 8 20 348 17.40 4/41 0 0 24.65 4.24 Fanayan, Fab 681 18 19 360 18.95 3/13 0 0 36.00 3.16 Khan, Ishfaq 485 16 16 341 21.1 0 0 26.31 4.85 Dart, Geoffrey 421 6 16 341 21.31 4/5 0 0 0 26.31 4.85 Velsh, Jos 516 11 16 400 25.00 2.0 0 0 57.61 4.62 Dawson, Michael 365 3 14 212.43 2/13 0 0 0 42.86 3.14 Dawson, Stafford G 618 7 11 436 3.64 4.84 0 0 <t< td=""><td>Patel, Smit</td><td>666</td><td>28</td><td>22</td><td>345</td><td>15.68</td><td>5/20</td><td>1</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>30.27</td><td>3.11</td></t<>	Patel, Smit	666	28	22	345	15.68	5/20	1	0	0	30.27	3.11
Horan, Thomas49382034817.404/4100024.654.24Fanayan, Fab681202043221.603/3400034.053.81Stace, Andrew684181936018.953/1300036.003.16Khan, Ishfaq485161619011.885/2110032.254.65Welsh, Jos516111640025.002/500022.254.65Verco, Graeme925221640425.254/4200024.863.14Bartholomew, Adam60033142342/1300042.863.14Dawson, Stafford G61871143639.642/2400023.803.98Davies, Glenn M43891033933.902/800043.804.64Fanayan, Omid34510921123.442/4400035.57Jebnosn, Jarrad1440510921.803/2100024.804.54Fanayan, Omid34510921123.442/4400035.254.11Sybson, Jarrad1440510921.803/3500024	Rive, Derryn	1039	11	22	960	43.64	3/13	0	0	0	47.23	5.54
Fanayan, Fab681202043221.603/3400034.053.81Stace, Andrew684181936018.953/1300030.312.35Dart, Geoffrey42161634121.314/500026.314.86Welsh, Jos516111640025.002/500026.6314.86Verco, Graeme925221640425.254/4200026.074.64Bartholomew, Adam600331431422.432/1300042.863.14Pritchard, Christopher P594111443030.714/3000056.184.23Sumanasinghe, Shaminda23851015815.804/1800023.803.98Davies, Glenn M4389103933.902/800038.335.77Henderson, Liam2824819324.133/1400028.803.67deRozario, Trevor2644924527.222/2600028.804.54Tibuon, Jarrad1282612320.503/60021.335.77Henderson, Larm2824819324.133/14	Daw, Cameron	932	22	21	566	26.95	4/35	0	0	0	44.38	3.64
Stace, Andrew 684 18 19 360 18.95 3/13 0 0 0 36.00 3.16 Khan, Ishfaq 485 16 16 140 11.88 5/21 1 0 0 30.31 2.35 Dart, Geoffrey 421 6 16 341 21.31 4/5 0 0 0 32.25 4.66 Welsh, Jos 516 11 16 404 25.25 4/42 0 0 0 57.81 2.62 Bartholomew, Adam 600 33 14 314 22.43 2/13 0 0 0 42.86 3.14 Pritchard, Christopher P 594 11 14 430 30.71 4/30 0 0 0 43.84 4.43 Davies, Glenn M 438 9 10 339 3.90 2/4 0 0 0 38.33 3.67 deRozario, Trevor 264 4 9 245 7.22 2/26 0 0 21.33 5.77	Horan, Thomas	493	8	20	348	17.40	4/41	0	0	0	24.65	4.24
Khan, Ishfaq485161619011.885/2110030.312.35Dart, Geoffrey42161640421.314/500026.314.86Welsh, Jos516111640025.002/500057.812.62Dawson, Michael36531428220.143/1700026.074.64Bartholomew, Adam600331431422.432/1300042.434.34Dawson, Stafford G61871143639.642/2400028.033.99Davies, Glenn M4389103393.902/8000043.833.67deRozario, Trevor2644924527.222/2600028.333.67deRozario, Trevor2644924527.222/2600021.335.77Sibson, Jarrad1440510921.802/2100028.804.54Tilbuy, Rhys43916520951.802/3300025.753.96Adams, Bryan1681417243.003/5300015.001.33Mathew, Mobin1213311739.002/23 <td>Fanayan, Fab</td> <td>681</td> <td>20</td> <td>20</td> <td>432</td> <td>21.60</td> <td>3/34</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>34.05</td> <td>3.81</td>	Fanayan, Fab	681	20	20	432	21.60	3/34	0	0	0	34.05	3.81
Dart, Geoffrey 421 6 16 341 21.31 4/5 0 0 2.6.31 4.86 Welsh, Jos 516 11 16 400 25.00 2/5 0 0 0 32.25 4.65 Verco, Graeme 925 22 16 404 25.25 4/12 0 0 0 26.77 4.64 Bartholomew, Adam 600 33 14 314 22.43 2/13 0 0 0 42.86 3.14 Dawson, Stafford G 618 7 11 436 39.64 2/24 0 0 0 43.80 3.38 Dawson, Stafford G 618 7 11 436 39.64 2/24 0 0 0 23.80 3.38 Dawson, Stafford G 618 7 10 57.72 2/26 0 0 0 33.3 3.67 deRozario, Trevor 264 4 9 24.13	Stace, Andrew	684	18	19	360	18.95	3/13	0	0	0	36.00	3.16
Welsh, Jos 516 11 16 400 25.00 2/5 0 0 0 32.25 4.65 Verco, Graeme 925 22 16 404 25.25 4/42 0 0 0 57.81 2.62 Dawson, Michael 365 3 14 282 20.14 3/17 0 0 0 42.48 4.64 Bartholomew, Adam 600 33 14 214 2.13 0 0 0 42.43 4.34 Dawson, Stafford G 618 7 11 436 39.64 2/24 0 0 0 43.80 3.80 Davises, Glenn M 438 9 10 39 3.90 2/8 0 0 0 3.83 3.67 deRozario, Trevor 264 4 9 245 27.22 2/26 0 0 0 21.33 5.77 Sibson, Jarrad 144 0 5 109	Khan, Ishfaq	485	16	16	190	11.88	5/21	1	0	0	30.31	2.35
Verco, Graeme 925 22 16 404 25.25 4/42 0 0 57.81 2.62 Dawson, Michael 365 3 14 282 20.14 3/17 0 0 0 26.07 4.64 Bartholomew, Adam 600 33 14 314 22.43 2/13 0 0 0 42.86 3.14 Dawson, Stafford G 618 7 11 436 39.64 2/24 0 0 56.18 4.23 Dawson, Stafford G 618 7 11 436 39.64 2/24 0 0 0 38.33 3.67 Fanayan, Omid 345 10 9 211 23.44 2/44 0 0 0 35.57 Henderson, Liam 282 4 8 193 24.13 3/14 0 0 0 21.33 5.77 Henderson, Jarrad 144 0 5 2/3 0 </td <td>Dart, Geoffrey</td> <td>421</td> <td>6</td> <td>16</td> <td>341</td> <td>21.31</td> <td>4/5</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>26.31</td> <td>4.86</td>	Dart, Geoffrey	421	6	16	341	21.31	4/5	0	0	0	26.31	4.86
Dawson, Michael 365 3 14 282 20.14 3/17 0 0 26.07 4.64 Bartholomew, Adam 600 33 14 314 2/13 0 0 0 42.86 3.14 Pritchard, Christopher P 594 11 14 430 30.71 4/30 0 0 0 42.83 4.34 Dawson, Stafford G 618 7 11 436 39.64 2/24 0 0 0 43.80 4.64 Dawies, Glenn M 438 9 10 339 33.90 2/8 0 0 0 38.33 3.67 Henderson, Liam 282 4 8 193 24.13 3/14 0 0 0 21.33 5.77 Sibson, Jarrad 144 0 5 109 21.80 2/21 0 0 0 28.80 4.54 Tilbury, Rhys 439 16 5 25	Welsh, Jos	516	11	16	400	25.00	2/5	0	0	0	32.25	4.65
Bartholomew, Adam 600 33 14 314 22.43 2/13 0 0 42.86 3.14 Pritchard, Christopher P 594 11 14 430 30.71 4/30 0 0 0 42.43 4.34 Dawson, Stafford G 618 7 11 436 39.64 2/24 0 0 0 56.18 4.33 Sumanasinghe, Shaminda 238 5 10 158 15.80 4/18 0 0 0 3.80 3.98 Davies, Glenn M 438 9 10 33 3.44 2/44 0 0 0 3.83 3.67 deRozario, Trevor 264 4 9 245 27.22 2/26 0 0 0 21.33 5.77 Henderson, Liam 282 4 8 193 24.13 3/14 0 0 0 21.33 5.77 Sibson, Jarrad 144 0	Verco, Graeme	925	22	16	404	25.25	4/42	0	0	0	57.81	2.62
Pritchard, Christopher P 594 11 14 430 30.71 4/30 0 0 42.43 4.34 Dawson, Stafford G 618 7 11 436 39.64 2/24 0 0 0 56.18 4.23 Sumanasinghe, Shaminda 238 5 10 158 15.80 4/18 0 0 0 43.80 3.98 Davies, Glenn M 438 9 10 39 33.90 2/8 0 0 0 43.80 4.64 Fanayan, Omid 345 10 9 211 23.44 2/44 0 0 0 29.33 5.57 Henderson, Liam 282 4 8 193 24.13 3/14 0 0 0 28.80 4.54 Tilbury, Rhys 439 16 5 259 51.80 2/3 0 0 27.57 3.96 Ghani, Asim 60 1 4 17	Dawson, Michael	365	3	14	282	20.14	3/17	0	0	0	26.07	4.64
Dawson, Stafford G 618 7 11 436 39.64 2/24 0 0 56.18 4.23 Sumanasinghe, Shaminda 238 5 10 158 15.80 4/18 0 0 0 23.80 3.98 Davies, Glenn M 438 9 10 339 33.90 2/8 0 0 0 43.80 4.64 Fanayan, Omid 345 10 9 211 23.44 2/44 0 0 0 38.33 3.67 Henderson, Liam 282 4 8 193 24.13 3/14 0 0 0 28.33 5.77 Sibson, Jarrad 144 0 5 109 21.80 2/21 0 0 28.80 4.54 Tilbury, Rhys 439 16 5 259 51.80 2/3 0 0 15.00 3.00 Cairns, Stephen G 103 3 4 68 17.00	Bartholomew, Adam	600	33	14	314	22.43	2/13	0	0	0	42.86	3.14
Sumanasinghe, Shaminda 238 5 10 158 15.80 4/18 0 0 23.80 3.98 Davies, Glenn M 438 9 10 339 33.90 2/8 0 0 0 43.80 4.64 Fanayan, Omid 345 10 9 211 23.44 2/44 0 0 0 38.33 3.67 deRozario, Trevor 264 4 9 245 27.22 2/26 0 0 0 35.57 Henderson, Liam 282 4 8 193 24.13 3/14 0 0 0 21.33 5.77 Sibson, Jarrad 144 0 5 109 21.80 2/21 0 0 87.80 3.54 Ghani, Asim 60 1 4 30 7.50 3/15 0 0 15.00 3.54 Ghani, Stephen G 103 3 4 172 43.00 3/53	Pritchard, Christopher P	594	11	14	430	30.71	4/30	0	0	0	42.43	4.34
Davies, Glenn M 438 9 10 339 33.90 2/8 0 0 43.80 4.64 Fanayan, Omid 345 10 9 211 23.44 2/44 0 0 0 38.33 3.67 deRozario, Trevor 264 4 9 245 27.22 2/26 0 0 0 29.33 5.57 Henderson, Liam 282 4 8 193 24.13 314 0 0 0 25.25 4.11 Sykes, David 128 2 6 123 20.50 3/6 0 0 28.80 4.54 Tilbury, Rhys 439 16 5 259 51.80 2/3 0 0 15.00 3.00 Cairns, Stephen G 103 3 4 68 17.00 2/22 0 0 15.00 1.03 Mathew, Mobin 121 3 117 39.00 2/23 0	Dawson, Stafford G	618	7	11	436	39.64	2/24	0	0	0	56.18	4.23
Fanayan, Omid34510921123.442/4400038.333.67deRozario, Trevor2644924527.222/2600029.335.57Henderson, Liam2824819324.133/1400035.254.11Sykes, David1282612320.503/600021.335.77Sibson, Jarrad1440510921.802/2100028.804.54Tilbury, Rhys43916525951.802/30087.803.54Ghani, Asim6014307.503/150015.003.00Caims, Stephen G103346817.002/2200015.001.33Mathew, Mobin1213311739.002/2300015.001.33Mathew, Mobin1213311739.002/2300036.509.21Petta, Mark50133.001/1700024.004.75Bormolini, Zachary36013131.001/1100024.004.71Singh, Manvir54014747.001/2000054.005.22 <td>Sumanasinghe, Shaminda</td> <td>238</td> <td>5</td> <td>10</td> <td>158</td> <td>15.80</td> <td>4/18</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>23.80</td> <td>3.98</td>	Sumanasinghe, Shaminda	238	5	10	158	15.80	4/18	0	0	0	23.80	3.98
deRozario, Trevor2644924527.222/2600029.335.57Henderson, Liam2824819324.133/1400035.254.11Sykes, David1282612320.503/600021.335.77Sibson, Jarrad1440510921.802/2100028.804.54Tilbury, Rhys43916525951.802/300087.803.54Ghani, Asim6014307.503/1500025.753.96Adams, Bryan1681417243.003/5300042.006.14Riches, Jamey S4523103.332/200015.001.33Mathew, Mobin1213311739.002/2300040.035.80Pate, Alex730211256.001/1700036.509.21Petta, Mark5013330.001/30005.003.60Campbell, James12011010.001/100036.005.17Horan, Tim42013333.001/1500042.004.71S	Davies, Glenn M	438	9	10	339	33.90	2/8	0	0	0	43.80	4.64
Henderson, Liam2824819324.133/1400035.254.11Sykes, David1282612320.503/600021.335.77Sibson, Jarrad1440510921.802/2100028.804.54Tilbury, Rhys43916525951.802/300087.803.54Ghani, Asim6014307.503/1500025.753.96Adams, Bryan1681417243.003/5300025.753.96Adams, Bryan1681417243.003/5300042.006.14Riches, Jamey S4523103.332/200015.001.33Mathew, Mobin1213311739.002/130005.003.60Pate, Alex730211256.001/170005.003.60Campbell, James12011010.001/100005.003.60Lall, Vishwas24111919.001/190005.005.17Horan, Tim42013333.001/150005.22	Fanayan, Omid	345	10	9	211	23.44	2/44	0	0	0	38.33	3.67
Sykes, David 128 2 6 123 20.50 3/6 0 0 0 21.33 5.77 Sibson, Jarrad 144 0 5 109 21.80 2/21 0 0 0 28.80 4.54 Tilbury, Rhys 439 16 5 259 51.80 2/3 0 0 0 87.80 3.54 Ghani, Asim 60 1 4 30 7.50 3/15 0 0 0 25.75 3.96 Adams, Bryan 168 1 4 172 43.00 3/53 0 0 0 42.00 6.14 Riches, Jamey S 45 2 3 10 3.33 2/2 0 0 0 43.00 13.33 Mathew, Mobin 121 3 3 117 39.00 2/23 0 0 0 36.50 9.21 Petta, Mark 5 0 1 3	deRozario, Trevor	264	4	9	245	27.22	2/26	0	0	0	29.33	5.57
Sibson, Jarrad 144 0 5 109 21.80 2/21 0 0 0 28.80 4.54 Tilbury, Rhys 439 16 5 259 51.80 2/3 0 0 0 87.80 3.54 Ghani, Asim 60 1 4 30 7.50 3/15 0 0 0 25.75 3.96 Adams, Stephen G 103 3 4 68 17.00 2/22 0 0 0 42.00 6.14 Riches, Jamey S 45 2 3 10 3.33 2/2 0 0 0 40.33 5.80 Pate, Alex 73 0 2 112 56.00 1/17 0 0 0 42.00 5.00 Campbell, James 12 0 1 3 3.00 1/3 0 0 0 24.00 4.75 Bormolini, Zachary 36 0 1 31 31.00 1/11 0 0 0 24.00 4.71 <td< td=""><td>Henderson, Liam</td><td>282</td><td>4</td><td>8</td><td>193</td><td>24.13</td><td>3/14</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>35.25</td><td>4.11</td></td<>	Henderson, Liam	282	4	8	193	24.13	3/14	0	0	0	35.25	4.11
Tilbury, Rhys43916525951.802/300087.803.54Ghani, Asim6014307.503/1500015.003.00Cairns, Stephen G103346817.002/2200025.753.96Adams, Bryan1681417243.003/5300042.006.14Riches, Jamey S4523103.332/200015.001.33Mathew, Mobin1213311739.002/2300040.335.80Pate, Alex730211256.001/1700036.509.21Petta, Mark50133.001/30005.003.60Campbell, James12011010.001/1000024.004.75Bormolini, Zachary36013131.001/110005.22Pearson, Glen78118080.001/270078.006.15Kaseke, Samuel6003N/A0/300N/A3.00Kenna, Jarryd241011N/A0/1100N/A5.67Khan, Afrasiab180 <td>Sykes, David</td> <td>128</td> <td>2</td> <td>6</td> <td>123</td> <td>20.50</td> <td>3/6</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>21.33</td> <td>5.77</td>	Sykes, David	128	2	6	123	20.50	3/6	0	0	0	21.33	5.77
Ghani, Asim6014307.503/1500015.003.00Cairns, Stephen G103346817.002/2200025.753.96Adams, Bryan1681417243.003/5300042.006.14Riches, Jamey S4523103.332/200015.001.33Mathew, Mobin1213311739.002/2300040.335.80Pate, Alex730211256.001/1700036.509.21Petta, Mark50133.001/30005.003.60Campbell, James12011010.001/1000012.005.00Lall, Vishwas24111919.001/1900024.004.75Bormolini, Zachary36013131.001/1100036.005.17Horan, Tim42013333.001/1500042.004.71Singh, Manvir54014747.001/200078.006.15Kaseke, Samuel6003N/A0/300N/A3.00Kenna, Jarryd </td <td>Sibson, Jarrad</td> <td>144</td> <td>0</td> <td>5</td> <td>109</td> <td>21.80</td> <td>2/21</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>0</td> <td>28.80</td> <td>4.54</td>	Sibson, Jarrad	144	0	5	109	21.80	2/21	0	0	0	28.80	4.54
Cairns, Stephen G103346817.002/2200025.753.96Adams, Bryan1681417243.003/5300042.006.14Riches, Jamey S4523103.332/200015.001.33Mathew, Mobin1213311739.002/2300040.335.80Pate, Alex730211256.001/1700036.509.21Petta, Mark50133.001/30005.003.60Campbell, James12011010.001/1000024.004.75Bormolini, Zachary36013131.001/1100024.004.71Singh, Manvir54014747.001/200005.22Pearson, Glen78118080.001/27000N/A3.00Kenna, Jarryd241011N/A0/1100N/A3.67Khan, Afrasiab180020N/A0/2000N/A5.67Dixon, Bradley18030N/A0/2000N/A8.75	Tilbury, Rhys	439	16	5	259	51.80	2/3	0	0	0	87.80	3.54
Adams, Bryan1681417243.003/5300042.006.14Riches, Jamey S4523103.332/200015.001.33Mathew, Mobin1213311739.002/2300040.335.80Pate, Alex730211256.001/1700036.509.21Petta, Mark50133.001/30005.003.60Campbell, James12011010.001/100012.005.00Lall, Vishwas24111919.001/1900024.004.75Bormolini, Zachary36013131.001/1100054.005.22Pearson, Glen78118080.001/2700078.006.15Kaseke, Samuel6003N/A0/300N/A3.00Kenna, Jarryd241011N/A0/1100N/A5.67Khan, Afrasiab180020N/A0/2000N/A6.67Dixon, Bradley180030N/A0/30000N/A8.75	Ghani, Asim	60	1	4	30	7.50	3/15	0	0	0	15.00	3.00
Riches, Jamey S4523103.332/200015.001.33Mathew, Mobin1213311739.002/2300040.335.80Pate, Alex730211256.001/1700036.509.21Petta, Mark50133.001/30005.003.60Campbell, James12011010.001/1000012.005.00Lall, Vishwas24111919.001/1900024.004.75Bormolini, Zachary36013131.001/1100036.005.17Horan, Tim42013333.001/1500054.005.22Pearson, Glen78118080.001/27000N/A3.00Kenna, Jarryd241011N/A0/1100N/A5.67Khan, Afrasiab180020N/A0/20000N/A6.67Dixon, Bradley180030N/A0/3000N/A8.75	Cairns, Stephen G	103	3	4	68	17.00	2/22	0	0	0	25.75	3.96
Mathew, Mobin1213311739.002/2300040.335.80Pate, Alex730211256.001/1700036.509.21Petta, Mark50133.001/30005.003.60Campbell, James12011010.001/1000012.005.00Lall, Vishwas24111919.001/1900024.004.75Bormolini, Zachary36013131.001/1100036.005.17Horan, Tim42013333.001/1500042.004.71Singh, Manvir54014747.001/200054.005.22Pearson, Glen78118080.001/27000N/A3.00Kenna, Jarryd241011N/A0/1100N/A2.75Riches, Stephen180020N/A0/2000N/A6.67Dixon, Bradley180030N/A0/3000N/A8.75	Adams, Bryan	168	1	4	172	43.00	3/53	0	0	0	42.00	6.14
Pate, Alex730211256.001/1700036.509.21Petta, Mark50133.001/30005.003.60Campbell, James12011010.001/1000012.005.00Lall, Vishwas24111919.001/1900024.004.75Bormolini, Zachary36013131.001/1100036.005.17Horan, Tim42013333.001/1500042.004.71Singh, Manvir54014747.001/200054.005.22Pearson, Glen78118080.001/2700078.006.15Kaseke, Samuel6003N/A0/300N/A3.00Kenna, Jarryd241011N/A0/1100N/A5.67Khan, Afrasiab180020N/A0/20000N/A6.67Dixon, Bradley180030N/A0/30000N/A8.75	Riches, Jamey S	45	2	3	10	3.33	2/2	0	0	0	15.00	1.33
Petta, Mark50133.001/30005.003.60Campbell, James12011010.001/1000012.005.00Lall, Vishwas24111919.001/1900024.004.75Bormolini, Zachary36013131.001/1100036.005.17Horan, Tim42013333.001/1500042.004.71Singh, Manvir54014747.001/2000054.005.22Pearson, Glen78118080.001/2700078.006.15Kaseke, Samuel6003N/A0/300N/A3.00Kenna, Jarryd241011N/A0/1100N/A2.75Riches, Stephen180020N/A0/2000N/A6.67Dixon, Bradley180030N/A0/30000N/A8.75Naley, Gordon240035N/A0/2000N/A8.75	Mathew, Mobin	121	3	3	117	39.00	2/23	0	0	0	40.33	5.80
Campbell, James12011010.001/1000012.005.00Lall, Vishwas24111919.001/1900024.004.75Bormolini, Zachary36013131.001/1100036.005.17Horan, Tim42013333.001/1500042.004.71Singh, Manvir54014747.001/2000054.005.22Pearson, Glen78118080.001/2700078.006.15Kaseke, Samuel6003N/A0/300N/A3.00Kenna, Jarryd241011N/A0/1100N/A5.67Khan, Afrasiab180020N/A0/2000N/A6.67Dixon, Bradley180035N/A0/200N/A8.75	Pate, Alex	73	0	2	112	56.00	1/17	0	0	0	36.50	9.21
Lall, Vishwas24111919.001/1900024.004.75Bormolini, Zachary36013131.001/1100036.005.17Horan, Tim42013333.001/1500042.004.71Singh, Manvir54014747.001/2000054.005.22Pearson, Glen78118080.001/2700078.006.15Kaseke, Samuel6003N/A0/300N/A3.00Kenna, Jarryd241011N/A0/1100N/A2.75Riches, Stephen180020N/A0/2000N/A6.67Dixon, Bradley180030N/A0/3000N/A8.75Naley, Gordon240035N/A0/200N/A8.75	Petta, Mark	5	0	1	3	3.00	1/3	0	0	0	5.00	3.60
Bornolini, Zachary36013131.001/1100036.005.17Horan, Tim42013333.001/1500042.004.71Singh, Manvir54014747.001/2000054.005.22Pearson, Glen78118080.001/2700078.006.15Kaseke, Samuel6003N/A0/300N/A3.00Kenna, Jarryd241011N/A0/1100N/A2.75Riches, Stephen180020N/A0/2000N/A5.67Dixon, Bradley180030N/A0/3000N/A10.00Naley, Gordon240035N/A0/200N/A8.75	Campbell, James	12	0	1	10	10.00	1/10	0	0	0	12.00	5.00
Horan, Tim42013333.001/1500042.004.71Singh, Manvir54014747.001/2000054.005.22Pearson, Glen78118080.001/2700078.006.15Kaseke, Samuel6003N/A0/3000N/A3.00Kenna, Jarryd241011N/A0/1100N/A2.75Riches, Stephen180017N/A0/1700N/A5.67Khan, Afrasiab180030N/A0/3000N/A6.67Dixon, Bradley180035N/A0/200N/A8.75	Lall, Vishwas	24	1	1	19	19.00	1/19	0	0	0	24.00	4.75
Singh, Manvir54014747.001/2000054.005.22Pearson, Glen78118080.001/2700078.006.15Kaseke, Samuel6003N/A0/3000N/A3.00Kenna, Jarryd241011N/A0/11000N/A2.75Riches, Stephen180017N/A0/1700N/A5.67Khan, Afrasiab180030N/A0/2000N/A6.67Dixon, Bradley180035N/A0/200N/A8.75	Bormolini, Zachary	36	0	1	31	31.00	1/11	0	0	0	36.00	5.17
Pearson, Glen78118080.001/2700078.006.15Kaseke, Samuel6003N/A0/3000N/A3.00Kenna, Jarryd241011N/A0/11000N/A2.75Riches, Stephen180017N/A0/17000N/A5.67Khan, Afrasiab180020N/A0/20000N/A6.67Dixon, Bradley180030N/A0/30000N/A10.00Naley, Gordon240035N/A0/2000N/A8.75	Horan, Tim	42	0	1	33	33.00	1/15	0	0	0	42.00	4.71
Kaseke, Samuel6003N/A0/3000N/A3.00Kenna, Jarryd241011N/A0/11000N/A2.75Riches, Stephen180017N/A0/17000N/A5.67Khan, Afrasiab180020N/A0/20000N/A6.67Dixon, Bradley180030N/A0/30000N/A10.00Naley, Gordon240035N/A0/200N/A8.75	Singh, Manvir	54	0	1	47	47.00	1/20	0	0	0	54.00	5.22
Kenna, Jarryd241011N/A0/11000N/A2.75Riches, Stephen180017N/A0/17000N/A5.67Khan, Afrasiab180020N/A0/20000N/A6.67Dixon, Bradley180030N/A0/30000N/A10.00Naley, Gordon240035N/A0/200N/A8.75	Pearson, Glen	78	1	1	80	80.00	1/27	0	0	0	78.00	6.15
Riches, Stephen180017N/A0/17000N/A5.67Khan, Afrasiab180020N/A0/20000N/A6.67Dixon, Bradley180030N/A0/30000N/A10.00Naley, Gordon240035N/A0/200N/A8.75	Kaseke, Samuel	6	0	0	3	N/A	0/3	0	0	0	N/A	3.00
Khan, Afrasiab180020N/A0/2000N/A6.67Dixon, Bradley180030N/A0/30000N/A10.00Naley, Gordon240035N/A0/200N/A8.75	Kenna, Jarryd	24	1	0	11	N/A	0/11	0	0	0	N/A	2.75
Dixon, Bradley 18 0 0 30 N/A 0/30 0 0 N/A 10.00 Naley, Gordon 24 0 0 35 N/A 0/2 0 0 N/A 8.75	Riches, Stephen	18	0	0	17	N/A	0/17	0	0	0	N/A	5.67
Naley, Gordon 24 0 0 35 N/A 0/2 0 0 N/A 8.75	Khan, Afrasiab	18	0	0	20	N/A	0/20	0	0	0	N/A	6.67
•	Dixon, Bradley	18	0	0	30	N/A	0/30	0	0	0	N/A	10.00
Liddle, Jesse 78 1 0 61 N/A 0/14 0 0 0 N/A 4.69	Naley, Gordon	24	0	0	35	N/A	0/2	0	0	0	N/A	8.75
	Liddle, Jesse	78	1	0	61	N/A	0/14	0	0	0	N/A	4.69

David 'Chuck' Berry Memorial Game Report

The 10th Dave Berry game between Bentley and South Perth was always going to be a hotly contested affair with the overall tally at 5-4 to Bentley and crucial points on offer to push for a spot in the top 4 in 9th grade.

The Bentley 4's were running hot too, putting three wins together from the last 3 games with South Perth winless since November. This would be the Bentley 4's best chance of winning a 2 dayer for the first time since 2013/14.

On a notoriously hot day Lizzie did not smile up on captain Smith and South Perth elected to bat. Chris Lockyer was wearing the #503 shirt as he was thrown the new ball for the first time all year. After a superb display of slow, accurate, swing bowling with the full toss wicket ball Lockyer had claimed 3/8 off 7 overs. Stace at the other end up the hill and into the breeze took a reaching C&B to have 1/18 off his 6. When Ericson was the sole appellant for the snick of captain Snow, the umpire was sympathetic and South Perth were 5/32.

A 33 run partnership then ensued between Best and Salter before deRozario pinged a throw to McNab who eventually found the stumps for a run out. Captain Smith then brought himself on and took 1/8 off his 7 before another run out from K Smith at fine leg saw the score at 8/69. The last 2 wickets were taken by Sumanasinghe bowling his confounding spin, 2/8 off 5 and South Perth were dismissed for a total of 83.

Captain Smith was determined if Bentley batted their overs they would win. He proceeded to install himself no. 1 in the batting order and faced the South Perth attacked. Captain Snow led from the front too, opening the attack and claiming the wicket of Ericson snicking behind on day 1. Sumanasinghe was put in at no. 3 for his defensive abilities and playing some very dry cricket Bentley got to stumps on day 1 at 1/25 off 23 overs, a mere 59 runs short of victory.

Week 2 was again a hot affair but the day did not go per script, Sumanasinghe LBW to another wicket ball full toss at the score of 31. This brought Matthew to the wicket who was summarily barbecued by Smith before Smith himself gloved one and walked, the 121 minute resistance yielding just 12 runs. K Smith was at the other end watching the carnage get worse as Liddle was bowled and the score line was on life support at 5/35, Bentley had lost 4/4 and the 84 run target looked far way indeed.

No. 7 bat Khan fell to the swing of Snow, caught behind and the score was 6/45. Stace swiped at a wide one nicking off having survived some close LBW shouts and the card read 7/65. The dire situation called for a Donald Trump inspired move, 'Let's Build A Wall.'

Into the cauldron strode McNab. A masterclass of concentration and hawk-like ball watching ensured. K Smith steadied at the other end before hitting the winning runs, a boundary pulled in front of square. A 3-wicket win chasing 84 was not what either team expected at the start of the day's play.

Captain Snow finally took himself off bowling, having bowled a marathon 24 over spell to get his team so close to the most unlikely of victories.

Some South Perth players were anticipating an early finish, the likely time being tea. Bentley was having none of that. K Smith and McNab settled down into a powerful partnership, taking advantage of the second and third string attack to flay boundaries in front and behind the wicket. K Smith went to 5 o'clock drinks at 91 and although all Bentley players were under order not to tell him his score, South Perth could see it in the score book and wasted no time in telling him all about it the moment play resumed. Some tense overs ensured but Smith got to his ton pulling a short one behind square to bring up the 100 with a boundary. He holed out to square leg a few overs later, a total of 106 and a partnership of 106 breaking the Bentley 4th team 8th wicket record.

But there was one last chapter in the day, as Captain Smith informed South Perth that one more wicket would bring stumps.

deRozario came to the crease and McNab hit out, the final wicket hadn't come as the last over of the day was bowled by Snow, some boundary side yelling informing McNab he was 5 short of his maiden half century.

The last over was something to behold, deRozario almost coming back for the 2 but McNab sent him back to the nonstrikers ensuring with one ball to go he needed a boundary to bring it up. The heaved slog to long on was deflected off the bounce but it got over the rope somehow and celebrations ensued.

Bentley finished the day 8/215 after South Perth used all 12 bowlers including an over from the keeper with pads still donned. Without a doubt the Chuck Berry medallist was Kieran Smith who got Bentley out of a big hole and brought up his second ton. McNab had the best batting performance of his career to date, sureing up the innings when the end was looming all too swiftly. The Chuck Berry trophy was regained by Bentley and the all-time score line 6-4 to BCC.

10 Years of Chuck Berry Games

2007/08 Bentley 8/219 def. South Perth 8/211 *Man of Match - B Daye*

2008/09 South Perth 183 def. Bentley 77 *Man of Match - J Cook*

2009/10 Bentley 4/102 def. South Perth 8/101 Man of Match - B Daye

2010/11 South Perth 5/146 def. Bentley 7/140 Man of Match - M Bailey

2011/12 South Perth 9/147 def. Bentley 146 Man of Match - M Turner 2012/13 Bentley 6/218 def. South Perth 192 *Man of Match - P Warren*

2013/14 Bentley 124 def. South Perth 61 *Man of Match - R Duncan*

2014/15 Bentley 138 def. South Perth 101 *Man of Match -* S Offer

2015/16 South Perth 5/156 def. Bentley 9/152 *Man of Match -* S *Reynold*s

> 2016/17 Bentley 8/215 def. South Perth 83 Man of Match - K Smith

THE DAVID BERRY MEMORIAL TROPHY BENTLEY VS SOUTH PERTH CRICKET CLUBS IN MEMORY OF A GREAT MATE AND A CHAMPION CRICKETER AT BOTH CLUBS RIP CHUCK



Photo courtesy of Peter Sharp Photography

Milestones Achieved

Milestone	Player	Grade	Date	Opponent
250 Matches	Glenn Davies	One Day	29/10/2016	Murdoch University Melville
200 Matches	Steven Paice	8th	15/10/2016	Applecross
200 Matches	Ken Dawson	One Day	11/02/2017	Swanbourne
200 Matches	Jamie George	One Day	11/02/2017	Swanbourne
150 Matches	Omid Fanayan	2nd	22/10/2016	Fremantle Mosman Park
150 Matches	Tim D'Souza	5th	26/11/2016	Ocean Ridge
150 Matches	Edward Daquino	One Day	3/12/2016	Western Suburbs
150 Matches	Brendan Daye	2nd	25/03/2017	Applecross
150 Matches	Laurence Paice	2nd	25/03/2017	Applecross
100 Matches	Simon Cleary	One Day	3/12/2016	Western Suburbs
100 Matches	Leigh Martin	2nd	04/03/2017	Doubleview Carine
100 Matches	Jarrad Sibson	8th	18/03/2017	Applecross
50 Matches	Les Saxon	One Day	13/02/2016	Fremantle Mosman Park *
50 Matches	Matthew Lockyer	2nd	4/02/2017	Bassendean
50 Matches	Rhys Tilbury	2nd	4/02/2017	Bassendean
50 Matches	Derryn Rive	9th	18/02/2017	Whitfords
50 Matches	Daniel Cheeseman	5th	18/03/2017	Murdoch University Melville
50 Matches	Mitchell Duncan	8th	18/03/2017	Applecross
* L Saxon retrospec	ctive (due to the change in the o	one day grade	of each game worth	
0500 D		044	47/40/0040	Outline Mariat
6500 Runs	Justin Warren	8th	17/12/2016	Subiaco Marist
5000 Runs	Anthony Magill	5th	26/03/2017	Ocean Ridge
4000 Runs	Peter Smith	9th	26/11/2016	Swan Athletic Caversham
3500 Runs	Steven Paice	8th	5/11/2016	Murdoch University Melville
3500 Runs	Christopher Pritchard	5th	12/11/2016	Curtin Victoria Park
3500 Runs	Jos Welsh	One Day	3/12/2016	Western Suburbs
3000 Runs	Brendan Daye	2nd	4/02/2017	Bassendean
2500 Runs	Christopher Lockyer	9th	10/12/2016	South Perth
2000 Runs	Geoff Dart	8th	12/11/2016	Tuart Hill
2000 Runs	Leigh Martin	2nd	19/03/2017	Tuart Hill
1500 Runs	Blair Chapman	8th	5/11/2016	Murdoch University Melville
1500 Runs	Jai Thomas	5th	10/12/2016	Subiaco Marist
1000 Runs	Damien Hewitt	5th	7/01/2017	Curtin Victoria Park
1000 Runs	Kieran Smith	9th	21/01/2017	South Perth
1000 Runs	Cam McNab	9th	4/02/2017	Murdoch University Melville
1000 Runs	Shane Saxon	5th	4/03/2017	Murdoch University Melville
500 Runs	Rhys Tilbury	5th	15/10/2016	Western Suburbs
500 Runs	Matthew Lockyer	2nd	3/12/2016	Ocean Ridge
500 Runs	Tim Horan	2nd	14/01/2017	Applecross
400 Wickets	Brendan Daye	2nd	10/12/2016	Applecross
100 Wickets	Simon Cleary	One Day	3/12/2016	Western Suburbs
100 Wickets	Joshua Ericson	9th	18/02/2017	Whitfords
50 Wickets	Daniel Cheeseman	2nd	15/10/2016	Tuart Hill
50 Wickets	Jay Smith	9th	22/10/2016	Curtin Victoria Park
50 Wickets	Evan Britton	5th	29/10/2016	Fremantle Mosman Park
50 Wickets	Ujjwal Bhan	8th	5/11/2016	Murdoch University Melville
50 Wickets	Steven Paice	8th	17/12/2016	Subiaco Marist
50 Wickets	Calum McMulkin	5th	7/01/2017	Curtin Victoria Park
50 Wickets	Laurence Paice	2nd	28/01/2017	Ocean Ridge

Milestones Achievable 2017/18

Milestone	Player	Current	Milestone	Player	Current
250 Matches	Shearing, Steven J	246.5	6500 Runs	Shearing, Steven J	6493
250 Matches	Warren, Justin A	244	5500 Runs	Harmer, Matthew J	5355
200 Matches	Chapman, Blair	191	4500 Runs	Fanayan, Omid	4333
150 Matches	Perrozzi, Serge	148	4000 Runs	George, Jamie	3966
150 Matches	deJager, Kenneth	145.5	4000 Runs	Paice, Steven	3876
150 Matches	Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan		4000 Runs	Pritchard, Christopher P	3777
100 Matches	Daye, Steven M	94.5	4000 Runs	Dawson, Ken C	3710
100 Matches	Duncan, Rodney	92.5	4000 Runs	Welsh, Jos	3642
100 Matches	Thomas, Jai P	91.5	3500 Runs	Paice, Laurence	3454
100 Matches	Solanki, Mauneek	89.5	3500 Runs	Davies, Glenn M	3439
100 Matches	Saxon, Shane	49.5	3500 Runs	Dart, Greg	3393
100 Matches	McMulkin, Calum J	47	3500 Runs	Fanayan, Fab	3280
50 Matches	Leng, Darren	44	3000 Runs	Daquino, Edward	2963
50 Matches	Bhan, Ujjwal	44	3000 Runs	Hewitt, Glen	2948
50 Matches	Britton, Evan R	38.5	3000 Runs	Perrozzi, Serge	2940
	,		2000 Runs	Daye, Steven M	1759
450 Wickets	Daye, Brendan	419	2000 Runs	McKeig, Donald R	1755
400 Wickets	Lockyer, Christopher	374	2000 Runs	Linehan, Paul J	1715
350 Wickets	George, Jamie	332	2000 Runs	Thomas, Jai P	1673
300 Wickets	Harmer, Matthew J	289	1500 Runs	Sibson, Jarrad	1384
300 Wickets	Chapman, Blair	283	1500 Runs	D'Souza, Timothy	1268
300 Wickets	D'Souza, Timothy	281	1000 Runs	Solanki, Mauneek	986
200 Wickets	Shah, Hiten	194	1000 Runs	Ericson, Joshua	960
200 Wickets	Duncan, Rodney	193	1000 Runs	Verco, Graeme	929
200 Wickets	deJager, Kenneth	176	1000 Runs	Lockyer, Matthew	784
150 Wickets	Smith, Peter C.	145	1000 Runs	Vlismas, Michael	751
150 Wickets	Thomas, Jai P	130	1000 Runs	Horan, Tim	673
150 Wickets	Shearing, Steven J	126	500 Runs	Riches, Jamey S	499
100 Wickets	Saxon, Les	94	500 Runs	Daw, Cameron	456
100 Wickets	Vlismas, Michael	92	500 Runs	Leng, Darren	419
100 Wickets	Hewitt, Glen	84	500 Runs	McMulkin, Calum J	379
100 Wickets	Duncan, Mitchell J	74	500 Runs	Duncan, Rodney	354
50 Wickets	McNab, Cameron R	42	500 Runs	Saxon, Les	336
50 Wickets	Daye, Steven M	41	500 Runs	Walley, Yagan	328
50 Wickets	Leng, Darren	36	500 Runs	Pearson, Glen	302
50 Wickets	McKeig, Donald R	32	500 Runs	Mathew, Mobin	263
50 Wickets	Martin, Leigh	32			
50 Wickets	Smith, Kieran E	32	300 Catches	Davies, Glenn M	293
50 Wickets	Walley, Yagan	31	150 Catches	Pritchard, Christopher P	149
50 Wickets	Robson, Matthew	25	150 Catches	Fanayan, Fab	134
			100 Catches	Smith, Peter C.	97
			100 Catches	Fanayan, Omid	95
			50 Catches	Pearson, Glen	43
			50 Catches	Chapman, Blair	40

Half Century Partnerships – 1st Side (incl. century p'ships)

No.	Player				
42	P.Quartermiane				
38	O.Fanayan				
35	L.Paice				
31	L.Dungey	S.Shearing			
30	A.Hayward				
26	B.Daye	K.Esmond	B.Hayward		
23	F.Fanayan				
17	D.Berry	P.Coverdale	H.Trevenen		
15	S.Rankin				
14	M.R.Smith				
13	P.Kenrick				
12	G.Farrall				
11	D.Arcaro	A.Magill	S.Paap	S.Perrozzi	
10	Greg Dart	I.Dickerson	M.Harmer	S.Vallow	
9	L.Thompson				
8	K.Dawson	R.Down	G.Harbord	P.Warren	
7	K.Chapman	Kris Elliott	M.Reilly	Jai Thomas	A.Wittensleger
6	T.Crossen M.Lockyer S.Saxon	C.Dymock C.Meuller P.Taylor	P.Farrall I.Pattison E.Treasure	William Harmer C.Prescott G.Verco	Tim Horan P.Roberts
5	M.Bates J.Sarre Aiden Thomas	C.Chilcott B.Sleeth	J.R.Clarke P.Smith	J.Duffy A.Spencer	D.Ewing S.Tagliaferri
4	G.Bezant D.Kinsella D.Solomon	R.Budd M.Knight B.Trouchet	E.Callis D.Rickards John Williams	M.Coates R.Ritchie	R.Fernandez M.Scholefield
3	N.Browne D.Hitchen G.Nairn R.Sarre	S.Carr Brendan Kelly S.O'Shea D.Taylor	R.Coffey J.Leitch E.Pumfrey David Tobin	G.Davies C.Marcar K.Ritchie H.Wiegele	R.Dungey S.Mills P.Sarre
2	T.Allin Greg Dickerson P.Hutton K.Little W.Skuthorp	A.Ball N.Haines P.Inkster S.Magill A.Tyler	J.Chandler D.Hewitt J.Kenna W.Pulver Brian Williams	S.Clark T.Horsell M.Knowles A.Rouse	S.Cox N.Hughes D.Letch C.Reynolds
1	P.Allen A.Brown Graham Dickerson Kieren Elliott T.Harrison D.Knowles N.Myers H.Shah C.Stephenson L.Wigg	B.Bowater S.Cairns M.Dickerson T.Francis K.Hocking P.Kocian A.Newcombe G.Sheppard S.Thorpe G.Woodhead	K.Boyes Gordon Clarke A.Dugan R.Gangell R.Kaine G.Letch C.Pritchard Darryl Smith R.Tilbury	C.Bradbury W.Coles K.Eamus S.Ghauri S.Kelly A.Lines M.Rolfe M.Solanki K.Trevenen	J.Brooks S.Collingwood V.Eikelboom M.Greenwood M.Kennedy M.Lukan R.Selkirk K.Spencer G.Troy

Half Century Partnerships – 2nd Side (incl. century p'ships)

Ian	Century	Faitherships		
No.	Player			
43	M.Harmer			
32	S.Magill			
28	C.Pritchard			
24	R.Fernandez			
23	P.Roberts			
20	B.Hayward			
18	William Harmer			
16	S.Paice			
15	L.Dungey			
13	M.Dickerson	F.Fanayan	D.Rickards	
12	S.Cairns	P.Kenrick	A.Magill	
11	S.Daye	S.Jefferys	Jai Thomas	
10	L.Martin	J.Welsh		
9	K.Chapman	G.Hewitt	G.Sheppard	J.Sibson
8	Greg Dickerson	I.Dickerson	O.Fanayan	A.Hayward
7	K.Dawson L.Moulton	G.Davies S.Rankin	Kieren Elliott	D.Hewitt
0			0 - "	
6	R.Budd R.Street	Greg Dart J.Warren	G.Farrall	R.Ritchie
5	P.Bradbrook	J.Chandler	S.Ghauri	M.Lukan
	A.McLevie	C.Reynolds	K.Spencer	P.Warren
4	D.Arcaro	D.Berry	S.Carr	G.Clarke
	R.Dungey	M.Farrall	J.Ford	J.George
	A.Hansen	J.Henshall	D.Hitchen	D.Knowles
	P.Murphy	L.Paice	M.Petta	C.Prescott
	K.Ritchie	S.Shearing	Brian Williams	T.Worcester
3	J.O.Clarke (snr)	S.Cox	C.Daw	B.Daye
	S.Farrall	S.Govindu	S.Hartley	J.Kozak
	S.O'Shea	Joe Porter	P.Quartermaine	M.Reilly
	A.Schneider	S.Thorpe	Dave Tobin	R.Walley
2	D.Barry	R.Bennett	K.Bevan	B.Bowater
	A.Brown	R.Bycroft	Graham Dickerson	J.Di Perna
	D.Ewing	L.Eynon	T.Francis	M.Geurds
	B.Haines	K.Harmer	T.Harrison	S.Hayward
	Brendan Kelly	M.Knowles	P.Liadow	P.Linehan
	N.Myers	J.Riches	P.Roach (snr)	M.Rolfe
	M.Sandison	B.Scalora	T.Shepherd	W.Skuthorp
	M.R.Smith	M.Solanki	J.Smyth	S.Tagliaferri
	Andrew Thomas		M.Tyas	S.Walker
	G.Woodhead	L.Woodley		
1	P.Allen	J.Atkinson	A.Beckett	L.Beckett
	B.Chapman	C.Chellew	D.Chemlal	C.Chilcott
	S.Cleary	G.Corey	K.De Jager	C.Dillon
	D.Dumitro	M.Duncan	K.Ferguson	R.Firth
	K.Fowler	D.Fox	M.Gilders	C.Grigg
	G.Harbord	R.Harmer	S.Henshall	B.Kay
	K.Kewan	D.Kinsella	A.Kuruppurachchi	M.Lockyer
	N.McGregor	J.McGurk	C.McMulkin	W.Mehdi
	C.Munro	G.Nairn	A.Nation	P.Neale
	L.Price	W.Pulver	E.Pumfrey	C.Radford
	C.Rickards	W.Rideout C.Smart	B.Savy	M.Seaman
	D.Sheppard R.Tilbury	D.Tomlinson	C.Stephenson G.Troy	E.Street D.Tyrie
	R.Hibury	D.TOMINSON		D. Tyrie Croig William

S.Weightman

S.Withnell

Jim Whyte

T.Woodruff

H.Wiegele

F.Woods

_

John Williams L.Thompson M.Knight S.Saxon D.McKeig D.Wilkie T.D'Souza H.Gray A.Malins S.Raju P.Farrall K.Little P.Sarre C.Bradbury V.Eikelboom D.Glover N.Hughes **B.Mitchell** R.Ross D.Smith D.Taylor A.Wittensleger G.Bezant J.R.Clarke (jnr) J.Duffy **B.Fleet** A.Groube S.Keefe K.Magill G.Miller **B.Pearson** M.Reay H.Shah Jaxon Thomas

B.Walker

A.Willis

Craig Williams

T.Zerafa

43

Half Century Partnerships – 3rd Side (incl. century p'ships)

No.	Player				
32	J.Warren				
27	S.Cairns				
22	R.Fernandez				
21	B.Chapman	L.Dungey			
20	S.Paice				
13	K.Chapman	S.Shearing	P.Warren	J.Welsh	
12	S.Jefferys	C.Pritchard			
10	C.Chappelle	J.George	Brendan Kelly		
9	E.Daquino T.Shepherd	J.Ford	D.Haines	G.Hewitt	A.Magill
8	P.Smith				
7	Geoff Dart John Williams	Greg Dickerson	L.Martin	P.Quartermaine	P.Roach (snr)
6	D.Fox	K.Spencer	S.Tagliaferri		
5	Greg Dart J.Hendry	M.Dickerson D.Jardine	M.Farrall	T.Groube J.Neilson	B.Hayward
4	R.Band G.Farrall W.McKay B.Napier J.Watson	R.Bennett A.Hayward D.McKeig J.Riches	G.Davies C.Lockyer T.McKenzie D.Rickards	D.Elpitelli S.Magill A.McLevie G.Sheppard	O.Fanayan A.Malins C.McNab Andrew Thomas
3	S.Arnott-Dungey D.Gascoigne P.Murphy D.Scott M.Vlismas	S.Cleary L.Guy M.O'Leary J.Sibson D.Wickramaratne	Kieren Elliott K.Harmer S.Perrozzi A.Singh S.Withnell	P.Farrall D.Knowles S.Raju N.Small	K.Ferguson J.McGurk P.Roach (jnr) M.Stephenson
2	S.Amato I.Dickerson D.Glover R.Kaine K.Magill C.Rickards S.Thorpe	D.Berry J.Di Perna S.G.Govindu P.Kenrick C.McMulkin K.Ritchie R.Tilbury	B.Bowater G.Formica J.Ham M.Khan B.Mitchell A.Saunders B.Wallace	D.Chemlal K.Fowler William Harmer A.Kuruppurachchi L.Moulton D.Sykes Michael Warren	K.Dawson S.Ghauri S.Henshall M.Lukan N.Patel M.Thomas
1	W.Allco R.Black J.Collings C.Daw G.Dunn M.Geurds B.Holly M.Knowles A.McCarthy G.O'Brien B.Savy D.Sheppard J.Thrupp S.Warwick D.Williams	D.Arcaro W.Blake B.Collins S.Dawson F.Fanayan A.Hansen John Hughes J.Kozak B.Millett R.Pachaiappan B.Scalora K.Smith G.Troy R.Whiley L.Woodley	D.Barry D.Brand G.Corey C.Dillon R.Fayyaz R.Harmer A.Hunt D.Ledden M.Murphy H.Patel A.Schneider J.Smyth M.Tyas C.White	S.Bawden A.Brown S.Crane T.D'Souza B.Fleet S.Hartley M.Kennedy P.Linehan G.Nairn S.Retallack C.Scott W.Snell K.Varischetti Jim Whyte	U.Bhan L.Catchpole B.Davis M.Duffy T.Francis D.Hewitt L.Kirwan I.Markham D.Narbey D.Savill J.Sewell M.Solanki Mark Warren D.Wilkie

Half Century Partnerships – 4th Side (incl. century p'ships)

No.	Player				
19	D.Haines	S.Shearing			
17	C.Chappelle	L.Dungey			
15	D.Berry				
14	P.Warren				
12	E.Daquino	G.Sheppard			
11	R.Fernandez	N.Gill			
10	G.Hewitt				
9	G.Davies	J.Warren			
8	K.Dawson P.Smith	Greg Dickerson D.Third	J.Ericson	Brendan Kelly	C.Scott
7	S.Cleary				
6	J.Duffy T.Zerafa	J.Hendry	S.Jefferys	C.Lockyer	K.Magill
5	Geoff Dart	S.Daye	Michael Warren		
4	B.Bindon S.Crane D.Leng S.Perrozzi	M.Birch K.De Jager P.Linehan	L.Bradburn I.Dickerson A.Magill	D.Butler K.Ferguson C.McNab	B.Collins J.George B.Millett
3	M.Artie L.Herron K.Smith	S.Cairns D.McKeig Andrew Thomas	G.Edmonds A.Nation	D.Elpitelli H.Patel	T.Groube M.Saxon
2	T.Chapman S.George S.Paice M.Solanki J.Welsh	Brad Davis B.Keenan S.Qaimjan K.Spencer	B.Elliman D.McKeown P.Roach jnr A.Stace	Kieren Elliott C.McMulkin B.Scalora G.Terriaca	D.Gascoigne B.Mitchell K.Sloper M.Vlismas
1	R.Ambati A.Brown C.Dalton M.Dicker-Lee T.Francis A.Hansen B.Holly J.Kane V.Lall W.McKay M.O'Leary L.Selfe S.Tagliaferri B.Walker	J.Atkinson R.Budd Greg Dart M.Dickerson B.Ferguson L.Harris D.Hudson M.Kennedy N.Leonard W.Mehdi S.O'Shea W.Shaw M.Tahir L.Woolhead	D.Barry A.Catterall S.Dawson S.Duncan A.Godwin S.Hayward A.Jackson M.Khan L.Martin D.Morrissey J.Riches G.Smith C.Taylor John Whyte	R.Bennett B.Chapman S.Delane J.Eaton S.G.Govindu S.Henshall R.Jevons M.Kinch M.Massee J.Neilson D.Rickards N.Small A.Tyler	W.Blake G.Crogan T.deRozario T.Evans J.Greenwell D.Hewitt B.Joseph L.Kirwan M.Mathew A.Notte G.Scholes D.Sykes R.Vanam

Half Century Partnerships – 5th Side (incl. century p'ships)

No.	Player				
26	L.Dungey				
16	S.Cairns				
9	E.Daquino	Geoff Dart	J.George		
7	S.Dawson	K.Spencer			
6	C.Chappelle	G.Hewitt	J.Warren		
5	T.Chapman	D.Haines	C.Taylor		
4	B.Elliman	B.Holly			
3	B.Bindon S.Plunkett	C.Durham D.Third	R.Fernandez P.Warren	J.Katsikis	A.Manjire
2	S.Amato K.Dawson M.Gilders B.Keenan G.Nairn G.Sheppard	S.Arnott-Dungey S.Daye S.Henshall M.Lisk J.Nairn P.Smith	R.Budd S.Delane D.Herath R.Marriner S.Perrozzi Chris Williams	B.Collins A.Flynn C.Hewson D.McAllister G.Scholes	Greg Dart S.George S.Jefferys J.McColl W.Shaw
1	D.Barry J.Chandler O.Fanayan L.Halai J.Lockyer B.Millett P.Pringle Michael Warren	W.Blake B.Chapman K.Ferguson M.Holland K.Magill B.Mitchell S.Ritchie J.Welsh	G.Boulazeris K.De Jager D.Gascoigne R.Jevons D.Manser G.Moynihan C.Smart John Williams	R.Braams Greg Dickerson A.Godwin M.Jolly M.Massee S.Paice G.Terriaca	S.Brown T.Evans T.Groube C.Lockyer A.McLevie C.Price B.Thompson

* No longer fielding this team

Half Century Partnerships – One Day Side (incl. century p'ships) 47

No.	Player				
22	P.Smith				
19	S.Shearing				
17	J.Welsh				
16	D.Arcaro				
15	S.Perrozzi				
13	K.Dawson	J.Warren			
12	P.Linehan	A.Magill			
11	C.Taylor				
10	J.George				
9	S.Cleary	P.Warren			
7	E.Daquino	A.Nation	R.Pachaiappan		
6	T.Groube				
5	G.Sheppard				
4	A.Abbas C.Lockyer	G.Davies L.Martin	S.Dawson L.Saxon	L.Dungey K.Smith	S.George Mark Warren
3	A.Brown Michael Warren	D.Haines	C.McNab	A.Singh	J.Smyth
2	M.Blackmore L.Harris W.Mehdi	C.Bradbury B.Keenan	Geoff Dart P.Liadow	K.De Jager S.Lloyde	R.Hampson K.Madamshetti
1	B.Andrews P.Coverdale S.Duncan G.Hatherley D.Laing B.Millett D.Solomon	D.Barry A.Day C.Dymock G.Hewitt J.Liddle G.Naley C.Strauss	M.Birch S.Daye M.Gilders S.Jefferys J.Lockyer G.Pearson S.Sullivan	S.Cairns T.D'Souza S.G.Govindu S.Kaseke A.Manjire T.Pringle J.Twomey	O.Conley J.Duffy A.Harris M.Knight W.McKay M.Singh

Ralph Dungey Award

1973/74Ken Little1974/75John Williams1975/76Len Woodley1976/77Ron Street1977/78Anthony Malins1978/79Phil Roberts1978/79Phil Roberts1978/80Andrew Hayward1980/81Alf Schneider1981/82William Skuthorp1982/83Ray Harmer1983/84Peter Farrall1984/85Ray Harmer1985/86Kim Fowler1986/87Steve Carr1987/88Graham Dickerso1988/89Chris Lockyer1989/90Mark Lukan1990/91John Williams	'n
1975/76Len Woodley1975/76Ron Street1976/77Ron Street1977/78Anthony Malins1978/79Phil Roberts1979/80Andrew Hayward1980/81Alf Schneider1980/81Alf Schneider1981/82William Skuthorp1982/83Ray Harmer1983/84Peter Farrall1984/85Ray Harmer1985/86Kim Fowler1986/87Steve Carr1987/88Graham Dickerso1988/89Chris Lockyer1989/90Mark Lukan	'n
1976/77Ron Street1977/78Anthony Malins1978/79Phil Roberts1978/79Phil Roberts1979/80Andrew Hayward1980/81Alf Schneider1980/81Alf Schneider1981/82William Skuthorp1982/83Ray Harmer1983/84Peter Farrall1984/85Ray Harmer1985/86Kim Fowler1986/87Steve Carr1987/88Graham Dickerso1988/89Chris Lockyer1989/90Mark Lukan	'n
1977/78Anthony Malins1978/79Phil Roberts1979/80Andrew Hayward1980/81Alf Schneider1980/81Alf Schneider1981/82William Skuthorp1982/83Ray Harmer1983/84Peter Farrall1984/85Ray Harmer1985/86Kim Fowler1986/87Steve Carr1987/88Graham Dickerso1988/89Chris Lockyer1989/90Mark Lukan	'n
1978/79Phil Roberts1979/80Andrew Hayward1980/81Alf Schneider1980/81Alf Schneider1981/82William Skuthorp1982/83Ray Harmer1983/84Peter Farrall1984/85Ray Harmer1985/86Kim Fowler1986/87Steve Carr1987/88Graham Dickerso1988/89Chris Lockyer1989/90Mark Lukan	'n
1979/80Andrew Hayward1980/81Alf Schneider1981/82William Skuthorp1982/83Ray Harmer1983/84Peter Farrall1983/84Ray Harmer1985/86Kim Fowler1985/86Kim Fowler1986/87Steve Carr1987/88Graham Dickerso1988/89Chris Lockyer1989/90Mark Lukan	'n
1980/81Alf Schneider1981/82William Skuthorp1982/83Ray Harmer1983/84Peter Farrall1984/85Ray Harmer1985/86Kim Fowler1986/87Steve Carr1987/88Graham Dickerson1988/89Chris Lockyer1989/90Mark Lukan	'n
1981/82William Skuthorp1982/83Ray Harmer1983/84Peter Farrall1984/85Ray Harmer1985/86Kim Fowler1986/87Steve Carr1987/88Graham Dickerso1988/89Chris Lockyer1989/90Mark Lukan	'n
1982/83Ray Harmer1983/84Peter Farrall1983/84Peter Farrall1984/85Ray Harmer1985/86Kim Fowler1986/87Steve Carr1987/88Graham Dickerson1988/89Chris Lockyer1989/90Mark Lukan	'n
1983/84Peter Farrall1983/84Peter Farrall1984/85Ray Harmer1985/86Kim Fowler1986/87Steve Carr1987/88Graham Dickerso1988/89Chris Lockyer1989/90Mark Lukan	'n
1984/85Ray Harmer1985/86Kim Fowler1986/87Steve Carr1987/88Graham Dickerso1988/89Chris Lockyer1989/90Mark Lukan	'n
1985/86Kim Fowler1986/87Steve Carr1987/88Graham Dickerso1988/89Chris Lockyer1989/90Mark Lukan	'n
1986/87Steve Carr1987/88Graham Dickerso1988/89Chris Lockyer1989/90Mark Lukan	'n
1987/88Graham Dickerso1988/89Chris Lockyer1989/90Mark Lukan	'n
1988/89Chris Lockyer1989/90Mark Lukan	n
1989/90 Mark Lukan	
1990/91 John Williams	
1991/92 Anthony Magill	
1992/93 Malcolm Dickerso	on
1993/94 Anthony Magill	
1994/95 Kirk Spencer	
1995/96 Anthony Magill	
1996/97 Andrew Hayward	
1997/98 Kirk Spencer	
1998/99 Malcolm Dickerso	on
1999/00 Scott Vallow	
2000/01 Jamie George	
2001/02 Hudson Trevenen	
2002/03 Hudson Trevenen	
2003/04 Darren Third	
2004/05 Darren Third	
2005/06 Chris Prescott	
2006/07 Jamie George	
2007/08 Omid Fanayan	
2008/09 Peter Smith	
2009/10 Brad Keenan	
2010/11 Omid Fanayan	
2011/12 Michael Vlismas	
2012/13 Sergi Perrozzi	
2013/14 Anthony Groube	
2014/15 Laurence Paice	
2015/16 Laurence Paice	
2016/17 Jai Thomas	

Consistency Award

2001/02	Russell Budd
2002/03	Shaun O'Shea
2003/04	Hudson Trevenen
2004/05	lan Pattison
2005/06	Jamie Hendry
2006/07	Steven Clark
2007/08	Chris Taylor
2008/09	Brendan Daye
2009/10	Brendan Daye
2010/11	Brendan Daye
2011/12	Chris Lockyer
2012/13	Brendan Daye
2013/14	Anthony Magill
2014/15	Jai Thomas
2015/16	Brendan Daye
2016/17	Brendan Daye

Top Performers – Career

Matches		Runs		Run Outs	
Dungey, Donald L	563.5	Dungey, Donald L	11583	Dungey, Donald L	34.5
Cairns, Stephen G	430.5	Warren, Justin A	6582	Magill, Anthony J	31.5
Farrall, Geoff	408.5	Shearing, Steven J	6493	Dickerson, Malcolm	23
Hayward, Brian	312	Cairns, Stephen G	6174	Dart, Geoffrey	22.5
Harmer, Matthew J	306.5	Hayward, Brian	6122	Harmer, Matthew J	21
Magill, Anthony J	277.5	Warren, Paul	5425	Davies, Glenn M	16.5
Malins, Anthony	260.5	Harmer, Matthew J	5355	Nairn, Gregory J	16.5
Davies, Glenn M	255.5	Quartermaine, Peter	5025	Paice, Steven	14
Nairn, Gregory J	250	Magill, Anthony J	5016	Warren, Paul	13.5
Shearing, Steven J	246.5	Hayward, Andrew	4959	George, Jamie	13
Warren, Justin A	244	Farrall, Geoff	4727	Fanayan, Fab	12
Magill, Simon	242	Fanayan, Omid	4333	Hayward, Brian	11.5
Hayward, Andrew	238.5	Fernandez, Ron G.	4216	Warren, Justin A	11.5
Woodhead, George	231	Smith, Peter C.	4131		
Warren, Paul	228.5	Sheppard, Gregory	4019		
Fours		Sixes		Balls Bowled	
Dungey, Donald L	963	Warren, Justin A	163	Farrall, Geoff	34219
Warren, Justin A	657	Magill, Anthony J	155	Malins, Anthony	27730
Hayward, Brian	603	Warren, Paul	112	Nairn, Gregory J	23136
Warren, Paul	583	Cleary, Simon V	93	Magill, Anthony J	18166
Shearing, Steven J	547	Arcaro, Daniel	77	Hayward, Andrew	15967
Harmer, Matthew J	521	Dungey, Donald L	76	Daye, Brendan	15038
Magill, Anthony J	499	Taylor, Chris	73	Woodhead, George	14627
Fanayan, Omid	489	George, Jamie	67	Dickerson, Ian	14081
Sheppard, Gregory	481	Harmer, William (Bill)	61	Lockyer, Christopher	12906
Smith, Peter C.	481	Smith, Peter C.	54	Williams, John	12606
George, Jamie	448	Spencer, Kirk	54	Rankin, Stuart	11430
Paice, Steven	430	Sheppard, Gregory	52	O'Shea, Shaun	11080
Farrall, Geoff	422	Fernandez, Ron G.	45	Chapman, Blair	10785
Fanayan, Fab	407	Hendry, Jamie	44	Harmer, Matthew J	10633
				Lukan, Mark	10394
Wickets		Maidens		Dismissals	
Farrall, Geoff	1286	Nairn, Gregory J	1177	Davies, Glenn M	317
Malins, Anthony	773	Malins, Anthony	1085	Warren, Paul	266
Nairn, Gregory J	634	Magill, Anthony J	787	Dart, Geoffrey	219
Woodhead, George	524	Farrall, Geoff	738	Hayward, Brian	214
Magill, Anthony J	467	Daye, Brendan	733	Dungey, Donald L	212
Daye, Brendan	419	Hayward, Andrew	613	Harmer, Matthew J	181
Williams, John	410	Dickerson, lan	599	Warren, Justin A	173
Ritchie, Roy	393	Lockyer, Christopher	554	Tagliaferri, Steve	162
Hayward, Andrew	384	Shah, Hiten	491	Pritchard, Christopher	153
Lockyer, Christopher	374	Lukan, Mark	488	Esmond, Ken	152
Rankin, Stuart	351	O'Shea, Shaun	441	Farrall, Geoff	146
Trouchet, Brian	338	Harmer, Matthew J	411	Fanayan, Fab	143
O'Shea, Shaun	334	George, Jamie	402	Mills, Steve	143
George, Jamie	332	Rankin, Stuart	370	Cairns, Stephen G	139
Dickerson, lan	320	D'Souza, Timothy	368	Dart, Greg	131

Top Performers – 1st Side

Matches		Runs		Run Outs	
Dungey, Donald L	228	Dungey, Donald L	4427	Dickerson, Malcolm	14.5
Hayward, Brian	189	Quartermaine, Peter	4076	Magill, Anthony	14
Hayward, Andrew	185	Hayward, Andrew	3761	Dungey, Donald L	11
Farrall, Geoff	175	Hayward, Brian	3305	Daye, Brendan	11
Quartermaine, Peter	167	Fanayan, Omid	3229	Harmer, Matthew J	10.5
Daye, Brendan	142.5	Paice, Laurence	3218	Fanayan, Fab	9.5
Paice, Laurence	139.5	Daye, Brendan	2956	Hayward, Brian	9
Fanayan, Fab	136.5	Esmond, Ken	2783	Berry, David P	8
Fanayan, Omid	135.5	Farrall, Geoff	2559	Solomon, Darren J	7.5
Dart, Greg	116	Shearing, Steven J	2491	Hayward, Andrew	6.5
Trouchet, Brian	116	Fanayan, Fab	2109	Nairn, Gregory J	6.5
Magill, Anthony	111	Rankin, Stuart	2082	Mills, Steve	6
Shearing, Steven J	110	Dart, Greg	2040	Fanayan, Omid	5
Nairn, Gregory J	108	Berry, David P	1802	Prescott, Chris	5
Shah, Hiten	101	Thompson, Lance	1609		
Fours		Sixes		Balls Bowled	
Fanayan, Omid	371	Dungey, Donald L	30	Daye, Brendan	14589
Dungey, Donald L	334	Magill, Anthony	30	Farrall, Geoff	13811
Paice, Laurence	327	Thompson, Lance	17	Hayward, Andrew	11561
Hayward, Andrew	294	Wittensleger, Arden	17	Nairn, Gregory J	10443
Daye, Brendan	286	Berry, David P	15	Rankin, Stuart	9897
Hayward, Brian	280	Hayward, Brian	14	O'Shea, Shaun	8976
Farrall, Geoff	264	Dickerson, lan	14	Malins, Anthony	8813
Fanayan, Fab	259	Warren, Paul F	14	Trouchet, Brian	8614
Quartermaine, Peter	248	Arcaro, Daniel	13	Magill, Anthony	8569
Esmond, Ken	245	Coverdale, Paul S	12	Prescott, Chris	8038
Shearing, Steven J	220	Fanayan, Omid	11	Shah, Hiten	7986
Trevenen, Hudson	186	Fanayan, Fab	11	Dickerson, lan	6148
Thompson, Lance	183	Smith, Mathew R	11	Treasure, Edward	4520
Rankin, Stuart	173			Woodhead, George	4446
Berry, David P	162			Street, Eddie	3692
Wickets		Maidens		Dismissals	
Farrall, Geoff	541	Daye, Brendan	712	Mills, Steve	141
Daye, Brendan	408	Nairn, Gregory J	468	Fanayan, Fab	130
Rankin, Stuart	296	Hayward, Andrew	438	Hayward, Brian	129
Trouchet, Brian	292	Shah, Hiten	426	Paice, Laurence	115
O'Shea, Shaun	262	Magill, Anthony	377	Warren, Paul F	115
Hayward, Andrew	255	O'Shea, Shaun	338	Dungey, Donald L	107
Malins, Anthony	253	Prescott, Chris	325	Hayward, Andrew	107
Nairn, Gregory J	240	Rankin, Stuart	287	Esmond, Ken	107
Prescott, Chris	222	Farrall, Geoff	248	Farrall, Geoff	98
Magill, Anthony	209	Malins, Anthony	238	Berry, David P	89
Shah, Hiten	172	Dickerson, lan	216	Fanayan, Omid	86
Treasure, Edward	155	Trouchet, Brian	188	Solomon, Darren J	80
Woodhead, George	148	Gittus, David	168	Thompson, Lance	77
Ritchie, roy	139	Vallow, Scott	160	Daye, Brendan	75
Dickerson, lan	123	Treasure, Edward	147		

Top Performers – 2nd Side

Matches		Runs		Run Outs	
Harmer, Matthew J	180	Harmer, Matthew J	3744	Magill, Anthony	11.5
Magill, Simon	165	Magill, Simon	3047	Harmer, Matthew J	9.5
Cairns, Stephen G	131	Pritchard, Chris P	2470	Dickerson, Malcolm	6
Davies, Glenn M	131	Harmer, William	2318	Davies, Glenn M	5
Woodhead, George	121	Roberts, Phil	2299	Paice, Steven	5
Ritchie, Roy	119	Hayward, Brian	2179	Sibson, Jarrad	4.5
Malins, Anthony	114	Kenrick, Phil	1689	Lukan, Mark	4
Pritchard, Chris P	111	Cairns, Stephen G	1674	Murphy, Paul	3.5
Street, Ron	106	Davies, Glenn M	1650	Dungey, Donald L	3.5
Hayward, Brian	96	Paice, Steven	1613	D'Souza, Timothy	3.5
Paice, Steven	96	Dungey, Donald L	1539	Hansen, Andrew	3.5
Dickerson, Greg J	95	Magill, Anthony	1513	Pritchard, Chris P	3.5
Magill, Anthony	94	Street, Ron	1491	Lockyer, Chris	3.5
Dungey, Ralph	93	Fernandez, Ron G	1471		
D'Souza, Timothy	91	Ritchie, Roy	1455		
Fours		Sixes		Balls Bowled	
Harmer, Matthew J	386	Harmer, William	46	Malins, Anthony	12583
Magill, Simon	281	Magill, Anthony	39	Woodhead, George	9041
Pritchard, Chris P	257	Sheppard, Greg	22	Harmer, Matthew J	8805
Hayward, Brian	253	Malins, Anthony	19	Street, Ron	7417
Harmer, William	248	Fernandez, Ron G	18	Ritchie, Roy	6398
Roberts, Phil	209	Spencer, Kirk	13	D'Souza, Timothy	6281
Paice, Steven	191	Warren, Paul F	13	Lukan, Mark	5661
Rickards, Damian	173	Roberts, Phil	12	Harmer, Ray	5323
Magill, Anthony	157	Harmer, Matthew J	11	Farrall, Geoff	5278
Sheppard, Greg	149	Ritchie, Ken	11	Dickerson, lan	5141
Dickerson, Greg J	142	George, Jamie	11	Magill, Anthony	5085
Kenrick, Phil	139	Rickards, Damian	10	Farrall, Steven	4272
Ritchie, Roy	139	Fanayan, Fab	10	Williams, John	3937
Davies, Glenn M	132	Tobin, David	10	Little, Ken	3858
Thomas, Jai P	128	Murphy, Paul	10	Spencer, Kirk	3640
Wickets		Maidens		Dismissals	
Malins, Anthony	332	Malins, Anthony	474	Davies, Glenn M	179
Woodhead, George	326	Harmer, Matthew J	348	Harmer, Matthew J	96
Ritchie, Roy	254	Lukan, Mark	283	Pritchard, Chris P	86
Harmer, Matthew J	234	Magill, Anthony	238	Magill, Simon	84
Farrall, Geoff	229	Dickerson, Ian	237	Hayward, Brian	77
Street, Ron	201	D'Souza, Timothy	223	Harmer, William	70
D'Souza, Timothy	169	Harmer, Ray	219	Kenrick, Phil	67
Lukan, Mark	154	Nairn, Gregory J	181	Napier, Bruce	61
Magill, Anthony	129	Woodhead, George	169	Farrall, Peter	56
Harmer, Ray	128	Street, Ron	169	Sibson, Jarrad	53
Williams, John	125	Spencer, Kirk	150	Di Perna, John	49
Farrall, Steven	123	Fisk, Anthony	144	Roberts, Phil	47
Dickerson, lan	119	Dickerson, Malcolm	126	Malins, Anthony	46
Little, Ken	115	Barry, David K	125	Paice, Steven	45
Spencer, Kirk	111	Hayward, Andrew	119	Cairns, Stephen G	45

Top Performers – 3rd Side

Matches		Runs		Run Outs	
Farrall, Geoff	156	Warren, Justin A	3209	Dungey, Donald L	10
Chapman, Blair	122.5	Cairns, Stephen G	2257	Dart, Geoffrey	7.5
Warren, Justin A	122	Dungey, Donald L	1790	Chapman, Blair	6
Cairns, Stephen G	118	Paice, Steven	1581	Paice, Steven	5
Dungey, Donald L	101	Warren, Paul F	1486	Kelly, Brendan	5
Roach, Peter (Snr)	85	Chapman, Keith	1393	George, Jamie	4.5
Dart, Geoffrey	83	Roach, Peter (Snr)	1375	Pritchard, Chris P	4.5
Williams, John	81	George, Jamie	1346	McKeig, Donald R	4.5
George, Jamie	73	Williams, John	1248	Scalora, Bart	4
Paice, Steven	70.5	Pritchard, Chris P	1173	Warren, Justin A	3.5
Hewitt, Glen	67.5	Shearing, Steven J	1163	Cairns, Stephen G	3.5
Chapman, Keith	65	Welsh, Jos	1144	Magill, Simon	3.5
Lockyer, Chris	65	Chapman, Blair	1131	Scott, Dean	3.5
Roach, Peter (Jnr)	61	Fernandez, Ron G	1123		
Scott, Dean	54	Hewitt, Glen	1098		
Fours		Sixes		Balls Bowled	
Warren, Justin A	328	Warren, Justin A	48	Farrall, Geoff	13643
Paice, Steven	175	Warren, Paul F	25	Chapman, Blair	6285
George, Jamie	155	Cleary, Simon V	25	Malins, Anthony	5702
Warren, Paul F	153	Magill, Anthony	22	George, Jamie	5058
Cairns, Stephen G	140	Hendry, Jamie	22	Williams, John	4997
Welsh, Jos	135	George, Jamie	13	Scott, Dean	4595
Pritchard, Chris P	133	Welsh, Jos	13	Lockyer, Chris	3867
Dungey, Donald L	125	Roach, Peter (Jnr)	12	Roach, Peter (Jnr)	3732
Daquino, Ed	105	Dungey, Donald L	11	King, Steve	3662
Shearing, Steven J	104	Sheppard, Greg	9	Hughes, John	3465
Hewitt, Glen	103	Malins, Anthony	9	Hendry, Jamie	3315
Smith, Peter C	103	Smith, Peter C	8	Lukan, Mark	2983
Fernandez, Ron G	96	Thomas, Andrew	8	Gascoigne, Derek	2844
Magill, Anthony	96			Harmer, Ray	2688
				Guy, Lindsay	2623
Wickets		Maidens		Dismissals	
Farrall, Geoff	446	Farrall, Geoff	365	Dart, Geoffrey	99
Chapman, Blair	182	Malins, Anthony	344	Warren, Justin A	88
Williams, John	180	Scott, Dean	237	Pritchard, Chris P	62
Malins, Anthony	166	George, Jamie	224	Tagliaferri, Steve	62
George, Jamie	164	Chapman, Blair	193	Kelly, Brendan	61
Scott, Dean	120	Lockyer, Chris	159	Cairns, Stephen G	55
Lockyer, Chris	120	Hughes, John	155	Paice, Steven	52
Harmer, Ray	113	Hendry, Jamie	149	Napier, Bruce	46
King, Steve	112	Williams, John	148	Jeffreys, Stewart D	44
Lukan, Mark	97	Lukan, Mark	147	Harmer, Ken	43
Roach, Peter (Jnr)	96	Gascoigne, Derek	131	Warren, Paul F	43
Hughes, John	94	Roach, Peter (Jnr)	130	Dart, Greg	41
Gascoigne, Derek	84	Harmer, Ray	115	Wickramaratne, Dammica	38
Hendry, Jamie	79	King, Steve	113	Davies, Glenn M	36
Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	69	Guy, Lindsay	112	Farrall, Geoff	34

Top Performers – 4th Side

Matches		Runs		Run Outs	
Lockyer, Chris	90	Haines, Douglas	1512	Dart, Geoffrey	8.5
Dungey, Donald L	84	Sheppard, Greg	1333	Chappelle, Culver	7
de Jager, Ken	78	Dungey, Donald L	1289	Dungey, Donald L	5
Smith, Peter C	64.5	Shearing, Steven J	1257	Warren, Paul F	4.5
Daquino, Ed	63	Chappelle, Culver	1222	McNab, Cameron R	4.5
Dart, Geoffrey	58	Smith, Peter C	1165	Edmonds, Gus	4.5
Chappelle, Culver	57	Warren, Paul F	1124	Lockyer, Chris	4
Haines, Douglas	56	Berry, David P	1069	Scott, Chris	4
Gascoigne, Derek	54	Daquino, Ed	979	Ericson, Joshua	4
Smith, Jay	54	Dickerson, Greg J	928	Gascoigne, Derek	3.5
Sheppard, Greg	51	Fernandez, Ron G	901	Berry, David P	3
Hewitt, Glen	47	Warren, Justin A	861	Warren, Michael J	3
Dickerson, Greg J	46	Lockyer, Chris	821	GILL, NIRMAL	3
Edmonds, Gus	45	Ericson, Joshua	795	Davies, Glenn M	3
Warren, Paul F	44.5	Kelly, Brendan	725	Massee, Martin	3
Fours		Sixes		Balls Bowled	
Haines, Douglas	163	Warren, Paul F	34	Lockyer, Chris	6505
Sheppard, Greg	160	Warren, Justin A	31	de Jager, Ken	3832
Smith, Peter C	145	Cleary, Simon V	28	Edmonds, Gus	3646
Dungey, Donald L	133	Hendry, Jamie	18	Gascoigne, Derek	3434
Daquino, Ed	128	Lockyer, Chris	16	Nairn, Gregory J	2542
Berry, David P	121	Sheppard, Greg	15	Third, Darren	2024
Warren, Paul F	115	Fernandez, Ron G	14	Smith, Peter C	1980
Dickerson, Greg J	112	Magill, Anthony	13	Smith, Jay	1946
Chappelle, Culver	95	Smith, Peter C	12	Sheppard, Greg	1943
Shearing, Steven J	91	Dickerson, Greg J	12	Hendry, Jamie	1839
Fernandez, Ron G	85	Berry, David P	11	Ericson, Joshua	1783
Warren, Justin A	85	Haines, Douglas	10	Massee, Martin	1701
Smith, Kieran E	77	Daquino, Ed	10	Perrozzi, Serge	1630
Scott, Chris	71	Amato, Shane	10	Vlisman, Michael	1513
				Dickerson, lan	1486
Wickets		Maidens		Dismissals	
Lockyer, Chris	182	Lockyer, Chris	299	Chappelle, Culver	55
Edmonds, Gus	125	Gascoigne, Derek	158	Scott, Chris	48
Gascoigne, Derek	97	de Jager, Ken	154	Warren, Paul F	47
Nairn, Gregory J	91	Edmonds, Gus	152	Davies, Glenn M	43
de Jager, Ken	89	Nairn, Gregory J	135	Smith, Peter C	37
Sheppard, Greg	63	Massee, Martin	99	Haines, Douglas	35
Third, Darren	59	Hendry, Jamie	93	de Jager, Ken	33
Hendry, Jamie	56	Crane, Shayne	79	Dart, Geoffrey	32
Perrozzi, Serge	54	Third, Darren	71	Chapman, Trent	32
Baldwin, Andrew	53	Dickerson, lan	71	Fernandez, Ron G	32
Smith, Peter C	52	Smith, Peter C	60	Dickerson, Greg J	27
GILL, NIRMAL	50	Sheppard, Greg	53	Kelly, Brendan	25
Dickerson, lan	47	Cleary, Simon V	52	McNab, Cameron R	24
Smith, Jay	47	Perrozzi, Serge	50	Gascoigne, Derek	24
Warren, Michael J	47	Guy, Lindsay	50	Warren, Michael J	24

Top Performers – 5th Side (no longer fielding this side)

Carins, Stephen G 113 Dungey, Donald L 2217 Naim, Gregory J 8 Maim, Gregory J 84 Cairos, Stephen G 1516 Dungey, Donald L 5 Dungey, Donald L 78 Spencer, Kirk 881 Bindon, Bruce 4.5 Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan 55 Dart, Geoffrey 718 Warren, Justin A 492 Dart, Geoffrey 34 Marren, Justin A 662 Chapman, Trent 3.5 Shaw, Warren 47 Naim, Joshua G 2.5 Dawson, Stafford G 611 Amont-Dungey, Sheahan 2.5 Patridge, Geoffrey 37 Keenan, Bradley 600 Kaskow, Thornas J 2.5 Spencer, Kirk 36 Daquino, Ed 573 Spencer, Kirk 2 Chapman, Blair 34 Shaw, Warren 538 Geogre, Jamie 2 Keenan, Bradley 32 Chapman, Trent 517 Plunkett, Sean 2 Naire, Justin A 107 Dungey, Donald L 25 Shaw, Warren 207	Matches		Runs		Run Outs	
Dungey, Donaid L 78 Spencer, Kirk 81 Bindon, Bruce 4.5 Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan 55 Dart, Geoffrey 718 Warren, Justin A 49 Dart, Geoffrey 54 Warren, Justin A 692 Chapman, Trent 3.5 Shaw, Warren 47 Naim, Gregory J 662 Chapman, Trent 3.5 Swansson, Daniel 39 Hewitt, Gien 611 Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan 2.5 Partridge, Geoffrey 37 Keenan, Bradley 600 Kaskow, Thomas J 2.5 Spencer, Kirk 36 Daquino, Ed 573 Spencer, Kirk 2 Chapman, Blair 34 Shaw, Warren 538 George, Jamie 2 Keenan, Bradley 32 Chapman, Trent 517 Plunkett, Sean 2 Nicol, John 27 Spencer, Kirk 30 Naim, Gregory J 6590 Spencer, Kirk 10 Dungey, Donaid L 25 Shaw, Warren 2672 Caims, Stephen G 94 Taylor, Chris<	Cairns, Stephen G	113	Dungey, Donald L	2217	Nairn, Gregory J	8
Armon-Dungey, Sheahan 55 Dart, Geoffrey 718 Warren, Justin A 492 Dart, Geoffrey 54 Warren, Justin A 692 Dart, Geoffrey 3.5 Naim, Joshua G 41 George, Jamie 651 Keenan, Bradley 3.5 Naim, Joshua G 31 Hewitt, Glen 611 Amin, Joshua G 2.5 Dawson, Stafford G 37 Dawson, Stafford G 611 Armot-Dungey, Sheahan 2.5 Partridge, Geoffrey 37 Keenan, Bradley 600 Kaskow, Thomas J 2.5 Partridge, Geoffrey 37 Keenan, Bradley 600 Kaskow, Thomas J 2.5 Spencer, Kirk 36 Daquino, Ed 573 Spencer, Kirk 2 Nicol, John 27 Chapman, Trent 517 Plunkett, Sean 2 Nicol, John 27 Chapman, Trent 517 Plunkett, Sean 2479 George, Jamie 94 Taylor, Chris 18 Chapman, Blair 2479 George, Jamie 94 T	Nairn, Gregory J	84	Cairns, Stephen G	1516	Dungey, Donald L	5
Dart, Geoffrey 54 Waren, Justin A 692 Dart, Geoffrey 3.5 Shaw, Waren 47 Naim, Gregory J 662 Chapman, Trent 3.5 Swansson, Daniel 39 Hewitt, Gien 611 Keenan, Bradley 3 Dawson, Stafford G 37 Dawson, Stafford G 611 Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan 2.5 Partridge, Geoffrey 37 Keenan, Bradley 600 Kastow, Thomas J 2.5 Spencer, Kirk 36 Dauguino, Ed 573 Spencer, Kirk 2 Keenan, Bradley 32 Chapman, Trent 517 Plunket, Lachlan 2 Nicol, John 27 Chappelle, Culver 425 2 Nicol, John 27 Spencer, Kirk 30 Naim, Gregory J 6590 Spencer, Kirk 107 Dungey, Donald L 25 Shaw, Warren 2672 Caims, Stephen G 94 Taylor, Chris 18 Chapman, Blair 2479 Ogeorge, Jamie 94 Taylor, Chris	Dungey, Donald L	78	Spencer, Kirk	881	Bindon, Bruce	4.5
Shaw, Warren 47 Naim, Gregory J 662 Chapman, Trent 3.5 Naim, Joshua G 41 George, Jamie 651 Keeran, Bradley 3 Swansson, Daniel 39 Hewitt, Glen 611 Arnort-Dungey, Sheahan 2.5 Dawson, Stafford G 37 Dawson, Stafford G 611 Arnort-Dungey, Sheahan 2.5 Spencer, Kirk 36 Daguino, Ed 573 Spencer, Kirk 2 Chapman, Blair 34 Shaw, Warren 538 George, Jamie 2 Bindon, Bruce 27.5 Haines, Douglas 477 Harris, Lachlan 2 Nicol, John 27 Spencer, Kirk 30 Naim, Gregory J 6590 Spencer, Kirk 107 Dungey, Donald L 25 Shaw, Warren 257 George, Jamie 94 Warren, Justin A 17 Spencer, Kirk 207 George, Jamie 12 Arnort-Dungey, Sheahan 2202 Daguino, Ed 68 Keenan, Bradley 12 Arnort-Dungey,	Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	55	Dart, Geoffrey	718	Warren, Justin A	4
Naim, Joshua G 41 George, Jamie 651 Keenan, Bradley 3 Swansson, Daniel 39 Hewitt, Glen 617 Naim, Joshua G 2.5 Dawson, Stafford G 37 Dawson, Stafford G 611 Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan 2.5 Patridge, Geoffrey 37 Keenan, Bradley 600 Kaskow, Thomas J 2.5 Spencer, Kirk 36 George, Jamie 2 2 Chapman, Blair 34 Shaw, Warren 538 George, Jamie 2 Keenan, Bradley 32 Chapman, Trent 517 Plunkett, Sean 2 Nicol, John 27 Chappelle, Culver 425 2 Dungey, Donald L 227 Spencer, Kirk 30 Naim, Gregory J 6590 Syencer, Kirk 107 Dungey, Donald L 25 Shaw, Warren 2672 Cairns, Stephen G 94 Taytor, Chris 18 Chapman, Blair 2479 Waren, Justin A 70 George, Jamie 12 Naim, Joshua G	Dart, Geoffrey	54	Warren, Justin A	692	Dart, Geoffrey	3.5
Swansson, Daniel 39 Hewitt, Glein 617 Naim, Joshua G 2.5 Dawson, Stafford G 37 Dawson, Stafford G 611 Amott-Dungey, Sheahan 2.5 Spencer, Kirk 36 Daquino, Ed 573 Spencer, Kirk 2 Chapman, Biair 34 Shaw, Waren 538 George, Jamie 2 Keenan, Bradley 32 Chapman, Trent 517 Plunkett, Sean 2 Bindon, Bruce 27.5 Haines, Douglas 477 Harris, Lachlan 2 Dungey, Donald L 227 Spencer, Kirk 30 Naim, Gregory J 6590 Spencer, Kirk 107 Dungey, Donald L 25 Shaw, Waren 2672 George, Jamie 94 Waren, Justin A 17 Spencer, Kirk 2276 George, Jamie 94 Waren, Justin A 17 Spencer, Kirk 2276 George, Jamie 94 Waren, Justin A 17 Spencer, Kirk 2272 Daquino, Ed 68 Keenan, Bradley	Shaw, Warren	47	Nairn, Gregory J	662	Chapman, Trent	3.5
Dawson, Stafford G 37 Dawson, Stafford G 611 Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan 2.5 Partridge, Geoffrey 37 Keenan, Bradley 600 Kaskow, Thomas J 2.5 Spencer, Kirk 36 Daquino, Ed 573 Spencer, Kirk 2 Chapman, Blair 34 Shaw, Warren 538 George, Jamie 2 Bindon, Bruce 27.5 Haines, Douglas 477 Harris, Lachlan 2 Nicol, John 27 Chapman, Trent 517 Plunkett, Sean 2 Dungey, Donald L 277 Spencer, Kirk 30 Naim, Gregory J 65500 Spencer, Kirk 107 Dungey, Donald L 25 Shaw, Warren 2672 Cairns, Stephen G 94 Taylor, Chris 18 Chapman, Blair 2479 George, Jamie 12 Armott-Dungey, Sheahan 2202 Daquino, Ed Swansson, Daniel 182 Naim, Gregory J 62 Katsikis, John 10 Jolly, Michael 1756 Chapman, Trent	Nairn, Joshua G	41	George, Jamie	651	Keenan, Bradley	3
Patridge, Geoffrey37Keenan, Bradley600Kaskow, Thomas J2.5Spencer, Kirk36Daquino, Ed573Spencer, Kirk2Chapman, Blair34Shaw, Warren538George, Jamie2Bindon, Bruce27.5Haines, Douglas477Harris, Lachlan2Nicol, John27Chapmen, Trent517Plunkett, Sean2Dungey, Donald L227Spencer, Kirk30Naim, Gregory J6590Spencer, Kirk107Dungey, Donald L25Shaw, Warren2672Caims, Stephen G94Taylor, Chris18Chapman, Blair2479George, Jamie94Warren, Justin A17Spencer, Kirk2202Daquino, Ed68Keenan, Bradley12Amot-Dungey, Sheahan2202Daquino, Ed68Keenan, Bradley12Naim, Joshua G2066Keenan, Bradley10Jolly, Michael100Swansson, Daniel1828Naim, Gregory J62Katsikis, John10Jolly, Michael1756Chapman, Trent6161Warren, Paul F7Edmonds, Gus1221Dawson, Stafford G59Daquino, Ed5Henshall, Stephen5Henshall, Stephen989Haines, Douglas47Maren, Geoffrey52Shaw, Warren976333376Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent31313Jolly, Michael71 <td>Swansson, Daniel</td> <td>39</td> <td>Hewitt, Glen</td> <td>617</td> <td>Nairn, Joshua G</td> <td>2.5</td>	Swansson, Daniel	39	Hewitt, Glen	617	Nairn, Joshua G	2.5
Spencer, Kirk 36 Daquino, Ed 573 Spencer, Kirk 2 Chapman, Blari 34 Shaw, Warren 538 George, Jamie 2 Bindon, Bruce 27.5 Haines, Douglas 477 Harris, Lachlan 2 Nicol, John 27 Chapman, Trent 517 Harris, Lachlan 2 Durgey, Donald L 27 Spencer, Kirk 30 Naim, Gregory J 6590 Spencer, Kirk 107 Durgey, Donald L 25 Shaw, Warren 2672 Caims, Stephen G 94 Taylor, Chris 18 Chapman, Blair 2479 George, Jamie 94 Warren, Justin A 17 Spencer, Kirk 2202 Daquino, Ed 68 Keenan, Bradley 12 Naim, Joshua G 2066 Keenan, Bradley 14 Jolly, Michael 1756 Chapman, Trent 10 Jolly, Michael 1756 Chapman, Trent 61 Warren, Paul F 7 Edmonds, Gus 1292 Dawson, Stafford G 59<	Dawson, Stafford G	37	Dawson, Stafford G	611	Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	2.5
Chapman, Blair34Shaw, Warren538George, Jamie2Keenan, Bradley32Chapman, Trent517Flunkett, Sean2Nicol, John27Chappelle, Culver425Harris, Lachlan2Nicol, John27Chappelle, Culver425Shaw, Warren2Durgey, Donald L227Spencer, Kirk30Nairn, Gregory J6500Spencer, Kirk107Dungey, Donald L25Shaw, Warren2672Cairns, Stephen G94Taylor, Chris18Chapman, Blair2479George, Jamie94Warren, Justin A17Spencer, Kirk2202Daquino, Ed68Keenan, Bradley12Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan2202Daquino, Ed68Keenan, Bradley12Naim, Joshua G2066Keenan, Bradley64Jolty, Michael10Swansson, Daniel1828Naim, Gregory J62Katsikis, John10Jolty, Michael1756Chapman, Trent61Warren, Paul F7Edmonds, Gus1292Dawon, Stafford G59Daquino, Ed5Henshall, Stephen989Haines, Douglas47Katsikis, John5Henshall, Stephen989Haines, Douglas47Katsikis, Michael5Stean, Bradley959Sheppard, Greg45George-Kennedy, Doug9494420Naim, Joshua G45Shaw, Warren77Dungey, Donald L26	Partridge, Geoffrey	37	Keenan, Bradley	600	Kaskow, Thomas J	2.5
Keenan, Bradley 32 Chapman, Trent 517 Plunkett, Sean 2 Bindon, Bruce 27.5 Haines, Douglas 477 Harris, Lachlan 2 Nicol, John 27 Chappelle, Culver 425 425 Dungey, Donald L 227 Spencer, Kirk 30 Naim, Gregory J 6590 Spencer, Kirk 107 Dungey, Donald L 25 Shaw, Warren 2672 Cairns, Stephen G 94 Taylor, Chris 18 Chapman, Blair 2479 George, Jamie 94 Warren, Justin A 17 Spencer, Kirk 2276 Waren, Justin A 70 George, Jamie 12 Anot-Dungey, Sheahan 2202 Dayino, Ed 68 Keenan, Bradley 10 Swamson, Daniel 1828 Naim, Gregory J 62 Katsikis, John 10 Jolly, Michael 1756 Dawson, Stafford G 59 Daquino, Ed 5 Randolph, David 1241 Hewitt, Glen 51 Gilders, Michael 5	Spencer, Kirk	36	Daquino, Ed	573	Spencer, Kirk	2
Bindon, Bruce Nicol, John27.5 27Haines, Douglas Chappelle, Culver477 425Harris, Lachlan2FoursSixesBalls BowledDungey, Donald L227Spencer, Kirk30Naim, Gregory J6590Dungey, Donald L227Spencer, Kirk30Naim, Gregory J6590George, Jamie94Warren, Justin A17Spencer, Kirk2276Warren, Justin A70George, Jamie12Amoth-Dungey, Sheahan2202Daquino, Ed68Keenan, Bradley12Amoth-Dungey, Sheahan2202Daquino, Ed68Keenan, Bradley10Joly, Michael1756Chappen, Stafford G59Daquino, Ed5Randolph, David1241Hewitt, Glen51Gilders, Michael5Henshall, Stephen989Dart, Geoffrey50Henshall, Stephen5Henshall, Stephen989Naim, Gregory J197Naim, Gregory J378Dart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Waren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent31Joly, Michael53Joly, Michael71Dungey, Donald L26Maim, Gregory J197Naim, Gregory J378Dart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Waren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92<	Chapman, Blair	34	Shaw, Warren	538	George, Jamie	2
Nicol, John27Chappelle, Culver425FoursSixesBalls BowledDungey, Donald L227Spencer, Kirk30Naim, Gregory J6590Spencer, Kirk107Dungey, Donald L25Shaw, Warren2672Cairns, Stephen G94Taylor, Chris18Chapman, Blair2479George, Jamie94Warren, Justin A17Spencer, Kirk2276Daquino, Ed68Keenan, Bradley12Naim, Joshua G2066Keenan, Bradley64Jolly, Michael10Swansson, Daniel1828Naim, Gregory J62Katsikis, John10Jolly, Michael1756Chapman, Trent61Warren, Paul F7Edmods, Gus1292Dawson, Stafford G59Daquino, Ed5Randolph, David1241Hewitt, Glen51Gilders, Michael5Hewshall, Stephen989Dart, Geoffrey50Henshall, Stephen5Henshall, Stephen989Naim, Gregory J197Naim, Gregory J378Dart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent31Jolly, Michael71Naim, Joshua G20Swansson, Daniel262Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent<	Keenan, Bradley	32	Chapman, Trent	517	Plunkett, Sean	2
Fours Sixes Balls Bowled Dungey, Donald L 227 Spencer, Kirk 30 Nairn, Gregory J 6590 Spencer, Kirk 107 Dungey, Donald L 25 Shaw, Warren 2672 Cairns, Stephen G 94 Taylor, Chris 18 Chapman, Blair 2479 George, Jamie 94 Warren, Justin A 17 Spencer, Kirk 2276 Warren, Justin A 70 George, Jamie 12 Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan 2202 Daquino, Ed 68 Keenan, Bradley 12 Nairn, Joshua G 2066 Keenan, Bradley 64 Joly, Michael 10 Swansson, Daniel 1828 Nairn, Gregory J 62 Katsikis, John 10 Joly, Michael 1756 Chapman, Trent 61 Warren, Paul F 7 Edmonds, Gus 1292 Dawson, Stafford G 59 Daquino, Ed 5 Henshall, Stephen 989 Haines, Douglas 47 Ford, Adrian 976 Nairn, Gregory J <td>Bindon, Bruce</td> <td>27.5</td> <td>Haines, Douglas</td> <td>477</td> <td>Harris, Lachlan</td> <td>2</td>	Bindon, Bruce	27.5	Haines, Douglas	477	Harris, Lachlan	2
Dungey, Donald L 227 Spencer, Kirk 30 Naim, Gregory J 6590 Spencer, Kirk 107 Dungey, Donald L 25 Shaw, Warren 2672 Caims, Stephen G 94 Taylor, Chris 18 Chapman, Blair 2479 George, Jamie 94 Warren, Justin A 17 Spencer, Kirk 2202 Daquino, Ed 68 Keenan, Bradley 12 Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan 2202 Daquino, Ed 68 Keenan, Bradley 12 Naim, Joshua G 2066 Keenan, Bradley 64 Jolly, Michael 10 Swansson, Daniel 1828 Naim, Gregory J 62 Katsikis, John 10 Jolly, Michael 1756 Dawson, Stafford G 59 Daquino, Ed 5 Randolph, David 1241 Hewitt, Glen 51 Gilders, Michael 5 Henshall, Stephen 989 Haines, Douglas 47 Ford, Adrian 976 Naim, Joshua G 45 Naim, Joshua G 45 Maidens	Nicol, John	27	Chappelle, Culver	425		
Spencer, Kirk107Dungey, Donald L25Shaw, Warren2672Cairns, Stephen G94Taylor, Chris18Chapman, Blair2479George, Jamie94Warren, Justin A17Spencer, Kirk2276Daquino, Ed68Keenan, Bradley12Narm, Joshua G2066Keenan, Bradley64Jolly, Michael10Swansson, Daniel1828Naim, Gregory J62Katsikis, John10Jolly, Michael1766Chapman, Trent61Warren, Paul F7Edmonds, Gus1292Dawson, Stafford G59Daquino, Ed5Randolph, David1241Hewitt, Glen51Gilders, Michael5Hewitt, Glen1158Dart, Geoffrey50Henshall, Stephen5Henshall, Stephen989Haines, Douglas47Keenan, Bradley959Sheppard, Greg45Maidens2672378Nairn, Gregory J197Nairn, Gregory J378Dart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent31Jolly, Michael54Shaw, Warren77Dungey, Donald L266Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas266Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas266Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71<	Fours		Sixes		Balls Bowled	
Caims, Stephen G 94 Taylor, Chris 18 Chapman, Blair 2479 George, Jamie 94 Warren, Justin A 17 Spencer, Kirk 2276 Warren, Justin A 70 George, Jamie 12 Armott-Dungey, Sheahan 2202 Daquino, Ed 68 Keenan, Bradley 12 Naim, Joshua G 2066 Keenan, Bradley 64 Jolly, Michael 10 Swansson, Daniel 1828 Naim, Gregory J 62 Katsikis, John 10 Jolly, Michael 1756 Chapman, Trent 61 Warren, Paul F 7 Edmonds, Gus 1292 Dawson, Stafford G 59 Daquino, Ed 5 Randolph, David 1241 Hewitt, Glen 51 Gilders, Michael 5 Hewshall, Stephen 989 Dart, Geoffrey 50 Henshall, Stephen 5 Hemshall, Stephen 999 Keenan, Bradley 959 George-Kennedy, Doug 949 949 94 94 Naim, Gregory J 197	Dungey, Donald L	227	Spencer, Kirk	30	Nairn, Gregory J	6590
George, Jamie94Warren, Justin A17Spencer, Kirk2276Warren, Justin A70George, Jamie12Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan2202Daquino, Ed68Keenan, Bradley12Naim, Joshua G2066Keenan, Bradley64Jolly, Michael10Swansson, Daniel1828Naim, Gregory J62Katsikis, John10Jolly, Michael1756Chapman, Trent61Warren, Paul F7Edmonds, Gus1292Dawson, Stafford G59Daquino, Ed5Randolph, David1241Hewitt, Glen51Gilders, Michael5Henshall, Stephen989Haines, Douglas47Ford, Adrian976Naim, Joshua G45Georger, Kirk106Bindon, BruceSheppard, Greg45MaidensDart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent311Jolly, Michael51Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Armott-Dungey, Sheahan53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Naim, Joshua G43Shaw, Warren77Dungey, Donald L26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71 </td <td>Spencer, Kirk</td> <td>107</td> <td>Dungey, Donald L</td> <td>25</td> <td>Shaw, Warren</td> <td>2672</td>	Spencer, Kirk	107	Dungey, Donald L	25	Shaw, Warren	2672
Warren, Justin A70George, Jamie12Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan2202Daquino, Ed68Keenan, Bradley12Naim, Joshua G2066Keenan, Bradley64Jolly, Michael10Swansson, Daniel1828Naim, Gregory J62Katsikis, John10Jolly, Michael1756Chapman, Trent61Warren, Paul F7Edmonds, Gus1292Dawson, Stafford G59Daquino, Ed5Randolph, David1241Hewitt, Glen51Gilders, Michael5Henshall, Stephen989Dart, Geoffrey50Henshall, Stephen5Henshall, Stephen989Haines, Douglas47Ford, Adrian976Naim, Joshua G45Keenan, Bradley959Sheppard, Greg45Keenan, Blair90Spencer, Kirk106Naim, Gregory J197Naim, Gregory J378Dart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent31Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas2626Anott-Dungey, Sheahan53Nairn, Joshua G70Nairn, Gregory J20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas262626Anott-Dungey, Sheahan53Nairn, Joshua G70Nairn, Joshua	Cairns, Stephen G	94	Taylor, Chris	18	Chapman, Blair	2479
Daquino, Ed68Keenan, Bradley12Naim, Joshua G2066Keenan, Bradley64Jolly, Michael10Swansson, Daniel1828Naim, Gregory J62Katsikis, John10Jolly, Michael1756Chapman, Trent61Waren, Paul F7Edmonds, Gus1221Dawson, Stafford G59Daquino, Ed5Randolph, David1241Hewitt, Glen51Gilders, Michael5Hewitt, Glen1158Dart, Geoffrey50Henshall, Stephen5Henshall, Stephen989Haines, Douglas47Ford, Adrian976Naim, Joshua G45Keenan, Bradley959Sheppard, Greg45Keenan, Bradley959Sheppard, Greg45Dismissals72Naim, Gregory J197Nairn, Gregory J378Dart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent31Jolly, Michael53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan53Nairn, Joshua G70Nairn, Gregory J20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Waren, Justin A20Nairn, Joshua G43Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan63Nairn, Joshua G20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Waren, Justin A20Nairn, Joshua G <td>George, Jamie</td> <td>94</td> <td>Warren, Justin A</td> <td>17</td> <td>Spencer, Kirk</td> <td>2276</td>	George, Jamie	94	Warren, Justin A	17	Spencer, Kirk	2276
Keenan, Bradley64Jolly, Michael10Swansson, Daniel1828Naim, Gregory J62Katsikis, John10Jolly, Michael1756Chapman, Trent61Warren, Paul F7Edmonds, Gus1292Dawson, Stafford G59Daquino, Ed5Randolph, David1241Hewitt, Glen51Gilders, Michael5Hewitt, Glen1158Dart, Geoffrey50Henshall, Stephen5Henshall, Stephen989Haines, Douglas47Ford, Adrian976Naim, Joshua G45Keenan, Bradley959Sheppard, Greg45George-Kennedy, Doug949WicketsMaidensDismissalsNaim, Gregory J197Nairn, Gregory J378Dart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce3331Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A <td>Warren, Justin A</td> <td>70</td> <td>George, Jamie</td> <td>12</td> <td>Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan</td> <td>2202</td>	Warren, Justin A	70	George, Jamie	12	Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	2202
Naim, Gregory J62Katsikis, John10Jolly, Michael1756Chapman, Trent61Warren, Paul F7Edmonds, Gus1292Dawson, Stafford G59Daquino, Ed5Randolph, David1241Hewitt, Glen51Gilders, Michael5Hewitt, Glen1158Dart, Geoffrey50Henshall, Stephen5Henshall, Stephen989Haines, Douglas47Ford, Adrian976Naim, Joshua G45Keenan, Bradley959Sheppard, Greg45George-Kennedy, Doug949WicketsDismissalsNaim, Gregory J197Naim, Gregory J378Dart, GeoffreySpencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, TrentJolly, Michael54Shaw, Warren77Dungey, Donald LJolly, Michael53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan53Naim, Joshua G70Naim, Gregory J20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Naim, Joshua G43Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan63Naim, Joshua G20Edmonds, Gus39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Randolph, David34Hewitt, Glen39Harris, Lachlan18	Daquino, Ed	68	Keenan, Bradley	12	Nairn, Joshua G	2066
Chapman, Trent61Warren, Paul F7Edmonds, Gus1292Dawson, Stafford G59Daquino, Ed5Randolph, David1241Hewitt, Glen51Gilders, Michael5Hewitt, Glen1158Dart, Geoffrey50Henshall, Stephen5Henshall, Stephen989Haines, Douglas47Ford, Adrian976Naim, Joshua G45Keenan, Bradley959Sheppard, Greg45George-Kennedy, Doug949WicketsDismissalsNaim, Gregory J197Nairn, Gregory J378Dart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent311Jolly, Michael54Shaw, Warren77Dungey, Donald L26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan53Nairn, Joshua G70Nairn, Gregory J20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Nairn, Joshua G43Armott-Dungey, Sheahan63Nairn, Joshua G20Edmonds, Gus39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Randolph, David34Hewitt, Glen39Harris, Lachlan18Hewitt, Glen31 </td <td>Keenan, Bradley</td> <td>64</td> <td>Jolly, Michael</td> <td>10</td> <td>Swansson, Daniel</td> <td>1828</td>	Keenan, Bradley	64	Jolly, Michael	10	Swansson, Daniel	1828
Dawson, Stafford G59Daquino, Ed5Randolph, David1241Hewitt, Glen51Gilders, Michael5Hewitt, Glen1158Dart, Geoffrey50Henshall, Stephen5Henshall, Stephen989Haines, Douglas47Ford, Adrian976Naim, Joshua G45Keenan, Bradley959Sheppard, Greg45George-Kennedy, Doug949WicketsMaidensDismissalsNaim, Gregory J197Nairn, Gregory J378Dart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent31Jolly, Michael54Shaw, Warren77Dungey, Donald L26Chapman, Blair52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Naim, Joshua G39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Randolph, David34Hewitt, Glen39Harris, Lachlan18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Nairn, Gregory J	62	Katsikis, John	10	Jolly, Michael	1756
Hewitt, Glen51Gilders, Michael5Hewitt, Glen1158Dart, Geoffrey50Henshall, Stephen5Henshall, Stephen989Haines, Douglas47Henshall, Stephen5Henshall, Stephen989Naim, Joshua G45Keenan, Bradley959Sheppard, Greg45Keenan, Bradley959Maim, Gregory J197Naim, Gregory J378Dart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent31Jolly, Michael54Shaw, Warren77Dungey, Donald L26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Naim, Joshua G39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Randolph, David34Hewitt, Glen39Harris, Lachlan18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36 </td <td>Chapman, Trent</td> <td>61</td> <td>Warren, Paul F</td> <td>7</td> <td>Edmonds, Gus</td> <td>1292</td>	Chapman, Trent	61	Warren, Paul F	7	Edmonds, Gus	1292
Dart, Geoffrey50Henshall, Stephen5Henshall, Stephen989Haines, Douglas477Ford, Adrian976Naim, Joshua G45Keenan, Bradley959Sheppard, Greg45George-Kennedy, Doug949WicketsMaim, Gregory J378Dart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent31Jolly, Michael54Shaw, Warren77Dungey, Donald L26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan53Nairn, Joshua G70Nairn, Gregory J20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Nairn, Joshua G43Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan63Nairn, Joshua G20Edmonds, Gus39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Randolph, David34Hewitt, Glen39Harris, Lachlan18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Dawson, Stafford G	59	Daquino, Ed	5	Randolph, David	1241
Haines, Douglas47Ford, Adrian976Naim, Joshua G45Keenan, Bradley959Sheppard, Greg45George-Kennedy, Doug949WicketsMaidensDismissalsNaim, Gregory J197Naim, Gregory J378Dart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent31Jolly, Michael54Shaw, Warren77Durgey, Donald L26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan53Naim, Joshua G70Naim, Gregory J20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Naim, Joshua G43Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan63Naim, Joshua G20Edmonds, Gus39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Randolph, David34Hewitt, Glen39Harris, Lachlan18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Hewitt, Glen	51	Gilders, Michael	5	Hewitt, Glen	1158
Naim, Joshua G45 45Keenan, Bradley959 949WicketsMaidensDismissalsNaim, Gregory J197Naim, Gregory J378Dart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent31Jolly, Michael54Shaw, Warren77Dungey, Donald L26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan53Naim, Joshua G70Naim, Gregory J20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Naim, Joshua G43Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan63Naim, Joshua G20Berdends, Gus39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Hewitt, Glen31Henshall, Stephen38Warren, Paul F18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Dart, Geoffrey	50	Henshall, Stephen	5	Henshall, Stephen	989
Sheppard, Greg45George-Kennedy, Doug949WicketsMaidensDismissalsNaim, Gregory J197Nairn, Gregory J378Dart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent31Jolly, Michael54Shaw, Warren77Dungey, Donald L26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan53Nairn, Joshua G70Nairn, Gregory J20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Naim, Joshua G43Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan63Nairn, Joshua G20Edmonds, Gus39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Randolph, David34Hewitt, Glen39Harris, Lachlan18Hewitt, Glen31Henshall, Stephen38Warren, Paul F18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Haines, Douglas	47			Ford, Adrian	976
WicketsMaidensDismissalsNaim, Gregory J197Naim, Gregory J378Dart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent31Jolly, Michael54Shaw, Warren77Dungey, Donald L26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan53Nairn, Joshua G70Nairn, Gregory J20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Nairn, Joshua G43Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan63Nairn, Joshua G20Edmonds, Gus39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Hewitt, Glen31Henshall, Stephen38Warren, Paul F18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Nairn, Joshua G	45			Keenan, Bradley	959
Naim, Gregory J197Naim, Gregory J378Dart, Geoffrey52Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent31Jolly, Michael54Shaw, Warren77Dungey, Donald L26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan53Nairn, Joshua G70Nairn, Gregory J20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Nairn, Joshua G43Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan63Nairn, Joshua G20Edmonds, Gus39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Hewitt, Glen31Henshall, Stephen38Warren, Paul F18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Sheppard, Greg	45			George-Kennedy, Doug	949
Shaw, Warren90Spencer, Kirk106Bindon, Bruce33Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent31Jolly, Michael54Shaw, Warren77Dungey, Donald L26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan53Nairn, Joshua G70Nairn, Gregory J20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Nairn, Joshua G43Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan63Nairn, Joshua G20Randolph, Gus39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Hewitt, Glen31Henshall, Stephen38Warren, Paul F18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Wickets		Maidens		Dismissals	
Spencer, Kirk62Chapman, Blair92Chapman, Trent31Jolly, Michael54Shaw, Warren77Dungey, Donald L26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan53Nairn, Joshua G70Nairn, Gregory J20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Nairn, Joshua G43Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan63Nairn, Joshua G20Edmonds, Gus39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Randolph, David34Hewitt, Glen39Harris, Lachlan18Hewitt, Glen31Henshall, Stephen38Warren, Paul F18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Nairn, Gregory J	197	Nairn, Gregory J	378	Dart, Geoffrey	52
Jolly, Michael54Shaw, Warren77Dungey, Donald L26Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan53Nairn, Joshua G70Nairn, Gregory J20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Nairn, Joshua G43Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan63Nairn, Joshua G20Edmonds, Gus39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Randolph, David34Hewitt, Glen39Harris, Lachlan18Hewitt, Glen31Henshall, Stephen38Warren, Paul F18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Shaw, Warren	90	Spencer, Kirk	106	Bindon, Bruce	33
Chapman, Blair53Jolly, Michael71Haines, Douglas26Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan53Nairn, Joshua G70Nairn, Gregory J20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Nairn, Joshua G43Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan63Nairn, Joshua G20Edmonds, Gus39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Randolph, David34Hewitt, Glen39Harris, Lachlan18Hewitt, Glen31Henshall, Stephen38Warren, Paul F18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Spencer, Kirk	62	Chapman, Blair	92	Chapman, Trent	31
Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan53Nairn, Joshua G70Nairn, Gregory J20Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Nairn, Joshua G43Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan63Nairn, Joshua G20Edmonds, Gus39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Randolph, David34Hewitt, Glen39Harris, Lachlan18Hewitt, Glen31Henshall, Stephen38Warren, Paul F18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Jolly, Michael	54	Shaw, Warren	77	Dungey, Donald L	26
Swansson, Daniel52Edmonds, Gus66Warren, Justin A20Nairn, Joshua G43Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan63Nairn, Joshua G20Edmonds, Gus39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Randolph, David34Hewitt, Glen39Harris, Lachlan18Hewitt, Glen31Henshall, Stephen38Warren, Paul F18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Chapman, Blair	53	Jolly, Michael	71	Haines, Douglas	26
Nairn, Joshua G43Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan63Nairn, Joshua G20Edmonds, Gus39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Randolph, David34Hewitt, Glen39Harris, Lachlan18Hewitt, Glen31Henshall, Stephen38Warren, Paul F18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	53	Nairn, Joshua G	70	Nairn, Gregory J	20
Edmonds, Gus39Swansson, Daniel57Cairns, Stephen G19George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Randolph, David34Hewitt, Glen39Harris, Lachlan18Hewitt, Glen31Henshall, Stephen38Warren, Paul F18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Swansson, Daniel	52	Edmonds, Gus	66	Warren, Justin A	20
George-Kennedy, Doug36Rickards, Craig A43Spencer, Kirk18Randolph, David34Hewitt, Glen39Harris, Lachlan18Hewitt, Glen31Henshall, Stephen38Warren, Paul F18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Nairn, Joshua G	43	Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	63	Nairn, Joshua G	20
Randolph, David34Hewitt, Glen39Harris, Lachlan18Hewitt, Glen31Henshall, Stephen38Warren, Paul F18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Edmonds, Gus	39	Swansson, Daniel	57	Cairns, Stephen G	19
Hewitt, Glen31Henshall, Stephen38Warren, Paul F18Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	George-Kennedy, Doug	36	Rickards, Craig A	43	Spencer, Kirk	18
Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	Randolph, David	34	Hewitt, Glen	39	Harris, Lachlan	18
Henshall, Stephen30Ford, Adrian38Delane, Steve17Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16	-	31		38	Warren, Paul F	18
Ford, Adrian29George-Kennedy, Doug36Keenan, Bradley16		30	-	38	Delane, Steve	17
· · ·	-			36		16
	Rickards, Craig A	28	Randolph, David	35	Forrester, Peter J	15

Top Performers – One Day Side

Matches		Runs		Run Outs	
Saxon, Les	53.5	Smith, Peter C	1478	Perrozzi, Serge	5.5
Shearing, Steven J	44.5	Shearing, Steven J	1270	Linehan, Paul J	4.5
Perrozzi, Serge	44	Arcaro, Daniel	1227	Pearson, Glen	4.5
Duncan, Rodney	42.5	Warren, Justin A	1195	Smith, Peter C	4
Dawson, Ken C	39.5	Taylor, Chris	1091	Lockyer, Matthew	4
Linehan, Paul J	37	Welsh, Jos	1057	George, Jamie	3.5
Smith, Peter C	35.5	Perrozzi, Serge	997	Magill, Anthony	3
Daquino, Ed	29	Magill, Anthony	970	Taylor, Chris	3
Welsh, Jos	29	Linehan, Paul J	963	Harris, Lachlan	3
Cleary, Simon V	27	George, Jamie	766	Arcaro, Daniel	2.5
Davies, Glenn M	25.5	Dawson, Ken C	761		
de Jager, Ken	25	Cleary, Simon V	739		
Pearson, Glen	24.5	Warren, Paul F	683		
Warren, Justin A	24	Daquino, Ed	601		
George, Jamie	23.5	Smith, Kieran E	386		
Fours		Sixes		Balls Bowled	
Smith, Peter C	152	Warren, Justin A	60	Saxon, Les	2688
Warren, Justin A	117	Arcaro, Daniel	50	Duncan, Rodney	2156
Welsh, Jos	117	Magill, Anthony	50	Perrozzi, Serge	1779
Taylor, Chris	110	Taylor, Chris	47	Warren, Michael J	1326
Shearing, Steven J	105	Cleary, Simon V	33	Smith, Peter C	1200
Perrozzi, Serge	103	Smith, Peter C	30	Magill, Anthony	1026
Arcaro, Daniel	101	George, Jamie	22	George, Jamie	996
Magill, Anthony	97	Warren, Paul F	19	Strauss, Craig	994
Dawson, Ken C	83	Welsh, Jos	11	de Jager, Ken	823
George, Jamie	80	Pachaiappan, Rajesh	11	Cleary, Simon V	798
Linehan, Paul J	78	Perrozzi, Serge	9	Lockyer, Chris	699
Warren, Paul F	70	Knight, Michael	9	Lockyer, Jacob T	638
Daquino, Ed	68	Gilders, Michael	7	Arcaro, Daniel	619
Cleary, Simon V	61	Linehan, Paul J	6	Taylor, Chris	609
		Mehdi, Waqas	6	Linehan, Paul J	608
Wickets		Maidens		Dismissals	
Duncan, Rodney	85	Duncan, Rodney	54	Pearson, Glen	52
Saxon, Les	75	Saxon, Les	50	Warren, Justin A	38
Perrozzi, Serge	72	Magill, Anthony	22	Smith, Peter C	28
Warren, Michael J	58	Perrozzi, Serge	18	Welsh, Jos	27
Smith, Peter C	57	Massee, Martin	18	Perrozzi, Serge	26
Magill, Anthony	43	Smith, Peter C	16	Taylor, Chris	25
George, Jamie	32	Warren, Michael J	14	Harris, Lachlan	23
Cleary, Simon V	30	Lockyer, Chris	14	Davies, Glenn M	19
Strauss, Craig	30	George, Jamie	12	Shearing, Steven J	19
de Jager, Ken	30	Cleary, Simon V	11	Nation, Adrian T	18
George, Shane	27	Smith, Kieran E	11	Magill, Anthony	17
Lockyer, Chris	26	Strauss, Craig	10	Arcaro, Daniel	17
Groube, Anthony	24	de Jager, Ken	10	Linehan, Paul J	15
Arcaro, Daniel	23	Lockyer, Jacob T	8	Warren, Michael J	15
Taylor, Chris	22	Brown, Anthony E	8		

Office Bearers

Season	President	Vice President	Secretary	Treasurer
1953/54	Jim McKinnon		Jack Thomas	Jack Thomas
1954/55	George Warner		Jack Thomas	Jack Thomas
1955/56	Reg Davies		Geoff Farrall	Jack Thomas
1956/57	Ralph Dungey		Geoff Farrall	Geoff Farrall
1957/58	Ralph Dungey		Geoff Farrall	Brian Trouchet
1958/59	Ralph Dungey		Geoff Farrall	Brian Trouchet
1959/60	Ralph Dungey		Geoff Farrall	Brian Trouchet
1960/61	Ralph Dungey		Eric Pumfrey	Ken Esmond
1961/62	Ralph Dungey		Geoff Farrall	Ken Esmond
1962/63	Ralph Dungey		Geoff Farrall	Ken Esmond
1963/64	Ralph Dungey		Geoff Farrall	Brian Trouchet
1964/65	Ralph Dungey		Geoff Farrall	Geoff Farrall
1965/66	Ralph Dungey		Greg Dart	Greg Dart
1966/67	Ralph Dungey		Greg Dart	Greg Dart
1967/68	Ralph Dungey		Alan Gray	Geoff Farrall
1968/69	Ralph Dungey		Lance Thompson	Geoff Farrall
1969/70	Ralph Dungey		Lance Thompson	Geoff Farrall
1970/71	Ralph Dungey		Lance Thompson	Geoff Farrall
1971/72	Ralph Dungey		Peter Bradbrook	Geoff Farrall
1972/73	Geoff Farrall		Anthony Malins	Peter Farrall
1973/74	Geoff Farrall		Anthony Malins	Peter Farrall
1974/75	Geoff Farrall		Keith Chapman	Lloyd Dungey
1975/76	Anthony Malins		Jim Whyte	Lloyd Dungey
1976/77	Greg Dart		Andrew Hayward	Lloyd Dungey
1977/78	Anthony Malins		Andrew Hayward	Brian Hayward
1978/79	Anthony Malins		Andrew Hayward	Stephen Cairns
1979/80	George Woodhead		Andrew Hayward	Hayden Gray
1980/81	George Woodhead		Damian Knowles	Hayden Gray
1981/82	Brian Hayward		Stephen Cairns	Mark Seaman/Steve Mills
1982/83	Brian Hayward		Stephen Cairns	Steve Mills
1983/84	Brian Hayward		Stephen Cairns	Steve Mills
1984/85	Steve Mills		Lyn Arnott	Geoff Farrall
1985/86	Andrew Hayward		Lyn Arnott	Geoff Farrall
1986/87	Andrew Hayward		Lyn Arnott	Geoff Farrall
1987/88	Andrew Hayward		Anthony Malins	Geoff Farrall
1988/89	Anthony Malins		Greg Dart	Greg Nairn
1989/90	Anthony Malins		Greg Dart	Greg Nairn
1990/91	Anthony Malins		John Ford	Greg Nairn
1991/92	Stephen Cairns		John Ford	Greg Nairn
1992/93	Greg Nairn		Lesley Magill	Mark Lukan
1993/94	Andrew Hayward		Lesley Magill	Anthony Magill
1994/95	Andrew Hayward	Ron Fernandez	Lesley Magill	Anthony Magill
1995/96	Andrew Hayward	Ron Fernandez	Lesley Magill	Anthony Magill
1996/97	Ron Fernandez	Glenn Davies	Lesley Magill	Andrew Hayward
1997/98	Ron Fernandez	Glenn Davies	Paul Warren	Kevin Magill
1998/99	Ron Fernandez	Stephen Cairns	Derek Gascoigne	Kevin Magill
1999/00	Ron Fernandez	Lesley Magill	Derek Gascoigne	Kevin Magill
2000/01	Ron Fernandez	_ooio, magin	Stewart Jefferys	Lesley Magill
2000/01	Ron Fernandez	Stephen Cairns	Stewart Jefferys	Anthony Magill
2001/02	Ron Fernandez	Derek Gascoigne	Stewart Jefferys	Anthony Magill
2002/03	Steve Shearing	Derek Gascoigne	Stewart Jefferys	Greg Nairn
2003/04 2004/05	Steve Shearing	Stafford Dawson	David Berry	-
2004/05	Steve Shearing	Stafford Dawson	,	Greg Nairn Greg Nairn
2005/06 2006/07	-	Stafford Dawson	David Berry	Greg Nairn Greg Nairn
	Steve Shearing	Stafford Dawson	David Berry	Greg Nairn Earbod Eanavan
2007/08	Steve Shearing/Andrew Hayward		David Berry/Andrew Hayward	Farbod Fanayan
2008/09	Steve Shearing	Stafford Dawson	Michael Knight Brod Koopop	Greg Nairn
2009/10	Stafford Dawson	Lachlan Harris	Brad Keenan	Steve Shearing
2010/11	Stafford Dawson	Jarrad Sibson	Lachlan Harris	Steve Shearing
2011/12	Stafford Dawson	Jarrad Sibson	Lachlan Harris	Justin Warren
2012/13	Stafford Dawson	Christopher Lockyer	Andrew Hayward	Brian Hayward
2013/14	Andrew Hayward	Graeme Verco	Greg Dart	Brian Hayward
2014/15	Greg Dart	Ron Fernandez	Andrew Hayward	Brian Hayward
	0			
2015/16 2016/17	Greg Dart Justin Warren	Ron Fernandez Ron Fernandez	Jay Smith Jay Smith	Brian Hayward Darren Leng

Hayward Medal, Clubperson and Junior Player Winners

Hayward Medal

1994/95	Steve Shearing
1995/96	Steve Shearing
1996/97	Dave Berry
1997/98	Scott Vallow
1998/99	Shane Paap
1999/00	Anthony Magill
2000/01	Michael Reilly
2001/02	Shaun O'Shea
2002/03	Shaun O'Shea
2003/04	Hudson Trevenen
2004/05	Shaun O'Shea
2005/06	Michael Scholefield
2006/07	Steven Clark
2007/08	Brendan Daye
2008/09	Brendan Daye
2009/10	Chris Prescott
2010/11	Laurence Paice
2011/12	Brendan Daye
2012/13	Brendan Daye
2013/14	Brendan Daye
2014/15	Brendan Daye
2015/16	Brendan Daye
2016/17	Brendan Daye

Clubperson of Year

2008/09	Chris Lockyer
2009/10	Lachlan Harris
2010/11	Justin Warren
2011/12	Karen Lofthouse
2012/13	Timothy D'Souza
2013/14	Greg Dart
2014/15	Brian Hayward
2015/16	Stephen Cairns
2016/17	Ron Fernandez

Junior Player

2009/10	Jake Lockyer
2010/11	Damon Sheppard
2011/12	Andrew Caterall
2012/13	Ujjwal Bhan
2013/14	Mitchell Duncan
2014/15	No qualifiers
2015/16	No qualifiers
2016/17	Matthew Robson

WE WOULD LIKE TO THANK OUR SPONSORS:

